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Item 2.  Acquisition or Disposition of Assets. 
         ------------------------------------- 
     Pursuant to the terms of an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger 
Agreement"), dated as of November 10, 2002, among Laboratory Corporation of 
America Holdings, a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), DIANON Systems, 
Inc., a Delaware corporation ("DIANON") and DaVinci Development, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company ("DaVinci"), 
DaVinci was merged with and into DIANON with DIANON as the surviving 
corporation (the "Merger") effective as of January 17, 2003 (the "Effective 
Date"). 
 
     Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, each outstanding share of 
DIANON common stock, $.01 par value per share, was converted into the right to 
receive $47.50 in cash. 
 
     The Company currently has two senior credit facilities totaling $350 
million.   In February 2002, the Company entered into a $200.0 million three- 
year revolving credit facility with Credit Suisse First Boston, acting through 
its New York Branch, acting as Administrative Agent, and a group of financial 
institutions that expires on February 18, 2005 (the "Three-year Credit 
Facility").  On January 14, 2003, the Company entered into a $150.0 million 
364-day revolving credit facility with Credit Suisse First Boston, acting 
through its Cayman Islands Branch, acting as Administrative Agent, and a group 
of financial institutions that expires on January 13, 2004 (the "364-day Credit 
Facility" and together with the Three-year Credit Facility, the "Senior Credit 
Facilities").  The Senior Credit Facilities bear interest at LIBOR plus 100 
basis points and are available for general corporate purposes, including 
working capital, capital expenditures, funding or share repurchases and other 
payments, and acquisitions. 
 
     In conjunction with the announcement of our acquisition of DIANON, the 
Company secured a commitment for a $350.0 million senior credit facility from 
Credit Suisse First Boston, acting through its Cayman Islands Branch..  In 
conjunction with the closing of the DIANON acquisition, the Company entered 
into credit agreement related to this facility (the "Bridge Loan").  The Bridge 
Loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 137.5 basis points and ranks pari passu with 
our Senior Credit Facilities. 
 
     In connection with the DIANON acquisition, the Company borrowed $248.6 
million under our Senior Credit Facilities and $350.0 million under the Bridge 
Loan to fund a portion of the acquisition purchase price (the "Borrowings"). 
The Company funded the remaining portion of the acquisition purchase price 
through available cash. 
 
     Prior to the Merger, DIANON was a publicly held company that provided a 
full line of anatomic pathology testing services and a number of genetic and 
clinical chemistry testing services to patients, physicians and managed care 



organizations throughout the United States.  The Company is the second largest 
independent clinical laboratory company in the United States, based on net 
revenues.  Through a national network of laboratories, the Company offers more 
than 4,000 different clinical laboratory tests which are used by the medical 
profession in routine testing, patient diagnosis and in the monitoring and 
treatment of disease.  Additional information about the Company can be found at 
www.labcorp.com. 
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Item 7. Financial Statements and Exhibits. 
        ---------------------------------- 
(a)   Financial Statement of Business Acquired 
 
      The financial statements of DIANON as of September 30, 2002 and as of 
December 31, 2001 and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
stockholders equity, and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 
2002 and the year ended December 31, 2001 are attached hereto as Exhibits 99.1 
and 99.2 and are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
(b)   The Pro Forma Financial Information 
 
      The pro forma financial statements are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.3 
and are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
(c)   Exhibits 
 
2.1   Agreement and Plan of Merger between Laboratory Corporation of America 
      Holdings, DIANON Systems, Inc. and DaVinci Development, Inc. dated as of 
      November 10, 2002 (incorporated by reference from Appendix A to DIANON's 
      Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (000-19392)). 
 
10.1  Bridge Loan Agreement dated as of January 17, 2003 among Laboratory 
      Corporation of America Holdings, the lenders named therein, and Credit 
      Suisse First Boston, as administrative agent. 
 
10.2  First Amendment dated as of January 14, 2003,  to the Three-Year Credit 
      Agreement dated as of February 20, 2002, among Laboratory Corporation of 
      America Holdings, the lenders (as defined in Article I of the Credit 
      Agreement), and Credit Suisse First Boston, as administrative agent. 
 
10.3  364-Day Credit Agreement dated as of January 14, 2003, among Laboratory 
      Corporation of America Holdings, the lenders named herein, and Credit 
      Suisse First Boston, as administrative agent. 
 
23.1  Document regarding consent of independent auditors. 
 
99.1  Financial statements of DIANON as of December 31, 2001. 
 
99.2  Financial statements of DIANON as of September 30, 2002. 
 
99.3  Pro forma financial information. 
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SIGNATURES: 
 
     Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
 
          LABORATORY CORPORATION OF AMERICA HOLDINGS 
 
 
         By: /s/ BRADFORD T. SMITH 
              ----------------------------------------------------- 
                 Bradford T. Smith 
                 Executive Vice President and Secretary 
 
 
Date: February 3, 2003 
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BRIDGE LOAN AGREEMENT dated as of January 17, 2003, among LABORATORY 
CORPORATION OF AMERICA HOLDINGS, a Delaware corporation 
(the "Borrower"), the Lenders (as defined in Article I), and CREDIT 
SUISSE FIRST BOSTON ("CSFB"), as administrative agent (in such capacity, 
the "Administrative Agent") for the Lenders. 
 
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge (the 
"Merger") with and into DIANON Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
("DIANON"), with DIANON surviving such Merger as a wholly owned 
Subsidiary of the Borrower.  In connection with the Merger, the existing 
shareholders of DIANON will receive aggregate cash consideration of 
approximately $598,400,000.  Also in connection with the Merger, the 
Borrower will, or will cause DIANON or another Subsidiary to, repay all 
of the outstanding Indebtedness of DIANON (other than the Assumed 
Debt) and terminate the agreements relating thereto.  Capitalized terms 
used but not defined in this preamble have the meanings assigned to such 
terms in Article I. 
 
The Borrower has requested the Lenders to extend credit in the 
form of Loans in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$350,000,000.  The proceeds of the Loans are to be used, together with 
cash on hand at the Borrower and/or the proceeds of borrowings under 
the Existing Borrower Credit Agreements, solely (a) to pay the cash 
consideration payable in connection with the Merger, (b) to repay all 
amounts outstanding or due in respect of all of the outstanding 
Indebtedness of DIANON (other than the Assumed Debt) and (c) to pay 
related fees and expenses. 
 
The Lenders are willing to extend such credit on the Closing 
Date to the Borrower on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth 
herein.  Accordingly, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 
ARTICLE I 
 
Definitions 
 
SECTION 1.01.  Defined Terms.  As used in this Agreement, the 
following terms shall have the meanings specified below: 
 
"ABR", when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers 
to whether such Loan, or the Loans comprising such Borrowing, are 
bearing interest at a rate determined by reference to the Alternate Base 
Rate. 
 
"Acquisition" shall mean the acquisition by the Borrower or any 
wholly owned Subsidiary of the Borrower of all or substantially all of the 
assets of a person or line of business of such person, or all or 
substantially all of the Equity Interests of a person, in each case where 
the aggregate consideration (in whatever form) payable by the Borrower 
or any Subsidiary exceeds $10,000,000. 
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"Administrative Agent Fees" shall have the meaning assigned to 
such term in Section 2.05(a). 
 
"Administrative Questionnaire" shall mean an Administrative 
Questionnaire in the form of Exhibit A, or such other form as may be 
supplied from time to time by the Administrative Agent. 
 
"Affiliate" shall mean, when used with respect to a specified 
person, another person that directly, or indirectly through one or more 
intermediaries, Controls or is Controlled by or is under common Control 
with the person specified. 
 
"Alternate Base Rate" shall mean, for any day, a rate per annum 
equal to the greater of (a) the Prime Rate in effect on such day and 
(b) the Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect on such day plus 1/2 of 
1%.  Any change in the Alternate Base Rate due to a change in the Prime 
Rate or the Federal Funds Effective Rate shall be effective on the 
effective date of such change in the Prime Rate or the Federal Funds 
Effective Rate, respectively. 
 
"Applicable Percentage" shall mean, for any day, with respect to 
any Eurodollar Loan or ABR Loan, as the case may be, the applicable 
percentage set forth below under the caption "LIBOR Spread" or "ABR 
Spread", as the case may be, based upon the ratings by S&P and 
Moody's, respectively, applicable on such date to the Index Debt: 
 
S&P/Moody's                          LIBOR               ABR 
  Rating                             SPREAD             SPREAD 
- -----------                       -----------         ---------- 
Category 1 
- ---------- 
Equal to or greater than A-/A3      0.625%               0.00% 
 
Category 2 
- ---------- 
BBB+/Baa1                           0.750%               0.00% 
 
Category 3 
- ---------- 
BBB/Baa2                            1.000%               0.00% 
 
Category 4 
- ---------- 
BBB-/Baa3                           1.375%               0.375% 
 
Category 5 
- ---------- 
Less than BBB-/Baa3 
(or unrated)                        1.750%               0.750% 
 
 
For purposes of the foregoing, (i) prior to the date of the initial 
rating by Moody's of the Index Debt and during any period in which 
Moody's shall not have in effect a rating for the Index Debt, the 
Applicable Percentage shall be based upon the rating by S&P of the 
Index Debt; (ii) if S&P shall not have in effect a rating for the Index 
Debt (other than by reason of the circumstances referred to in the last 
sentence of this definition), then S&P shall be deemed to have 
established a rating in Category 5; (iii) if the ratings established or 
deemed to have been established by S&P and Moody's for the Index 
Debt shall fall within different Categories, the Applicable Percentage 
shall be based on the lower of the two ratings; and (iv) if the ratings 
established or deemed to have been established by S&P and Moody's for 
the Index Debt shall be changed (other than as a result of a change in the 
rating system of S&P or Moody's), such change 
 



 
3 
 
 
shall be effective as of the date on which it is first announced by the 
applicable rating agency.  Each change in the Applicable Percentage shall 
apply during the period commencing on the effective date of such change and 
ending on the date immediately preceding the effective date of the next such 
change.  If the rating system of S&P or Moody's shall change, or if either such 
agency shall cease to be in the business of rating corporate debt obligations, 
the Borrower and the Lenders shall negotiate in good faith to amend this 
definition to reflect such changed rating system or the non-availability of 
ratings from such rating agency and, pending the effectiveness of any 
such amendment, the Applicable Percentage shall be determined by 
reference to the rating most recently in effect prior to such change or 
cessation. 
 
"Assignment and Acceptance" shall mean an assignment and 
acceptance entered into by a Lender and an assignee (with the consent of 
any party whose consent is required by Section 9.04), and accepted by 
the Administrative Agent, in the form of Exhibit B or such other form as 
shall be approved by the Administrative Agent. 
 
"Assumed Debt" shall mean (a) approximately $300,000 of 
Capital Lease Obligations of DIANON to be assumed by Merger Sub in 
connection with and as a result of the Merger and (b) the $600,000 letter 
of credit issued by First Union National Bank under the Existing 
DIANON Credit Agreement for the benefit of Steadfast Insurance 
Company. 
 
"Board" shall mean the Board of Governors of the Federal 
Reserve System of the United States of America. 
 
"Borrowing" shall mean Loans of the same Type made, 
converted or continued on the same date and, in the case of Eurodollar 
Loans, as to which a single Interest Period is in effect. 
 
"Borrowing Request" shall mean a request by the Borrower in 
accordance with the terms of Section 2.03. 
 
"Business Day" shall mean any day other than a Saturday, 
Sunday or day on which banks in New York City are authorized or 
required by law to close; provided, however, that when used in 
connection with a Eurodollar Loan, the term "Business Day" shall also 
exclude any day on which banks are not open for dealings in dollar 
deposits in the London interbank market. 
 
"Capital Lease Obligations" of any person shall mean the 
obligations of such person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease 
of (or other arrangement conveying the right to use) real or personal 
property, or a combination thereof, which obligations are required to be 
classified and accounted for as capital leases on a balance sheet of such 
person under GAAP, and the amount of such obligations shall be the 
capitalized amount thereof determined in accordance with GAAP. 
 
A "Change in Control" shall be deemed to have occurred if 
(a) any person or group (within the meaning of Rule 13d-5 of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as in effect on the date hereof) shall 
own directly or indirectly, beneficially or of record, shares representing 
more than 40% of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by 
the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Borrower or (b) a majority 
of the seats (other than vacant seats) on the board of directors of the 
Borrower shall at any time be occupied by persons who were neither 
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(i) nominated by the board of directors of the Borrower, nor 
(ii) appointed by directors so nominated. 
 
"Change in Law" shall mean (a) the adoption of any law, rule or 
regulation after the date of this Agreement, (b) any change in any law, 
rule or regulation or in the interpretation or application thereof by any 
Governmental Authority after the date of this Agreement or (c) 
compliance by any Lender (or, for purposes of Section 2.12, by any 
lending office of such Lender or by such Lender's holding company, if 
any) with any request, guideline or directive (whether or not having the 
force of law) of any Governmental Authority made or issued after the 
date of this Agreement. 
 
"Closing Date" shall mean the date that the Loans are made 
hereunder, following satisfaction or waiver of the conditions precedent 
specified in Article IV. 
 
"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended from time to time. 
 
"Commitment" shall mean, with respect to each Lender, the 
commitment of such Lender to make Loans hereunder as set forth on 
Schedule 2.01, or in the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which 
such Lender assumed its Commitment, as applicable, as the same may be 
(a) reduced from time to time pursuant to Section 2.09 and (b) reduced or 
increased from time to time pursuant to assignments by or to such Lender 
pursuant to Section 9.04. 
 
"Consolidated EBITDA" shall mean, for any period, 
Consolidated Net Income for such period plus (a) without duplication 
and to the extent deducted in determining such Consolidated Net Income, 
the sum of (i) consolidated interest expense net of interest income for 
such period, (ii) consolidated income tax expense for such period, (iii) all 
amounts attributable to depreciation and amortization for such period and 
(iv) any extraordinary charges and all non-cash write-offs and 
write-downs of amortizable and depreciable items for such period, and 
minus (b) without duplication, to the extent included in determining such 
Consolidated Net Income, any extraordinary gains and all non-cash items 
of income for such period, all determined on a consolidated basis in 
accordance with GAAP. 
 
"Consolidated Interest Expense" shall mean, for any period, the 
interest expense (including (a) imputed interest expense in respect of 
Capital Lease Obligations and (b) the amortization of original issue 
discount in connection with the Subordinated Notes and other 
Indebtedness issued with original issue discount) of the Borrower and the 
Subsidiaries for such period, net of interest income, in each case 
determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP. For 
purposes of the foregoing, interest expense shall be determined after 
giving effect to any net payments made or received by the Borrower or 
any Subsidiary with respect to interest rate Hedging Agreements. 
 
"Consolidated Net Income" shall mean, for any period, the net 
income or loss of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries for such period 
determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP. 
 
"Control" shall mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of the 
power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of a 
person, whether through the ownership of voting 
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securities, by contract or otherwise, and the terms "Controlling" and 
"Controlled" shall have meanings correlative thereto. 
 
"Debt Issuance" shall mean the public or private issuance or 
series of related issuances by the Borrower or any Subsidiary of 
Indebtedness for money borrowed in an aggregate principal amount in 
excess of $25,000,000 with a maturity greater than one year; provided, 
however, that Indebtedness incurred under (a) the Existing Borrower 
Credit Agreements or (b) Section 6.01(c) or Section 6.01(d) shall not be 
considered a "Debt Issuance" for purposes of this Agreement. 
 
"Default" shall mean any event or condition which upon notice, 
lapse of time or both would constitute an Event of Default. 
 
"DIANON" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the 
preamble to this Agreement. 
 
"dollars" or "$" shall mean lawful money of the United States of 
America. 
 
"Environmental Laws" shall mean all laws, rules, regulations, 
codes, ordinances, orders, decrees, judgments or  injunctions issued, 
promulgated or entered into by any Governmental Authority, relating to 
the environment, the preservation or reclamation of natural resources, the 
management or release of Hazardous Materials or to the effect of the 
environment on human health and safety. 
 
"Environmental Liability" shall mean liabilities, obligations, 
claims, actions, suits, judgments or orders under or relating to any 
Environmental Law for any damages, injunctive relief, losses, fines, 
penalties, fees, expenses (including fees and expenses of attorneys and 
consultants) or costs, whether contingent or otherwise, including those 
arising from or relating to (a) any action to address the on- or off-site 
presence, release of, or exposure to, Hazardous Materials, (b) permitting 
and licensing, governmental administrative oversight and financial 
assurance requirements, (c) any personal injury (including death), any 
property damage (real or personal) or natural resource damage and (d) 
the violation of any Environmental Law. 
 
"Equity Interests" shall mean shares of capital stock, partnership 
interests, membership interests in a limited liability company, beneficial 
interests in a trust or other equity interests in any person, or any 
obligations convertible into or exchangeable for, or giving any person a 
right, option or warrant to acquire such equity interests or such 
convertible or exchangeable obligations; provided that the Subordinated 
Notes are deemed not to constitute Equity Interests of the Borrower. 
 
"Equity Issuance" shall mean any issuance or sale by the 
Borrower or any Subsidiary of any Equity Interests, except (a) any 
issuance or sale to the Borrower or any Subsidiary, (b) any issuance of 
directors' qualifying shares or (c) sales or issuances of common stock, or 
options to purchase common stock, to management or employees of the 
Borrower or any Subsidiary under any employee stock option, stock 
purchase plan or other employee benefit plan in existence from time to 
time. 
 
"ERISA" shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security 
Act of 1974, as amended from time to time. 
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"ERISA Affiliate" shall mean any trade or business (whether or 
not incorporated) that, together with the Borrower, is treated as a single 
employer under Section 414(b) or (c) of the Code, or solely for purposes 
of Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the Code, is treated as a 
single employer under Section 414 of the Code. 
 
"ERISA Event" shall mean (a) any "reportable event", as defined 
in Section 4043 of ERISA or the regulations issued thereunder, with 
respect to a Plan (other than an event for which the 30-day notice period 
is waived); (b) the existence with respect to any Plan of an "accumulated 
funding deficiency" (as defined in Section 412 of the Code or 
Section 302 of ERISA), whether or not waived; (c) the filing pursuant to 
Section 412(d) of the Code or Section 303(d) of ERISA of an application 
for a waiver of the minimum funding standard with respect to any Plan; 
(d) the incurrence by the Borrower or any of its ERISA Affiliates of any 
liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect to the termination of any 
Plan or the withdrawal or partial withdrawal of the Borrower or any of its 
ERISA Affiliates from any Plan or Multiemployer Plan; (e) the receipt 
by the Borrower or any of its ERISA Affiliates from the PBGC or a plan 
administrator of any notice relating to the intention to terminate any Plan 
or Plans or to appoint a trustee to administer any Plan; (f) the adoption of 
any amendment to a Plan that would require the provision of security 
pursuant to Section 401(a)(29) of the Code or Section 307 of ERISA; (g) 
the receipt by the Borrower or any of its ERISA Affiliates of any notice, 
or the receipt by any Multiemployer Plan from the Borrower or any of its 
ERISA Affiliates of any notice, concerning the imposition of Withdrawal 
Liability or a determination that a Multiemployer Plan is, or is expected 
to be, insolvent or in reorganization, within the meaning of Title IV of 
ERISA; or (h) the occurrence of a "prohibited transaction" with respect 
to which the Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries is a "disqualified 
person" (within the meaning of Section 4975 of the Code) or with respect 
to which the Borrower or any such Subsidiary could otherwise be liable. 
 
"Eurodollar", when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, 
refers to whether such Loan, or the Loans comprising such Borrowing, 
are bearing interest at a rate determined by reference to the LIBO Rate. 
 
"Event of Default" shall have the meaning assigned to such term 
in Article VII. 
 
"Excluded Taxes" shall mean, with respect to the Administrative 
Agent, any Lender or any other recipient of any payment to be made by 
or on account of any obligation of the Borrower hereunder, (a) income, 
franchise or similar taxes imposed on (or measured by) its net income by 
the United States of America, the jurisdiction under the laws of which 
such recipient is organized or in which its principal office is located (or, 
in the case of any Lender, in which its applicable lending office is 
located), or, in the case of a jurisdiction that imposes taxes on the basis 
of management or control or other concept or principle of residence, the 
jurisdiction in which such recipient is so resident, (b) Taxes imposed by 
reason of any present or former connection between such person and the 
jurisdiction imposing such Taxes, other than solely as a result of the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement, the making of any Loans 
hereunder or the performance of any action provided for hereunder, 
(c) any branch profits taxes imposed by the United States of America or 
any similar tax imposed by any other jurisdiction in which the Borrower 
is located and (d) in the case of a Foreign Lender (other than as an 
assignee pursuant to a request by the Borrower under Section 2.19(a)), 
any withholding tax that (i) is imposed on amounts payable to such 
Foreign Lender at the time such Foreign Lender becomes a party to this 
Agreement (or designates a new lending office), except to the extent that 
such Foreign Lender (or its assignor, if 
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any) was entitled, at the time of designation of a new lending office (or 
assignment), to receive additional amounts from the Borrower with respect to 
such withholding tax pursuant to Section 2.18(a) or (ii) is attributable to 
such Foreign Lender's failure to comply with Section 2.18(e). 
 
"Existing Borrower Credit Agreements" shall mean, collectively, 
(a) the Three-Year Credit Agreement dated as of February 20, 2002, 
among the Borrower, the lenders from time to time party thereto and 
CSFB, as administrative agent, and (b) the 364-Day Credit Agreement 
dated as of January 14, 2003, among the Borrower, the lenders from time 
to time party thereto and CSFB, as administrative agent, in each case as 
amended, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time. 
 
"Existing DIANON Credit Agreement" shall mean the Loan 
Agreement dated as of February 17, 1998, between DIANON and First 
Union National Bank, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified 
from time to time. 
 
"Federal Funds Effective Rate" shall mean, for any day, the 
weighted average (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the next 1/100 of 
1%) of the rates on overnight Federal funds transactions with members 
of the Federal Reserve System arranged by Federal funds brokers, as 
published on the next succeeding Business Day by the Federal Reserve 
Bank of New York, or, if such rate is not so published for any day that is 
a Business Day, the average (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the next 
1/100 of 1%) of the quotations for the day for such transactions received 
by the Administrative Agent from three Federal funds brokers of 
recognized standing selected by it. 
 
"Fees" shall mean the Administrative Agent Fees. 
 
"Financial Officer" of any person shall mean the chief financial 
officer, principal accounting officer, Treasurer or Controller of such 
person. 
 
"Foreign Lender" shall mean any Lender that is organized under 
the laws of a jurisdiction other than that in which the Borrower is 
located. For purposes of this definition, the United States of America, 
each State thereof and the District of Columbia shall be deemed to 
constitute a single jurisdiction. 
 
"GAAP" shall mean generally accepted accounting principles 
applied on a consistent basis. 
 
"Governmental Authority" shall mean any Federal, state, local or 
foreign court or governmental agency, authority, instrumentality or 
regulatory body. 
 
"Granting Lender" shall have the meaning assigned to such term 
in Section 9.04(i). 
 
"Guarantee" of or by any person (the "guarantor") shall mean 
any obligation, contingent or otherwise, of such person guaranteeing or 
having the economic effect of guaranteeing any Indebtedness of any 
other person (the "primary obligor") in any manner, whether directly or 
indirectly, and including any obligation of the guarantor, direct or 
indirect, (a) to purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds for the 
purchase or payment of) such Indebtedness or to purchase (or to advance 
or supply funds for the purchase of) any security for the payment of such 
Indebtedness, (b) to purchase or lease property, securities or services for 
the purpose of assuring 
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the owner of such Indebtedness of the payment of such Indebtedness or other 
obligation, (c) to maintain working capital, equity capital or any other 
financial statement condition or liquidity of the primary obligor so as to 
enable the primary obligor to pay such Indebtedness or (d) as an account party 
in respect of any letter of credit or letter of guaranty issued to support 
such Indebtedness; provided, however, that the term "Guarantee" shall not 
include endorsements for collection or deposit in the ordinary course of 
business. 
 
"Hazardous Materials" shall mean (a) petroleum products and 
byproducts, asbestos, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, 
polychlorinated biphenyls, radon gas, chlorofluorocarbons and all other 
ozone-depleting substances and (b) any chemical, material, substance, 
waste, pollutant or contaminant that is prohibited, limited or regulated by 
or pursuant to any Environmental Law. 
 
"Hedging Agreement" shall mean any interest rate protection 
agreement, foreign currency exchange agreement, commodity price 
protection agreement or other interest or currency exchange rate or 
commodity price hedging arrangement. 
 
"Indebtedness" of any person shall mean, without duplication, 
(a) all obligations of such person for borrowed money, (b) all obligations 
of such person evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar 
instruments, (c) all obligations of such person under conditional sale or 
other title retention agreements relating to property or assets purchased 
by such person, (d) all obligations of such person issued or assumed as 
the deferred purchase price of property or services (excluding trade 
accounts payable and accrued obligations incurred in the ordinary course 
of business), (e) all Indebtedness of others secured by (or for which the 
holder of such Indebtedness has an existing right, contingent or 
otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien on property owned or acquired by 
such person, whether or not the obligations secured thereby have been 
assumed, (f) all Guarantees by such person of Indebtedness of others, 
(g) all Capital Lease Obligations of such person, (h) all obligations, 
contingent or otherwise, of such person as an account party in respect of 
letters of credit and letters of guaranty, (i) all obligations, contingent or 
otherwise, of such person in respect of bankers' acceptances and (j) all 
obligations of such person to make contingent cash payments in respect 
of any acquisition, to the extent such obligations are or are required to be 
shown as liabilities on the balance sheet of such person in accordance 
with GAAP.  The Indebtedness of any person shall include the 
Indebtedness of any other entity (including any partnership in which such 
person is a general partner) to the extent such person is liable therefor as 
a result of such person's ownership interest in or other relationship with 
such entity, except to the extent the terms of such Indebtedness provide 
that such person is not liable therefor. 
 
"Indemnified Taxes" shall mean Taxes other than Excluded 
Taxes. 
 
"Index Debt" shall mean the senior, unsecured, non-credit 
enhanced, long-term indebtedness for borrowed money of the Borrower. 
 
"Interest Coverage Ratio" shall mean, for any period, the ratio of 
(a) Consolidated EBITDA for such period to (b) Consolidated Interest 
Expense for such period. 
 
"Interest Payment Date" shall mean (a) with respect to any ABR 
Loan, the last Business Day of each March, June, September and 
December and (b) with respect to any Eurodollar Loan, the last day of 
the Interest Period applicable to the Borrowing of which such Loan is a 
part and, in the case of a Eurodollar Borrowing with an Interest Period of 
more than three months' duration, 
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each day that would have been an Interest Payment Date had successive Interest 
Periods of three months' duration been applicable to such Borrowing. 
 
"Interest Period" shall mean, with respect to any Eurodollar 
Borrowing, the period commencing on the date of such Borrowing and 
ending on the numerically corresponding day (or, if there is no 
numerically corresponding day, on the last day) in the calendar month 
that is 1, 2, 3 or 6 months thereafter, as the Borrower may elect; 
provided, however, that if any Interest Period would end on a day other 
than a Business Day, such Interest Period shall be extended to the next 
succeeding Business Day unless such next succeeding Business Day 
would fall in the next calendar month, in which case such Interest Period 
shall end on the next preceding Business Day.  Interest shall accrue from 
and including the first day of an Interest Period to but excluding the last 
day of such Interest Period. For purposes hereof, the date of a Borrowing 
initially shall be the date on which such Borrowing is made and 
thereafter shall be the effective date of the most recent conversion or 
continuation of such Borrowing. 
 
"Lenders" shall mean (a) the persons listed on Schedule 2.01 
(other than any such person that has ceased to be a party hereto pursuant 
to an Assignment and Acceptance) and (b) any person that has become a 
party hereto pursuant to an Assignment and Acceptance. 
 
"Leverage Ratio" shall mean, for any period, the ratio of Total 
Debt on the last day of such  period to Consolidated EBITDA for such 
period.  Solely for purposes of this definition, if at the time of any 
determination of the Leverage Ratio an Acquisition shall have been 
completed during the relevant period, the Consolidated EBITDA for such 
period shall be reformulated on a pro forma basis to give effect to such 
Acquisition as if it had occurred on the first day of such period.  For 
purposes of the foregoing, all pro forma adjustments shall be (a) only 
those required or permitted by Regulation S-X of the Securities Act of 
1933 or otherwise based on reasonably detailed written assumptions 
reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent and (b) certified by a 
Financial Officer of the Borrower as having been prepared in good faith 
based upon reasonable assumptions. 
 
"LIBO Rate" shall mean, with respect to any Eurodollar 
Borrowing for any Interest Period, the rate per annum determined by the 
Administrative Agent at approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, on the 
date that is two Business Days prior to the commencement of such 
Interest Period by reference to the British Bankers' Association Interest 
Settlement Rates for deposits in dollars (as set forth by the Bloomberg 
Information Service or any successor thereto or any other service 
selected by the Administrative Agent which has been nominated by the 
British Bankers' Association as an authorized information vendor for the 
purpose of displaying such rates) for a period equal to such Interest 
Period; provided that, to the extent that an interest rate is not 
ascertainable pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this definition, the 
"LIBO Rate" shall be the interest rate per annum determined by the 
Administrative Agent to be the average of the rates per annum at which 
dollar deposits of $10,000,000 are offered for such relevant Interest 
Period to major banks in the London interbank market in London, 
England by the Administrative Agent at approximately 11:00 a.m. 
(London time) on the date that is two Business Days prior to the 
beginning of such Interest Period. 
 
"Lien" shall mean, with respect to any asset, (a) any mortgage, 
deed of trust, lien, pledge, encumbrance, charge or security interest in or 
on such asset or (b) the interest of a vendor or a lessor under any 
conditional sale agreement, capital lease or title retention agreement (or 
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any financing lease having substantially the same economic effect as any 
of the foregoing) relating to such asset. 
 
"Loans" shall mean the Loans made by the Lenders to the 
Borrower on the Closing Date.  Each Loan shall be a Eurodollar Loan or 
an ABR Loan. 
 
"Margin Stock" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in 
Regulation U. 
 
"Material Adverse Effect" shall mean a materially adverse effect 
on the financial condition, results of operations or business of the 
Borrower and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. 
 
"Material Indebtedness" shall mean Indebtedness (other than the 
Loans), or obligations in respect of one or more Hedging Agreements, of 
any one or more of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries in an aggregate 
principal amount exceeding $50,000,000.  For purposes of determining 
Material Indebtedness, the "principal amount" of the obligations of the 
Borrower or any Subsidiary in respect of any Hedging Agreement at any 
time shall be the maximum aggregate amount (giving effect to any 
netting agreements) that the Borrower or such Subsidiary would be 
required to pay if such Hedging Agreement were terminated at such time. 
 
"Material Subsidiary" shall mean at any time any Subsidiary, 
except Subsidiaries which, if aggregated and considered as a single 
Subsidiary, would not meet the definition of a "significant subsidiary" 
contained as of the date hereof in Regulation S-X of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 
 
"Maturity Date" shall mean January 16, 2004. 
 
"Merger" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the 
preamble to this Agreement. 
 
"Merger Agreement" shall mean the Agreement and Plan of 
Merger dated as of November 10, 2002, by and among the Borrower, 
Merger Sub and DIANON, as amended, supplemented or otherwise 
modified from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof. 
 
"Merger Sub" shall mean DaVinci Development, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation. 
 
"Moody's" shall mean Moody's Investors Service, Inc. 
 
"Multiemployer Plan" shall mean a multiemployer plan as 
defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA. 
 
"Net Cash Proceeds" shall mean, with respect to any Debt 
Issuance or Equity Issuance, the cash proceeds thereof, net of 
underwriting commissions or placement fees and any other fees and 
expenses directly incurred in connection therewith. 
 
"Other Taxes" shall mean any and all present or future stamp or 
documentary taxes or any other excise or property taxes, charges or 
similar levies arising from any payment made under this Agreement or 
from the execution, delivery or enforcement of, or otherwise with respect 
to, this Agreement. 
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"PBGC" shall mean the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation 
referred to and defined in ERISA. 
 
"person" shall mean any natural person, corporation, business 
trust, joint venture, association, company, limited liability company, 
partnership, Governmental Authority or other entity. 
 
"Plan" shall mean any employee pension benefit plan (other than 
a Multiemployer Plan) subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA or 
Section 412 of the Code or Section 307 of ERISA, and in respect of 
which the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate is (or, if such plan were 
terminated, would under Section 4069 of ERISA be deemed to be) an 
"employer" as defined in Section 3(5) of ERISA. 
 
"Prime Rate" shall mean the rate of interest per annum publicly 
announced from time to time by the Administrative Agent as its prime 
rate in effect at its principal office in New York City; each change in the 
Prime Rate shall be effective on the date such change is publicly 
announced as being effective. 
 
"Register" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in 
Section 9.04(d). 
 
"Regulation T" shall mean Regulation T of the Board as from 
time to time in effect and all official rulings and interpretations 
thereunder or thereof. 
 
"Regulation U" shall mean Regulation U of the Board as from 
time to time in effect and all official rulings and interpretations 
thereunder or thereof. 
 
"Regulation X" shall mean Regulation X of the Board as from 
time to time in effect and all official rulings and interpretations 
thereunder or thereof. 
 
"Related Parties" shall mean, with respect to any specified 
person, such person's Affiliates and the respective directors, officers, 
employees, agents and advisors of such person and such person's 
Affiliates. 
 
"Required Lenders" shall mean, at any time, Lenders having 
Commitments (or, if the Commitments have terminated, Loans) 
representing at least a majority of the Total Commitment (or if the 
Commitments have terminated, the aggregate amount of Loans 
outstanding) at such time. 
 
"Restricted Payment" shall mean (a) any dividend or other 
distribution (whether in cash, securities or other property) with respect to 
any Equity Interests in the Borrower or any Subsidiary, or (b) any 
payment (whether in cash, securities or other property), including any 
sinking fund or similar deposit, other than a payment to the extent 
consisting of Equity Interests  of equal or junior ranking, on account of 
the purchase, redemption, retirement, acquisition, cancellation or 
termination of any Equity Interests in the Borrower or any Subsidiary.  It 
is understood that the withholding of shares, and the payment of cash to 
the Internal Revenue Service in an amount not to exceed the value of the 
withheld shares, by the Company in connection with any of its stock 
incentive plans shall not constitute Restricted Payments. 
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"S&P" shall mean Standard & Poor's Ratings Service. 
 
"Senior Notes" shall mean senior unsecured notes of the 
Borrower issued on or after the Closing Date. 
 
"SPC" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 
9.04(i). 
 
"Subordinated Notes" shall mean the Borrower's Zero Coupon 
Liquid Yield Option (Subordinated Convertible) Notes due 2021, in an 
aggregate principal amount at maturity of $744,000,000. 
 
"Subordinated Note Documents" shall mean the indenture under 
which the Subordinated Notes were issued and all other instruments, 
agreements and other documents evidencing or governing the 
Subordinated Notes or providing for any Guarantee or other right in 
respect thereof. 
 
"subsidiary" shall mean, with respect to any person (herein 
referred to as the "parent"), any corporation, partnership, association or 
other business entity (a) of which securities or other ownership interests 
representing more than 50% of the equity or more than 50% of the 
ordinary voting power or more than 50% of the general partnership 
interests are, at the time any determination is being made, owned, 
controlled or held, or (b) that is, at the time any determination is made, 
otherwise Controlled, by the parent or one or more subsidiaries of the 
parent or by the parent and one or more subsidiaries of the parent. 
 
"Subsidiary" shall mean any subsidiary of the Borrower. 
 
"Synthetic Purchase Agreement" shall mean any swap, 
derivative or other agreement or combination of agreements pursuant to 
which the Borrower or any Subsidiary is or may become obligated to 
make (a) any payment in connection with a purchase by any third party 
from a person other than the Borrower or any Subsidiary of any Equity 
Interest or (b) any payment (other than on account of a permitted 
purchase by it of any Equity Interest) the amount of which is determined 
by reference to the price or value at any time of any Equity Interest; 
provided that no phantom stock or similar plan providing for payments 
only to current or former directors, officers or employees of the 
Borrower or the Subsidiaries (or to their heirs or estates) shall be deemed 
to be a Synthetic Purchase Agreement. 
 
"Taxes" shall mean any and all present or future taxes, levies, 
imposts, duties, deductions, charges, liabilities or withholdings imposed 
by any Governmental Authority. 
 
"Total Debt" shall mean, at any time, the total Indebtedness of 
the Borrower and the Subsidiaries at such time (excluding Indebtedness 
of the type described in clause (h) of the definition of such term, except 
to the extent of any unreimbursed drawings thereunder). 
 
"Total Commitment" shall mean, at any time, the aggregate 
amount of the Commitments, as in effect at such time.  The initial Total 
Commitment is $350,000,000. 
 
"Transactions" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in 
Section 3.02. 
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"Type", when used in respect of any Loan or Borrowing, shall 
refer to the Rate by reference to which interest on such Loan or on the 
Loans comprising such Borrowing is determined.  For purposes hereof, 
the term "Rate" shall include the LIBO Rate and the Alternate Base Rate. 
 
"wholly owned Subsidiary" of any person shall mean a 
subsidiary of such person of which securities (except for directors' 
qualifying shares) or other ownership interests representing 100% of the 
Equity Interests are, at the time any determination is being made, owned, 
controlled or held by such person or one or more wholly owned 
Subsidiaries of such person or by such person and one or more wholly 
owned Subsidiaries of such person. 
 
"Withdrawal Liability" shall mean liability to a Multiemployer 
Plan as a result of a complete or partial withdrawal from such 
Multiemployer Plan, as such terms are defined in Part I of Subtitle E of 
Title IV of ERISA. 
 
SECTION 1.02.  Terms Generally.  The definitions in 
Section 1.01 shall apply equally to both the singular and plural forms of 
the terms defined.  Whenever the context may require, any pronoun shall 
include the corresponding masculine, feminine and neuter forms.  The 
words "include", "includes" and "including" shall be deemed to be 
followed by the phrase "without limitation".  The word "will" shall be 
construed to have the same meaning and effect as the word "shall"; and 
the words "asset" and "property" shall be construed as having the same 
meaning and effect and to refer to any and all tangible and intangible 
assets and properties, including cash, securities, accounts and contract 
rights.  All references herein to Articles, Sections, Exhibits and 
Schedules shall be deemed references to Articles and Sections of, and 
Exhibits and Schedules to, this Agreement unless the context shall 
otherwise require.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all 
terms of an accounting or financial nature shall be construed in 
accordance with GAAP, as in effect from time to time; provided, 
however, that if the Borrower notifies the Administrative Agent that the 
Borrower wishes to amend any covenant in Article VI or any related 
definition to eliminate the effect of any change in GAAP occurring after 
the date of this Agreement on the operation of such covenant (or if the 
Administrative Agent notifies the Borrower that the Required Lenders 
wish to amend Article VI or any related definition for such purpose), 
then the Borrower's compliance with such covenant shall be determined 
on the basis of GAAP in effect immediately before the relevant change in 
GAAP became effective, until either such notice is withdrawn or such 
covenant is amended in a manner satisfactory to the Borrower and the 
Required Lenders. 
 
ARTICLE II 
 
The Credits 
 
SECTION 2.01.  Commitments. Subject to the terms and 
conditions and relying upon the representations and warranties herein set 
forth, each Lender agrees, severally and not jointly, to make Loans to the 
Borrower on the Closing Date, in an aggregate principal amount not to 
exceed such Lender's Commitment.  Amounts repaid or prepaid in 
respect of the Loans may not be reborrowed. 
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SECTION 2.02.  Loans.  Each Loan shall be made as part of 
a Borrowing consisting of Loans made by the Lenders ratably in 
accordance with their respective Commitments; provided, however, that 
the failure of any Lender to make any Loan shall not in itself relieve any 
other Lender of its obligation to lend hereunder (it being understood, 
however, that no Lender shall be responsible for the failure of any other 
Lender to make any Loan required to be made by such other Lender). 
 
(b)  Subject to Sections 2.08 and 2.13, each Borrowing shall be 
comprised entirely of ABR Loans or Eurodollar Loans as the Borrower 
may request pursuant to Section 2.03.  Each Lender may at its option 
make any Eurodollar Loan by causing any domestic or foreign branch or 
Affiliate of such Lender to make such Loan; provided that any exercise 
of such option shall not affect the obligation of the Borrower to repay 
such Loan in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  Borrowings 
of more than one Type may be outstanding at the same time; provided, 
however, that the Borrower shall not be entitled to request any 
Borrowing that, if made, would result in more than three Eurodollar 
Borrowings outstanding hereunder at any time.  For purposes of the 
foregoing, Borrowings having different Interest Periods, regardless of 
whether they commence on the same date, shall be considered separate 
Borrowings. 
 
(c)  Each Lender shall make each Loan to be made by it 
hereunder on the Closing Date by wire transfer of immediately available 
funds to such account in New York City as the Administrative Agent 
may designate not later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, and the 
Administrative Agent shall promptly credit the amounts so received to an 
account in the name of the Borrower and designated by the Borrower in 
the Borrowing Request or, if a Borrowing shall not occur on such date 
because any condition precedent herein specified shall not have been 
met, return the amounts so received to the respective Lenders. 
 
(d)  Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice 
from a Lender prior to the date of any Borrowing that such Lender will 
not make available to the Administrative Agent such Lender's portion of 
such Borrowing, the Administrative Agent may assume that such Lender 
has made such portion available to the Administrative Agent on the date 
of such Borrowing in accordance with paragraph (c) above and the 
Administrative Agent may, in reliance upon such assumption, make 
available to the Borrower on such date a corresponding amount.  If the 
Administrative Agent shall have so made funds available then, to the 
extent that such Lender shall not have made such portion available to the 
Administrative Agent, such Lender and the Borrower severally agree to 
repay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand such 
corresponding amount together with interest thereon, for each day from 
the date such amount is made available to the Borrower until the date 
such amount is repaid to the Administrative Agent at (i) in the case of the 
Borrower, the interest rate applicable at the time to the Loans comprising 
such Borrowing and (ii) in the case of such Lender, a rate determined by 
the Administrative Agent to represent its cost of overnight or short-term 
funds (which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error).  If 
such Lender shall repay to the Administrative Agent such corresponding 
amount, such amount shall constitute such Lender's Loan as part of such 
Borrowing for purposes of this Agreement. 
 
(e)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the 
Borrower shall not be entitled to request any Borrowing if the Interest 
Period requested with respect thereto would end after the Maturity Date. 
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SECTION 2.03.  Borrowing Procedure. In order to request the 
initial Borrowing, the Borrower shall notify the Administrative Agent of 
such request by telephone (a) in the case of a Eurodollar Borrowing, not 
later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, three Business Days before 
the proposed Borrowing, and (b) in the case of an ABR Borrowing, not 
later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the day of the proposed 
Borrowing.  The Borrowing Request shall be irrevocable, shall be 
confirmed promptly by hand delivery or telecopy to the Administrative 
Agent of a written Borrowing Request substantially in the form of 
Exhibit C or such other form as shall be acceptable to the Administrative 
Agent and shall specify the following information: (i) whether the 
Borrowing then being requested is to be a Eurodollar Borrowing or an 
ABR Borrowing; (ii) the date of such Borrowing (which shall be a 
Business Day); (iii) the number and location of the account to which 
funds are to be disbursed (which shall be an account that complies with 
the requirements of Section 2.02(c)); (iv) the amount of such Borrowing; 
and (v) if such Borrowing is to be a Eurodollar Borrowing, the Interest 
Period with respect thereto; provided, however, that, notwithstanding any 
contrary specification in the Borrowing Request, each requested 
Borrowing shall comply with the requirements set forth in Section 2.02. 
If no election as to the Type of Borrowing is specified in any such notice, 
then the requested Borrowing shall be an ABR Borrowing.  If no Interest 
Period with respect to any Eurodollar Borrowing is specified in any such 
notice, then the Borrower shall be deemed to have selected an Interest 
Period of one month's duration.  The Administrative Agent shall 
promptly advise the Lenders of any notice given pursuant to this 
Section 2.03 (and the contents thereof), and of each Lender's portion of 
the requested Borrowing. 
 
SECTION 2.04.  Evidence of Debt; Repayment of Loans. 
The Borrower hereby unconditionally promises to pay to the 
Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender the then unpaid 
principal amount of each Loan of such Lender on the Maturity Date. 
 
(b)  Each Lender shall maintain in accordance with its usual 
practice an account or accounts evidencing the indebtedness of the 
Borrower to such Lender resulting from each Loan made by such Lender 
from time to time, including the amounts of principal and interest 
payable and paid to such Lender from time to time under this Agreement. 
 
(c)  The Administrative Agent shall maintain accounts in which 
it will record (i) the amount of each Loan made hereunder, the Type 
thereof and the Interest Period applicable thereto, (ii) the amount of any 
principal or interest due and payable or to become due and payable from 
the Borrower to each Lender hereunder and (iii) the amount of any sum 
received by the Administrative Agent hereunder from the Borrower and 
each Lender's share thereof. 
 
(d)  The entries made in the accounts maintained pursuant to 
paragraphs (b) and (c) above shall be prima facie evidence of the 
existence and amounts of the obligations therein recorded; provided, 
however, that the failure of any Lender or the Administrative Agent to 
maintain such accounts or any error therein shall not in any manner 
affect the obligations of the Borrower to repay the Loans in accordance 
with their terms. 
 
(e)  Any Lender may request that the Loans made by it hereunder 
be evidenced by a promissory note.  In such event, the Borrower shall 
execute and deliver to such Lender a promissory note payable to such 
Lender and its registered assigns and in a form and substance reasonably 
acceptable to the Administrative Agent and the Borrower. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event any 
Lender shall request and receive such a promissory 
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note, the interests represented by such note shall at all times (including 
after any assignment of all or part of such interests pursuant to 
Section 9.04) be represented by one or more promissory notes payable to the 
payee named therein or its registered assigns. 
 
SECTION 2.05.  Fees.  The Borrower agrees to pay to the 
Administrative Agent, for its own account, the administrative fees 
separately agreed to in writing from time to time by the Borrower and the 
Administrative Agent (the "Administrative Agent Fees"). 
 
(b)  All Fees shall be paid on the dates due, in immediately 
available funds, to the Administrative Agent for distribution, if and as 
appropriate, among the Lenders.  Once paid, none of the Fees shall be 
refundable under any circumstances. 
 
SECTION 2.06.  Interest on Loans.  Subject to the provisions 
of Section 2.07, the Loans comprising each ABR Borrowing shall bear 
interest (computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed 
(including the first day but excluding the last day) over a year of 365 or 
366 days, as the case may be, when the Alternate Base Rate is 
determined by reference to the Prime Rate and over a year of 360 days at 
all other times) at a rate per annum equal to the Alternate Base Rate plus 
the Applicable Percentage in effect from time to time. 
 
(b)  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.07, the Loans 
comprising each Eurodollar Borrowing shall bear interest (computed on 
the basis of the actual number of days elapsed (including the first day but 
excluding the last day) over a year of 360 days) at a rate per annum equal 
to the LIBO Rate for the Interest Period in effect for such Borrowing 
plus the Applicable Percentage from time to time in effect. 
 
(c)  Interest on each Loan shall be payable on the Interest 
Payment Dates applicable to such Loan except as otherwise provided in 
this Agreement; provided that (i) in the event of any repayment or 
prepayment of any Loan (other than a prepayment of an ABR Loan), 
accrued interest on the principal amount repaid or prepaid shall be 
payable on the date of such repayment or prepayment and (ii) in the 
event of any conversion of any Eurodollar Loan prior to the end of the 
current Interest Period therefor, accrued interest on such Loan shall be 
payable on the effective date of such conversion.  The applicable 
Alternate Base Rate or LIBO Rate for each Interest Period or day within 
an Interest Period, as the case may be, shall be determined by the 
Administrative Agent, and such determination shall be conclusive absent 
manifest error. 
 
SECTION 2.07.  Default Interest. If the Borrower shall default 
in the payment of the principal of or interest on any Loan or any other 
amount becoming due hereunder, by acceleration or otherwise, the 
Borrower shall on demand from time to time pay interest, to the extent 
permitted by law, on such defaulted amount to but excluding the date of 
actual payment (after as well as before judgment) (a) in the case of 
overdue principal, at the rate otherwise applicable to such Loan pursuant 
to Section 2.06 plus 2.00% per annum and (b) in all other cases, at a rate 
per annum (computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed 
(including the first day but excluding the last day) over a year of 365 or 
366 days, as the case may be, when determined by reference to the Prime 
Rate and over a year of 360 days at all other times) equal to the rate that 
would be applicable to an ABR Loan plus 2.00%. 
 
SECTION 2.08.  Alternate Rate of Interest.   In the event, and on 
each occasion, that on the day two Business Days prior to the 
commencement of any Interest Period for a Eurodollar 
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Borrowing the Administrative Agent shall have determined that dollar deposits 
in the principal amounts of the Loans comprising such Borrowing are not 
generally available in the London interbank market, or that reasonable 
means do not exist for ascertaining the LIBO Rate, or the Administrative 
Agent shall have been informed by the Required Lenders that the rates at 
which such dollar deposits are being offered will not adequately and 
fairly reflect the cost to the Required Lenders of making or maintaining 
their or its Eurodollar Loan during such Interest Period, the 
Administrative Agent shall, as soon as practicable thereafter, give written 
or telecopy notice thereof to the Borrower and the Lenders.  In the event 
of any such notice, until the Administrative Agent shall have advised the 
Borrower and the Lenders that the circumstances giving rise to such 
notice no longer exist, (i) any request by the Borrower for a Eurodollar 
Borrowing pursuant to Section 2.04 shall be deemed to be a request for 
an ABR Borrowing and (ii) any request by the Borrower to convert an 
ABR Borrowing to a Eurodollar Borrowing pursuant to Section 2.10 
shall be of no force and effect and shall be denied by the Administrative 
Agent.  Each determination by the Administrative Agent under this 
Section 2.08 shall be conclusive absent manifest error. 
 
SECTION 2.09.  Termination and Reduction of Commitments. 
 The Commitments shall automatically terminate after the making of 
the Loans on the Closing Date; provided, however, that the 
Commitments shall terminate at 5:00 p.m. New York City time, on 
February 15, 2003, if the Closing Date shall not have occurred by such 
time. 
 
(b)  Upon at least three Business Days' prior irrevocable written 
or telecopy notice (or telephone notice promptly confirmed by written or 
telecopy notice) to the Administrative Agent, the Borrower may at any 
time in whole permanently terminate, or from time to time in part 
permanently reduce, the Commitments; provided, however, that each 
partial reduction of the Commitments shall be in an integral multiple of 
$1,000,000 and in a minimum amount of $10,000,000. 
 
(c)  Each reduction in the Commitments hereunder shall be made 
ratably among the Lenders in accordance with their respective 
Commitments. 
 
SECTION 2.10.  Conversion and Continuation of Borrowings. 
The Borrower shall have the right at any time upon prior irrevocable 
written or telecopy notice (or telephone notice promptly confirmed by 
written or telecopy notice) to the Administrative Agent (a) not later than 
11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the day of conversion, to convert 
any Eurodollar Borrowing into an ABR Borrowing, (b) not later than 
11:00 a.m., New York City time, three Business Days prior to conversion 
or continuation, to convert any ABR Borrowing into a Eurodollar 
Borrowing or to continue any Eurodollar Borrowing as a Eurodollar 
Borrowing for an additional Interest Period, and (c) not later than 
11:00 a.m., New York City time, three Business Days prior to 
conversion, to convert the Interest Period with respect to any Eurodollar 
Borrowing to another permissible Interest Period, subject in each case to 
the following: 
 
(i) each conversion or continuation shall be made pro 
rata among the Lenders in accordance with the respective 
principal amounts of the Loans comprising the converted or 
continued Borrowing; 
 
(ii) if less than all the outstanding principal amount of 
any Borrowing shall be converted or continued, then each 
resulting Borrowing shall satisfy the limitations 
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specified in Sections 2.02(a) and 2.02(b) regarding the principal amount 
and maximum number of Borrowings of the relevant Type; 
 
(iii) each conversion shall be effected by each Lender 
and the Administrative Agent by recording for the account of 
such Lender the new Loan of such Lender resulting from such 
conversion and reducing the Loan (or portion thereof) of such 
Lender being converted by an equivalent principal amount; 
accrued interest on any Eurodollar Loan (or portion thereof) 
being converted shall be paid by the Borrower at the time of 
conversion; 
 
(iv) if any Eurodollar Borrowing is converted at a time 
other than the end of the Interest Period applicable thereto, the 
Borrower shall pay, upon demand, any amounts due to the 
Lenders pursuant to Section 2.14; 
 
(v) any portion of a Borrowing maturing or required to 
be repaid in less than one month may not be converted into or 
continued as a Eurodollar Borrowing; 
 
(vi) any portion of a Eurodollar Borrowing that cannot 
be converted into or continued as a Eurodollar Borrowing by 
reason of the immediately preceding clause shall be 
automatically converted at the end of the Interest Period in effect 
for such Borrowing into an ABR Borrowing; and 
 
(vii) upon notice to the Borrower from the 
Administrative Agent given at the request of the Required 
Lenders, after the occurrence and during the continuance of a 
Default or Event of Default, no outstanding Loan may be 
converted into, or continued as, a Eurodollar Loan and, unless 
repaid, each Eurodollar Borrowing shall be converted into an 
ABR Borrowing at the end of the Interest Period applicable 
thereto. 
 
Each notice pursuant to this Section 2.10 shall refer to this 
Agreement and specify (i) the identity and amount of the Borrowing that 
the Borrower requests be converted or continued, (ii) whether such 
Borrowing is to be converted to or continued as a Eurodollar Borrowing 
or an ABR Borrowing, (iii) if such notice requests a conversion, the date 
of such conversion (which shall be a Business Day) and (iv) if such 
Borrowing is to be converted to or continued as a Eurodollar Borrowing, 
the Interest Period with respect thereto.  If no Interest Period is specified 
in any such notice with respect to any conversion to or continuation as a 
Eurodollar Borrowing, the Borrower shall be deemed to have selected an 
Interest Period of one month's duration.  The Administrative Agent shall 
advise the Lenders of any notice given pursuant to this Section 2.10 and 
of each Lender's portion of any converted or continued Borrowing.  If 
the Borrower shall not have given notice in accordance with this 
Section 2.10 to continue any Borrowing into a subsequent Interest Period 
(and shall not otherwise have given notice in accordance with this 
Section 2.10 to convert such Borrowing), such Borrowing shall, at the 
end of the Interest Period applicable thereto (unless repaid pursuant to 
the terms hereof), automatically be continued into an ABR Borrowing. 
 
SECTION 2.11.  Prepayment.  The Borrower shall have the 
right at any time and from time to time to prepay any Borrowing, in 
whole or in part, upon at least three Business Days' prior written or 
telecopy notice (or telephone notice promptly confirmed by written or 
telecopy notice) in the case of Eurodollar Loans, or written or telecopy 
notice (or telephone notice promptly confirmed by written or telecopy 
notice) on the day of prepayment in the case of ABR 
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Loans, to the Administrative Agent before 11:00 a.m., New York City time; 
provided, however, that each partial prepayment shall be in an amount that is 
an integral multiple of $1,000,000 and not less than $10,000,000. 
 
(b)  In the event and on each occasion that any Net Cash 
Proceeds are received by or on behalf of the Borrower or any Subsidiary 
in respect of any Debt Issuance or Equity Issuance, the Borrower shall, 
within one Business Day immediately following the date on which such 
Net Cash Proceeds are received, prepay Borrowings in an aggregate 
amount equal to 100% of such Net Cash Proceeds. 
 
(c)  The Borrower shall deliver to the Administrative Agent, at 
the time of each partial prepayment of the Loans pursuant to 
Section 2.11(b), (i) a certificate signed by a Financial Officer of the 
Borrower setting forth in reasonable detail the calculation of the amount 
of such prepayment, and (ii) to the extent practicable, at least three 
Business Days' prior written notice of such prepayment. 
 
(d)  Each notice of prepayment shall specify the prepayment date 
and the principal amount of each Borrowing (or portion thereof) to be 
prepaid, shall be irrevocable and shall commit the Borrower to prepay 
such Borrowing by the amount stated therein on the date stated therein. 
All prepayments under this Section 2.11 shall be subject to Section 2.14 
but otherwise without premium or penalty.  All prepayments under this 
Section 2.11 (other than prepayment of an ABR Loan that does not occur 
in connection with, or as a result of, the prepayment in full of the Loans) 
shall be accompanied by accrued and unpaid interest on the principal 
amount to be prepaid to but excluding the date of payment. 
 
SECTION 2.12.  Reserve Requirements; Change in 
Circumstances.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, if any Change in Law shall impose, modify or deem 
applicable any reserve, special deposit or similar requirement against 
assets of, deposits with or for the account of or credit extended by any 
Lender or shall impose on such Lender or the London interbank market 
any other condition affecting this Agreement or Eurodollar Loans made 
by such Lender, and the result of any of the foregoing shall be to increase 
the cost to such Lender of making or maintaining any Eurodollar Loan or 
to reduce the amount of any sum received or receivable by such Lender 
hereunder (whether of principal, interest or otherwise) by an amount 
deemed by such Lender to be material, then the Borrower will pay to 
such Lender upon demand such additional amount or amounts as will 
compensate such Lender for such additional costs incurred or reduction 
suffered. 
 
(b)  If any Lender shall have determined that any Change in Law 
regarding capital adequacy has or would have the effect of reducing the 
rate of return on such Lender's capital or on the capital of such Lender's 
holding company, if any, as a consequence of this Agreement or the 
Loans made to a level below that which such Lender or such Lender's 
holding company could have achieved but for such Change in Law 
(taking into consideration such Lender's policies and the policies of such 
Lender's holding company with respect to capital adequacy) by an 
amount deemed by such Lender to be material, then from time to time 
the Borrower shall pay to such Lender such additional amount or 
amounts as will compensate such Lender or such Lender's holding 
company for any such reduction suffered. 
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(c)  A certificate of a Lender setting forth the amount or amounts 
necessary to compensate such Lender or its holding company, as 
applicable, as specified in paragraph (a) or (b) above shall be delivered to 
the Borrower and shall be conclusive absent manifest error.  The 
Borrower shall pay such Lender the amount shown as due on any such 
certificate delivered by it within 15 days after its receipt of the same. 
 
(d)  Failure or delay on the part of any Lender to demand 
compensation for any increased costs or reduction in amounts received or 
receivable or reduction in return on capital shall not constitute a waiver 
of such Lender's right to demand such compensation; provided that the 
Borrower shall not be under any obligation to compensate any Lender 
under paragraph (a) or (b) above with respect to increased costs or 
reductions with respect to any period prior to the date that is 120 days 
prior to such request if such Lender knew or could reasonably have been 
expected to know of the circumstances giving rise to such increased costs 
or reductions and of the fact that such circumstances could reasonably be 
expected to result in a claim for increased compensation by reason of 
such increased costs or reductions; provided further that the foregoing 
limitation shall not apply to any increased costs or reductions arising out 
of the retroactive application of any Change in Law within such 120-day 
period.  The protection of this Section shall be available to each Lender 
regardless of any possible contention of the invalidity or inapplicability 
of the Change in Law that shall have occurred or been imposed. 
 
SECTION 2.13.  Change in Legality.  Notwithstanding any 
other provision of this Agreement, if any Change in Law shall make it 
unlawful for any Lender to make or maintain any Eurodollar Loan or to 
give effect to its obligations as contemplated hereby with respect to any 
Eurodollar Loan, then, by written notice to the Borrower and to the 
Administrative Agent: 
 
(i) such Lender may declare that Eurodollar Loans will 
not thereafter (for the duration of such unlawfulness) be made by 
such Lender hereunder (or be continued for additional Interest 
Periods and ABR Loans will not thereafter (for such duration) be 
converted into Eurodollar Loans), and any request for a 
Eurodollar Borrowing (or to convert an ABR Borrowing to a 
Eurodollar Borrowing or to continue a Eurodollar Borrowing for 
an additional Interest Period) shall, as to such Lender only, be 
deemed a request for an ABR Loan (or a request to continue an 
ABR Loan as such for an additional Interest Period or to convert 
a Eurodollar Loan into an ABR Loan, as the case may be), unless 
such declaration shall be subsequently withdrawn; and 
 
(ii) such Lender may require that all outstanding 
Eurodollar Loan made by it be converted to ABR Loans, in 
which event all such Eurodollar Loans shall be automatically 
converted to ABR Loans as of the effective date of such notice 
as provided in paragraph (b) below. 
 
In the event any Lender shall exercise its rights under (i) or (ii) above, all 
payments and prepayments of principal that would otherwise have been 
applied to repay the Eurodollar Loans that would have been made by 
such Lender or the converted Eurodollar Loans of such Lender shall 
instead be applied to repay the ABR Loans made by such Lender in lieu 
of, or resulting from the conversion of, such Eurodollar Loans. 
 
(b)  For purposes of this Section 2.13, a notice to the Borrower 
by any Lender shall be effective as to each Eurodollar Loan made by 
such Lender, if lawful, on the last day of the 
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Interest Period then applicable to such Eurodollar Loan; in all other cases 
such notice shall be effective on the date of receipt by the Borrower. 
 
SECTION 2.14.  Break Funding. The Borrower shall 
compensate each Lender for any loss or expense that such Lender may 
sustain or incur as a consequence of (a) such Lender receiving or being 
deemed to receive any amount on account of the principal of any 
Eurodollar Loan prior to the end of the Interest Period in effect therefor, 
(b) the conversion of any Eurodollar Loan to an ABR Loan, or the 
conversion of the Interest Period with respect to any Eurodollar Loan, in 
each case other than on the last day of the Interest Period in effect 
therefor or (c) the failure of the Borrower to borrow, convert, continue or 
prepay any Eurodollar Loan made or to be made by such Lender 
(including any Eurodollar Loan to be made pursuant to a conversion or 
continuation under Section 2.10) after notice of such borrowing, 
conversion, continuation or prepayment shall have been given by the 
Borrower hereunder (any of the events referred to in this sentence being 
called a "Breakage Event").  In the case of any Breakage Event, such 
loss shall include an amount equal to the excess, as reasonably 
determined by such Lender, of (i) its cost of obtaining funds for the 
Eurodollar Loan that is the subject of such Breakage Event for the period 
from the date of such Breakage Event to the last day of the Interest 
Period in effect (or that would have been in effect) for such Loan over 
(ii) the amount of interest likely to be realized by such Lender in 
redeploying the funds released or not utilized by reason of such Breakage 
Event for such period.  A certificate of any Lender setting forth any 
amount or amounts which such Lender is entitled to receive pursuant to 
this Section 2.14 shall be delivered to the Borrower and shall be 
conclusive absent manifest error.  The Borrower shall pay such Lender 
the amount due within 15 days of the receipt of any such certificate. 
 
SECTION 2.15.  Pro Rata Treatment.  Except as required under 
Section 2.13, each Borrowing, each payment or prepayment of principal 
of any Borrowing, each payment of interest on the Loans, each reduction 
of the Commitments and each conversion of any Borrowing to or 
continuation of any Borrowing as a Borrowing of any Type shall be 
allocated pro rata among the Lenders in accordance with their respective 
Commitments (or, if such Commitments shall have expired or been 
terminated, in accordance with the respective principal amounts of their 
outstanding Loans).  Each Lender agrees that in computing such 
Lender's portion of any Borrowing to be made hereunder, the 
Administrative Agent may, in its discretion, round each Lender's 
percentage of such Borrowing to the next higher or lower whole dollar 
amount. 
 
SECTION 2.16.  Sharing of Setoffs. Each Lender agrees that if it 
shall, through the exercise of a right of banker's lien, setoff or 
counterclaim against the Borrower, or pursuant to a secured claim under 
Section 506 of Title 11 of the United States Code or other security or 
interest arising from, or in lieu of, such secured claim, received by such 
Lender under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law 
or otherwise, or by any other means, obtain payment (voluntary or 
involuntary) in respect of any Loan or Loans as a result of which the 
unpaid principal portion of its Loans shall be proportionately less than 
the unpaid principal portion of the Loans of any other Lender, it shall be 
deemed simultaneously to have purchased from such other Lender at face 
value, and shall promptly pay to such other Lender the purchase price 
for, a participation in the Loans of such other Lender, so that the 
aggregate unpaid principal amount of the Loans and participations in the 
Loans held by each Lender shall be in the same proportion to the 
aggregate unpaid principal amount of all Loans then outstanding as the 
principal amount of its Loans prior to such exercise of banker's lien, 
setoff or counterclaim or other event was to the principal amount of all 
Loans outstanding prior to such exercise of banker's lien, setoff or 
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counterclaim or other event; provided, however, that if any such purchase 
or purchases or adjustments shall be made pursuant to this Section 2.16 
and the payment giving rise thereto shall thereafter be recovered, such 
purchase or purchases or adjustments shall be rescinded to the extent of 
such recovery and the purchase price or prices or adjustment restored 
without interest.  The Borrower expressly consents to the foregoing 
arrangements and agrees that any Lender holding a participation in a 
Loan deemed to have been so purchased may exercise any and all rights 
of banker's lien, setoff or counterclaim with respect to any and all 
moneys owing by the Borrower to such Lender by reason thereof as fully 
as if such Lender had made a Loan directly to the Borrower in the 
amount of such participation. 
 
SECTION 2.17.  Payments.  The Borrower shall make each 
payment (including principal of or interest on any Borrowing or any Fees 
or other amounts) hereunder not later than 12:00 (noon), New York City 
time, on the date when due in immediately available dollars, without 
setoff, defense or counterclaim.  Each such payment shall be made to the 
Administrative Agent at its offices at Eleven Madison Avenue, New 
York, NY 10010 or as otherwise instructed by the Administrative Agent. 
 
(b)  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, whenever 
any payment (including principal of or interest on any Borrowing or any 
Fees or other amounts) hereunder shall become due, or otherwise would 
occur, on a day that is not a Business Day, such payment may be made 
on the next succeeding Business Day, and such extension of time shall in 
such case be included in the computation of interest or Fees, if 
applicable. 
SECTION 2.18.  Taxes.  Any and all payments by the 
Borrower hereunder shall be made free and clear of and without 
deduction for any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes; provided that if the 
Borrower shall be required to deduct any Indemnified Taxes or Other 
Taxes from such payments, then (i) the sum payable shall be increased as 
necessary so that after making all required deductions (including 
deductions applicable to additional sums payable under this Section) the 
Administrative Agent or such Lender (as the case may be) receives an 
amount equal to the sum it would have received had no such deductions 
been made, (ii) the Borrower shall make such deductions and (iii) the 
Borrower shall pay the full amount deducted to the relevant 
Governmental Authority in accordance with applicable law. 
 
(b)  In addition, the Borrower shall pay any Other Taxes not paid 
pursuant to Section 2.18(a)(iii) to the relevant Governmental Authority in 
accordance with applicable law.  As of the Closing Date, each Foreign 
Lender intends to make Loans hereunder out of an office located in the 
United States of America or out of an office so that such Loans would 
not be subject to Other Taxes. 
 
(c)  The Borrower shall indemnify the Administrative Agent and 
each Lender, within 15 days after written demand therefor, for the full 
amount of any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes paid by the 
Administrative Agent or such Lender, as the case may be, on or with 
respect to any payment by or on account of any obligation of the 
Borrower hereunder (including Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes 
imposed or asserted on or attributable to amounts payable under this 
Section) and any penalties, interest and reasonable expenses arising 
therefrom or with respect thereto, whether or not such Indemnified Taxes 
or Other Taxes were correctly or legally imposed or asserted by the 
relevant Governmental Authority; provided, however, that the Borrower 
shall not be obligated to make a payment pursuant to this Section 2.18 in 
respect of penalties, interest 
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and other liabilities attributable to any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes, 
if (i) such penalties, interest and other liabilities are attributable to the 
failure of the Administrative Agent or such Lender, as the case may be, to 
pay amounts paid to the Administrative Agent or such Lender by the Borrower 
(for Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes) to the appropriate taxing authority 
in a timely manner after receipt of such payment from the Borrower or 
(ii) such penalties, interest and other liabilities are attributable to the 
gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Administrative Agent or such 
Lender, as the case may be.  After the Administrative Agent or a Lender 
learns of the imposition of Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes, such 
person will act in good faith to promptly notify the Borrower of its 
obligations hereunder.  A certificate as to the amount of such payment or 
liability delivered to the Borrower by a Lender, or by the Administrative 
Agent on its behalf or on behalf of a Lender, shall be conclusive absent 
manifest error. 
 
(d)  As soon as practicable after any payment of Indemnified 
Taxes or Other Taxes by the Borrower to a Governmental Authority, the 
Borrower shall deliver to the Administrative Agent the original or a 
certified copy of a receipt issued by such Governmental Authority 
evidencing such payment, a copy of the return reporting such payment or 
other evidence of such payment reasonably satisfactory to the 
Administrative Agent. 
 
(e)  Any Lender that is entitled to an exemption from or 
reduction of withholding tax under the law of the jurisdiction in which 
the Borrower is located, or any treaty to which such jurisdiction is a 
party, with respect to payments under this Agreement shall deliver to the 
Borrower (with a copy to the Administrative Agent), at the time or times 
prescribed by applicable law, such properly completed and executed 
documentation prescribed by applicable law and reasonably requested by 
the Borrower as will permit such payments to be made without 
withholding or at a reduced rate.  Each Foreign Lender, before it signs 
and delivers this Agreement if listed on the signature pages hereof and 
before it becomes a Lender in the case of each other Foreign Lender, and 
from time to time thereafter, before the date any such form expires or 
becomes obsolete or invalid, shall provide the Borrower and the 
Administrative Agent with Internal Revenue Service form W-8BEN or 
W-8ECI (or other appropriate or successor form prescribed by the 
Internal Revenue Service) in duplicate, certifying that such Foreign 
Lender is entitled to benefits under an income tax treaty to which the 
United States of America is a party which exempts the Foreign Lender 
from U.S. withholding tax on payments of interest for the account of 
such Foreign Lender or certifying that the income receivable pursuant to 
this Agreement is effectively connected with the conduct by such 
Foreign Lender of a trade or business in the United States of America 
and exempt from United States withholding tax. 
 
(f)  If the Administrative Agent or a Lender determines that it 
has received a refund or credit in respect of and specifically associated 
with any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes as to which it has been 
indemnified by the Borrower, or with respect to which the Borrower has 
paid additional amounts, it shall promptly notify the Borrower of such 
refund or credit and shall within 15 days from the date of receipt of such 
refund or benefit of such credit pay over the amount of such refund or 
benefit of such credit (including any interest paid or credited by the 
relevant taxing authority or Governmental Authority with respect to such 
refund or credit) to the Borrower (but only to the extent of indemnity 
payments made, or additional amounts paid, by the Borrower with 
respect to the Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes giving rise to such 
refund of credit), net of all out-of-pocket expenses of such person.  If the 
Administrative Agent or a Lender shall become aware that it is entitled to 
receive a refund or credit in respect of Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes 
as to which it has been indemnified by the Borrower or with respect to 
which the Borrower 
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has paid additional amounts, it shall promptly notify the Borrower of the 
availability of such refund or credit and shall, within 
15 days after receipt of a request for such by the Borrower (whether as a 
result of notification that it has made of such to the Borrower or 
otherwise), make a claim to such taxing authority or Governmental 
Authority for such refund or credit and contest such Indemnified Taxes, 
Other Taxes or liabilities if (i) such Lender or the Administrative Agent 
determines, in its sole discretion, that it would not be materially 
disadvantaged or prejudiced as a result of such contest (it being 
understood that the mere existence of fees, charges, costs or expenses 
that the Borrower has offered to and agreed to pay on behalf of a Lender 
or the Administrative Agent shall not be deemed to be materially 
disadvantageous to such person) and (ii) the Borrower furnishes, upon 
request of the Lender or the Administrative Agent, an opinion of 
reputable tax counsel (such opinion and such counsel to be acceptable to 
such Lender or the Administrative Agent) to the effect that such 
Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes were wrongfully or illegally imposed. 
 
SECTION 2.19.  Assignment of Commitments Under Certain 
Circumstances; Duty to Mitigate.  In the event (i) any Lender 
delivers a certificate requesting compensation pursuant to Section 2.12, 
(ii) any Lender  delivers a notice described in Section 2.13 or (iii) the 
Borrower is required to pay any additional amount to any Lender or any 
Governmental Authority on account of any Lender  pursuant to 
Section 2.18, the Borrower may, at its sole expense and effort (including 
with respect to the processing and recordation fee referred to in 
Section 9.04(b)), upon notice to such Lender  and the Administrative 
Agent, require such Lender  to transfer and assign, without recourse (in 
accordance with and subject to the restrictions contained in 
Section 9.04), all of its interests, rights and obligations under this 
Agreement to an assignee that shall assume such assigned obligations 
(which assignee may be another Lender, if a Lender accepts such 
assignment); provided that (x) such assignment shall not conflict with 
any law, rule or regulation or order of any court or other Governmental 
Authority having jurisdiction, (y) the Borrower shall have received the 
prior written consent of the Administrative Agent, which consent shall 
not unreasonably be withheld, and (z) the Borrower or such assignee 
shall have paid to the affected Lender in immediately available funds an 
amount equal to the sum of the principal of and interest accrued to the 
date of such payment on the outstanding Loans of such Lender, 
respectively, plus all Fees and other amounts accrued for the account of 
such Lender  hereunder (including any amounts under Section 2.12 and 
Section 2.14); provided further that, if prior to any such transfer and 
assignment the circumstances or event that resulted in such Lender's 
claim for compensation under Section 2.12 or notice under Section 2.13 
or the amounts paid pursuant to Section 2.18, as the case may be, cease 
to cause such Lender  to suffer increased costs or reductions in amounts 
received or receivable or reduction in return on capital, or cease to have 
the consequences specified in Section 2.13, or cease to result in amounts 
being payable under Section 2.18, as the case may be (including as a 
result of any action taken by such Lender  pursuant to paragraph (b) 
below), or if such Lender  shall waive its right to claim further 
compensation under Section 2.12 in respect of such circumstances or 
event or shall withdraw its notice under Section 2.13 or shall waive its 
right to further payments under Section 2.18 in respect of such 
circumstances or event, as the case may be, then such Lender shall not 
thereafter be required to make any such transfer and assignment 
hereunder. 
 
(b)  If (i) any Lender  shall request compensation under 
Section 2.12, (ii) any Lender  delivers a notice described in Section 2.13 
or (iii) the Borrower is required to pay any additional amount or 
indemnity payment to any Lender or any Governmental Authority on 
account of any Lender, pursuant to Section 2.18, then such Lender  shall 
use reasonable efforts (which shall not 
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require such Lender  to incur an unreimbursed loss or unreimbursed cost or 
expense or otherwise take any action inconsistent with its internal policies 
or legal or regulatory restrictions or suffer any disadvantage or burden 
deemed by it to be significant) (x) to file any certificate or document 
reasonably requested in writing by the Borrower or (y) to assign its rights 
and delegate and transfer its obligations hereunder to another of its 
offices, branches or affiliates, if such filing or assignment would reduce 
its claims for compensation under Section 2.12 or enable it to withdraw 
its notice pursuant to Section 2.13 or would reduce amounts payable pursuant 
to Section 2.18, as the case may be, in the future.  The Borrower hereby 
agrees to pay all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by any Lender 
in connection with any such filing or assignment, delegation and transfer. 
 
ARTICLE III 
 
Representations and Warranties 
 
The Borrower represents and warrants to the Administrative 
Agent and each of the Lenders that: 
 
SECTION 3.01.  Organization; Powers.  The Borrower and each 
of the Subsidiaries (a) is duly organized, validly existing and in good 
standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization, (b) has all 
requisite power and authority to own its property and assets and to carry 
on its business as now conducted and (c) is qualified to do business in, 
and is in good standing in, every jurisdiction where such qualification is 
required, except where the failure so to qualify could not reasonably be 
expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 3.02.  Authorization. The execution, delivery and 
performance by (a) the Borrower of this Agreement and (b) the Borrower 
and Merger Sub of the Merger Agreement, and the consummation of the 
Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby and thereby 
(including the Borrowings hereunder) (collectively, the "Transactions") 
(i) are within the Borrower's corporate powers and have been duly 
authorized by all requisite corporate and, if required, stockholder action, 
and (ii) will not (x) violate (A) any provision of law, statute, rule or 
regulation, or of the certificate or articles of incorporation or other 
constitutive documents or by-laws of the Borrower or any Subsidiary, 
(B) any order of any Governmental Authority or (C) any provision of any 
indenture, agreement or other instrument to which the Borrower or any 
Subsidiary is a party or by which any of them or any of their property is 
or may be bound, the effect of which could reasonably be expected to 
result in a Material Adverse Effect, (y) result in a breach of or constitute 
(alone or with notice or lapse of time or both) a default under, or give 
rise to any right to accelerate or to require the prepayment, repurchase or 
redemption of any obligation under any such indenture, agreement or 
other instrument, the effect of which could reasonably be expected to 
result in a Material Adverse Effect, or (z) result in the creation or 
imposition of any Lien upon or with respect to any property or assets 
now owned or hereafter acquired by the Borrower or any Subsidiary. 
 
SECTION 3.03.  Enforceability.  This Agreement has been duly 
executed and delivered by the Borrower and constitutes a legal, valid and 
binding obligation of the Borrower enforceable against the Borrower in 
accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, 
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reorganization, moratorium or similar laws affecting the enforceability of 
creditors' rights generally and to general principles of equity, regardless 
of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law. 
 
SECTION 3.04.  Governmental Approvals. No action, consent or 
approval of, registration or filing with or any other action by any 
Governmental Authority is or will be required in connection with the 
Transactions, except for such as have been made or obtained and are in 
full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 3.05.  Financial Statements.   The Borrower has 
heretofore furnished to the Lenders its consolidated balance sheets and 
related statements of income, stockholders' equity and cash flows (i) as 
of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, audited by and 
accompanied by the opinion of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 
independent public accountants, and (ii) as of and for the fiscal quarter 
and the portion of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, certified by 
its chief financial officer.  Such financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations and 
cash flows of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of such 
dates and for such periods in accordance with GAAP, subject to normal 
year-end audit adjustments and the absence of footnotes in the case of the 
statements referred to in clause (ii) above. 
 
SECTION 3.06.  No Material Adverse Change. Since 
December 31, 2001, there has been no material adverse change in the 
financial condition, results of operations or business of the Borrower and 
the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. 
 
SECTION 3.07.  Subsidiaries.  Schedule 3.07(a) sets forth as 
of the Closing Date a list of all Subsidiaries and the percentage 
ownership interest of the Borrower therein. 
 
(b)  Schedule 3.07(b) sets forth as of the Closing Date a list of all 
subsidiaries of DIANON and the percentage ownership interest of 
DIANON therein.  As of the Closing Date, after giving effect to the 
Merger, DIANON and each such subsidiary will become a Subsidiary. 
 
SECTION 3.08.  Litigation; Compliance with Laws.  There 
are not any actions, suits or proceedings at law or in equity or by or 
before any Governmental Authority now pending or, to the knowledge of 
the Borrower, threatened against or affecting the Borrower or any 
Subsidiary or any business, property or rights of any such person (i) that 
involve this Agreement or the Transactions or (ii) as to which there is a 
reasonable possibility of an adverse determination and that, if adversely 
determined, could reasonably be expected, individually or in the 
aggregate, to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
(b)  None of the Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries is in 
violation of any law, rule or regulation, or is in default with respect to 
any judgment, writ, injunction, decree or order of any Governmental 
Authority, where such violation or default could reasonably be expected 
to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 3.09.  Federal Reserve Regulations.  The 
Borrower is not engaged principally, or as one of its important activities, 
in the business of extending credit for the purpose of buying or carrying 
Margin Stock. 
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(b)  No part of the proceeds of any Loan will be used, whether 
directly or indirectly, and whether immediately, incidentally or 
ultimately, for any purpose that entails a violation of, or that is 
inconsistent with, the provisions of the Regulations of the Board, 
including Regulation T, U or X. 
 
SECTION 3.10.  Investment Company Act; Public Utility 
Holding Company Act.  None of  the Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries 
is (a) an "investment company" as defined in, or subject to regulation 
under, the Investment Company Act of 1940 or (b) a "holding company" 
as defined in, or subject to regulation under, the Public Utility Holding 
Company Act of 1935. 
 
SECTION 3.11.  Use of Proceeds.  The Borrower will use the 
proceeds of the Loans only for the purposes specified in the preamble to 
this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 3.12.  Tax Returns. Each of the Borrower and the 
Subsidiaries has filed or caused to be filed all Federal, state, local and 
foreign tax returns or materials required to have been filed by it and has 
paid or caused to be paid all Taxes due and payable by it and all 
assessments received by it, except (a) Taxes that are being contested in 
good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which the Borrower or 
such Subsidiary, as applicable, shall have set aside on its books adequate 
reserves or (b) to the extent that the failure to do so could not reasonably 
be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 3.13.  No Material Misstatements. No information, 
report, financial statement, exhibit or schedule furnished by or on behalf 
of the Borrower to the Administrative Agent or any Lender in connection 
with the negotiation of this Agreement contains any material 
misstatement of fact or omits to state any material fact necessary to make 
the statements therein taken as a whole, in the light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading; provided that to the extent 
any such information, report, financial statement, exhibit or schedule was 
based upon or constitutes a forecast or projection, the Borrower 
represents only that it acted in good faith and utilized reasonable 
assumptions and due care in the preparation of such information, report, 
financial statement, exhibit or schedule. 
 
SECTION 3.14.  Employee Benefit Plans. No ERISA Event has 
occurred or is reasonably expected to occur that, when taken together 
with all other such ERISA Events, could reasonably be expected to result 
in a Material Adverse Effect.  The accumulated benefit obligations (as 
defined in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87) under 
all Plans (based on the assumptions used for purposes of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 87) did not, as of the last annual 
valuation dates applicable thereto, exceed by more than $60,000,000 the 
fair market value of the assets of all such Plans. 
 
SECTION 3.15.  Environmental Matters. Except with respect to 
any matters that, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably 
be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, neither the Borrower 
nor any of the Subsidiaries (i) has failed to comply with any 
Environmental Law or to obtain, maintain or comply with any permit, 
license or other approval required under any Environmental Law, (ii) is 
subject to any Environmental Liability, (iii) has received written notice 
of any claim with respect to any Environmental Liability or (iv) knows of 
any basis for any Environmental Liability of the Borrower or the 
Subsidiaries. 
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SECTION 3.16.  Senior Indebtedness.  The Loans and other 
obligations hereunder constitute  "Senior Indebtedness" under and as 
defined in the Subordinated Note Documents. 
 
ARTICLE IV 
 
Conditions of Lending 
 
The obligations of the Lenders to make the Loans hereunder 
shall not become effective until the date on which each of the following 
conditions is satisfied: 
 
(a)  The Administrative Agent shall have received a Borrowing 
Request as required by Section 2.03. 
 
(b)  The representations and warranties set forth in Article III 
hereof shall be true and correct in all material respects on and as of the 
date of such Borrowing with the same effect as though made on and as of 
such date, except to the extent such representations and warranties 
expressly relate to an earlier date. 
 
(c)  At the time of and immediately after such Loans, no Event of 
Default or Default shall have occurred and be continuing. 
 
(d)  The Administrative Agent (or its counsel) shall have 
received from each party hereto either (i) a counterpart of this Agreement 
signed on behalf of such party or (ii) written evidence satisfactory to the 
Administrative Agent (which may include telecopy transmission of a 
signed signature page of this Agreement) that such party has signed a 
counterpart of this Agreement. 
 
(e)  The Administrative Agent shall have received, on behalf of 
itself and the Lenders, a favorable written opinion of each of (i) Bradford 
T. Smith, Chief Legal Counsel of the Borrower, substantially to the 
effect set forth in Exhibit D-1, and (ii) Hogan & Hartson L.L.P., special 
counsel for the Borrower, substantially to the effect set forth in Exhibit 
D-2, (A) dated the Closing Date, (B) addressed to the Administrative 
Agent and the Lenders, and (C) covering such other matters relating to 
this Agreement and the Transactions as the Administrative Agent shall 
reasonably request, and the Borrower hereby requests such counsel to 
deliver such opinions. 
 
(f)  The Administrative Agent shall have received (i) a copy of 
the certificate of incorporation, including all amendments thereto, of the 
Borrower, certified as of a recent date by the Secretary of State of the 
State of Delaware, and a certificate as to the good standing of the 
Borrower as of a recent date, from such Secretary of State; (ii) a 
certificate of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Borrower dated 
the Closing Date and certifying (A) that attached thereto is a true and 
complete copy of the by-laws of the Borrower as in effect on the Closing 
Date and at all times since a date prior to the date of the resolutions 
described in clause (B) below, (B) that attached thereto is a true and 
complete copy of resolutions duly adopted by the Board of Directors of 
the Borrower authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of this 
Agreement and the borrowings hereunder, and that such resolutions have 
not been modified, rescinded or amended and are in full force and effect, 
(C) that the certificate of incorporation of the Borrower has not been 
amended since the date of the last amendment thereto shown on the 
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certificate of good standing furnished pursuant to clause (i) above, and 
(D) as to the incumbency and specimen signature of each officer 
executing this Agreement or any other document delivered in connection 
herewith on behalf of the Borrower; and (iii) a certificate of another 
officer as to the incumbency and specimen signature of the Secretary or 
Assistant Secretary executing the certificate pursuant to clause (ii) above. 
 
(g)  The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate, 
dated the Closing Date and signed by a Financial Officer of the 
Borrower, confirming compliance with the conditions precedent set forth 
in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Article IV. 
 
(h)  The Administrative Agent shall have received all Fees and 
other amounts due and payable on or prior to the Closing Date, 
including, to the extent invoiced, reimbursement or payment of all 
out-of-pocket expenses required to be reimbursed or paid by the 
Borrower hereunder. 
 
(i)  The credit facility provided for by this Agreement shall be 
rated not lower than BBB by S&P, and the Administrative Agent shall 
have received satisfactory evidence thereof. 
 
(j)  The Merger shall have been consummated in accordance 
with applicable law and substantially in accordance with the terms of the 
Merger Agreement furnished to the Lenders prior to the date of this 
Agreement, without any modification or waiver of any material term or 
condition thereof  unless such modification or waiver shall have been 
approved by the Required Lenders (such approval not to be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed). 
 
(k)  All requisite Governmental Authorities and third parties 
shall have approved or consented to the Transactions to the extent 
required, all applicable appeal periods shall have expired and there shall 
be no litigation, governmental or judicial action, actual or threatened, 
that, singly or in the aggregate, has a reasonable likelihood of materially 
and adversely affecting the ability of the parties to consummate the 
Transactions. 
 
(l)  All principal, interest, fees and other amounts outstanding or 
due in respect of all of the outstanding Indebtedness of DIANON (other 
than the Assumed Debt) shall have been paid in full, the agreements 
relating thereto terminated and all security therefor and guarantees 
thereof released and discharged. 
 
ARTICLE V 
 
Affirmative Covenants 
 
The Borrower covenants and agrees with each Lender that until 
the Commitments have been terminated and the principal of and interest 
on each Loan, all Fees and all other expenses or amounts payable 
hereunder shall have been paid in full, unless the Required Lenders shall 
otherwise consent in writing, the Borrower will, and will cause each of 
the Subsidiaries to: 
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SECTION 5.01.  Existence; Businesses and Properties.  Do 
or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve, renew and keep in 
full force and effect its legal existence, except as otherwise expressly 
permitted under Section 6.04. 
 
(b)  Do or cause to be done all things necessary to obtain, 
preserve, renew, extend and keep in full force and effect its rights, 
licenses, permits, franchises, authorizations, patents, copyrights, 
trademarks and trade names, and comply in all material respects with all 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and decrees and orders of any 
Governmental Authority, in each case except where the failure to do so 
could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 5.02.  Insurance.  Maintain with responsible and 
reputable insurance companies insurance, to such extent and against such 
risks as is customary with companies in the same or similar businesses 
operating in the same or similar locations. 
 
SECTION 5.03.  Obligations and Taxes. Pay its Indebtedness 
and other obligations, including Taxes, before the same shall become 
delinquent or in default, except where (a) the validity or amount thereof 
shall be contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and the 
Borrower shall have set aside on its books adequate reserves with respect 
thereto in accordance with GAAP or (b) to the extent that the failure to 
do so could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse 
Effect. 
 
SECTION 5.04.  Financial Statements, Reports, etc. In the case 
of the Borrower, furnish to the Administrative Agent and each Lender: 
 
(a) within 105 days after the end of each fiscal year, its 
consolidated balance sheet and related statements of income, 
stockholders' equity and cash flows as of the close of and for 
such fiscal year, together with comparative figures for the 
immediately preceding fiscal year, all audited by 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP or other independent public 
accountants of recognized national standing and accompanied by 
an opinion of such accountants (which shall not be qualified in 
any material respect) to the effect that such consolidated 
financial statements present fairly in all material respects the 
financial condition and results of operations of the Borrower and 
its consolidated Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in 
accordance with GAAP consistently applied; 
 
(b) within 50 days after the end of each of the first three 
fiscal quarters of each fiscal year, its consolidated balance sheet 
and related statements of income, stockholders' equity and cash 
flows as of the close of and for such fiscal quarter and the then 
elapsed portion of the fiscal year, and comparative figures for the 
same periods in the immediately preceding fiscal year, all 
certified by one of its Financial Officers as presenting fairly in 
all material respects the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries on a 
consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP consistently 
applied, subject to normal year-end audit adjustments and the 
absence of footnotes; 
 
(c) concurrently with any delivery of financial 
statements under paragraph (a) or (b) above, a certificate of a 
Financial Officer (A) certifying that no Event of Default or 
Default has occurred or, if such an Event of Default or Default 
has occurred, specifying 
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the nature and extent thereof and any corrective action taken or proposed 
to be taken with respect thereto, (B) setting forth computations in 
reasonable detail satisfactory to the Administrative Agent demonstrating 
compliance with the covenants contained in Sections 6.07 and 
6.08 and (C) stating whether any change in GAAP or in the 
application thereof has occurred since the date of the audited 
financial statements referred to in Section 3.05 and, if any such 
change has occurred, specifying the effect of such change on the 
financial statements accompanying such certificate; 
 
(d) promptly after the same become publicly available, 
copies of all periodic and other reports, proxy statements and 
other materials filed by the Borrower or any Subsidiary with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, or any Governmental 
Authority succeeding to any or all of the functions of said 
Commission, or with any national securities exchange, or 
distributed to its shareholders, as the case may be; 
 
(e) promptly after the receipt thereof by the Borrower or 
any of its Subsidiaries, a copy of any "management letter" 
received by any such person from its certified public accountants 
and the management's response thereto; and 
 
(f) promptly, from time to time, such other information 
regarding the operations, business affairs and financial condition 
of the Borrower or any Subsidiary, or compliance with the terms 
of this Agreement, as the Administrative Agent or any Lender 
may reasonably request. 
 
SECTION 5.05.  Litigation and Other Notices. In the case of the 
Borrower, furnish to the Administrative Agent and each Lender prompt 
written notice of the following: 
 
(a) any Event of Default or Default, specifying the 
nature and extent thereof and the corrective action (if any) taken 
or proposed to be taken with respect thereto; 
 
(b) the filing or commencement of, or any threat or 
notice of intention of any person to file or commence, any 
action, suit or proceeding, whether at law or in equity or by or 
before any Governmental Authority, against the Borrower or any 
Affiliate thereof that could reasonably be expected to result in a 
Material Adverse Effect; 
 
(c) any change in the rating by S&P or Moody's of the 
Index Debt (and the initial rating by Moody's of the Index Debt); 
and 
 
(d) the occurrence of any ERISA Event that, alone or 
together with any other ERISA Events that have occurred, could 
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 5.06.  Maintaining Records; Access to Properties and 
Inspections.  Keep books of record and account in conformity with 
GAAP and all requirements of law in relation to its business and 
activities.  The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, 
permit any representatives designated by the Administrative Agent or 
any Lender, upon reasonable prior notice, to visit and inspect the 
financial records and the properties of the Borrower or any Subsidiary at 
reasonable times and as often as reasonably requested and to make 
extracts from and copies of such financial records, and permit any 
representatives designated by the 
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Administrative Agent or any Lender to discuss the affairs, finances and 
condition of the Borrower or any Subsidiary with the officers thereof and 
independent accountants therefor. 
 
SECTION 5.07.  Use of Proceeds. Use the proceeds of the Loans 
only for the purposes set forth in the preamble to this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.08.  Senior Notes; Rating; Existing DIANON Credit 
Agreement.  In the case of the Borrower, use its commercially reasonable 
best efforts to (a) issue, as promptly as practicable following the Closing 
Date, Senior Notes in an aggregate principal amount sufficient to 
refinance in full the Loans, (b) obtain, as promptly as practicable (and, in 
any event, within 30 days) following the Closing Date, a rating of the 
credit facility provided for by this Agreement by Moody's and (c) as 
promptly as practicable (and, in any event, within 30 days) following the 
Closing Date, repay in full all principal, interest, fees and other amounts 
outstanding or due in respect of the Existing DIANON Credit 
Agreement, terminate the Existing DIANON Credit Agreement and 
release and discharge all security therefor and guarantees thereof. 
 
ARTICLE VI 
 
Negative Covenants 
 
The Borrower covenants and agrees with each Lender that, until 
the Commitments have been terminated and the principal of and interest 
on each Loan, all Fees and all other expenses or amounts payable 
hereunder have been paid in full, unless the Required Lenders shall 
otherwise consent in writing, the Borrower will not, and will not cause or 
permit any of the Subsidiaries to: 
 
SECTION 6.01.  Subsidiary Indebtedness. With respect to the 
Subsidiaries, incur, create, issue, assume or permit to exist any 
Indebtedness or preferred stock, except: 
 
(a) Indebtedness or preferred stock existing on the date 
hereof and having an aggregate principal amount (or, in the case 
of preferred stock, an aggregate liquidation preference) of less 
than $25,000,000 in the aggregate and, in the case of any such 
Indebtedness, any extensions, renewals or replacements thereof 
to the extent the principal amount of such Indebtedness is not 
increased, and such Indebtedness, if subordinated to the Loans, 
remains so subordinated on terms no less favorable to the 
Lenders, and the original obligors in respect of such 
Indebtedness remain the only obligors thereon; 
 
(b) Indebtedness created or existing hereunder; 
 
(c) intercompany Indebtedness or preferred stock to the 
extent owing to or held by the Borrower or another Subsidiary; 
 
(d) Indebtedness of any Subsidiary incurred to finance 
the acquisition, construction or improvement of any fixed or 
capital assets, and extensions, renewals and replacements of any 
such Indebtedness that do not increase the outstanding principal 
amount thereof; provided that (i) such Indebtedness is incurred 
prior to or within 180 days after such acquisition or the 
completion of such construction or improvement and 
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(ii) the aggregate principal amount of Indebtedness permitted by this 
Section 6.01(d), when combined with the aggregate principal 
amount of all Capital Lease Obligations incurred pursuant to 
Section 6.01(e) and all Indebtedness incurred pursuant to 
Section 6.01(f), shall not exceed $100,000,000 at any time 
outstanding; 
 
(e) Capital Lease Obligations in an aggregate principal 
amount, when combined with the aggregate principal amount of 
all Indebtedness incurred pursuant to Section 6.01(d) and Section 
6.01(f), not in excess of $100,000,000 at any time outstanding; 
 
(f) Indebtedness of any person (other than DIANON and 
its subsidiaries) that becomes a Subsidiary after the date hereof; 
provided that (i) such Indebtedness exists at the time such person 
becomes a Subsidiary and is not created in contemplation of or 
in connection with such person becoming a Subsidiary, 
(ii) immediately before and after such person becomes a 
Subsidiary, no Event of Default or Default shall have occurred 
and be continuing and (iii) the aggregate principal amount of 
Indebtedness permitted by this clause (f), when combined with 
the aggregate principal amount of all Indebtedness incurred 
pursuant to Section 6.01(d) and all Capital Lease Obligations 
incurred pursuant to Section 6.01(e), shall not exceed 
$100,000,000 at any time outstanding; 
 
(g) Indebtedness under performance bonds or with 
respect to workers' compensation claims, in each case incurred 
in the ordinary course of business; and 
 
(h) additional Indebtedness (other than additional 
Indebtedness incurred under the Existing DIANON Credit 
Agreement) or preferred stock of the Subsidiaries to the extent 
not otherwise permitted by the foregoing clauses of this 
Section 6.01 in an aggregate principal amount (or, in the case of 
preferred stock, with an aggregate liquidation preference), when 
combined (without duplication) with the amount of obligations 
of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries secured by Liens pursuant to 
Section 6.02(j), not to exceed $100,000,000 at any time 
outstanding. 
 
SECTION 6.02.  Liens. Create, incur, assume or permit to exist 
any Lien on any property or assets (including Equity Interests or other 
securities of any person, including any Subsidiary) now owned or 
hereafter acquired by it or on any income or revenues or rights in respect 
of any thereof, except: 
 
(a) Liens on property or assets of the Borrower and its 
Subsidiaries existing on the date hereof and encumbering 
property or assets with a fair market value, and securing 
obligations having an aggregate principal amount, in each case 
less than $25,000,000 in the aggregate; provided that (x) such 
Liens shall secure only those obligations which they secure on 
the date hereof and extensions, renewals and replacements 
thereof permitted hereunder and (y) such Liens shall not apply to 
any other property or assets of the Borrower or any of the 
Subsidiaries; 
 
(b) any Lien existing on any property or asset prior to 
the acquisition thereof by the Borrower or any Subsidiary or 
existing on any property or asset of any person that becomes a 
Subsidiary (including DIANON and its subsidiaries) after the 
date hereof prior to the time such person becomes a Subsidiary; 
provided that (i) such Lien is not created 
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in contemplation of or in connection with such acquisition or such person 
becoming a Subsidiary, as the case may be, (ii) such Lien does not apply to 
any other property or assets of the Borrower or any Subsidiary 
and (iii) such Lien shall secure only those obligations which it 
secures on the date of such acquisition or the date such person 
becomes a Subsidiary, as the case may be and extensions, 
renewals and replacements thereof permitted hereunder; 
 
(c) Liens for taxes not yet due or which are being 
contested in compliance with Section 5.03; 
 
(d) carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', 
materialmen's, repairmen's or other like Liens arising in the 
ordinary course of business and securing obligations that are not 
overdue by more than 90 days or which are being contested in 
compliance with Section 5.03; 
 
(e) pledges and deposits made in the ordinary course of 
business in compliance with workmen's compensation, 
unemployment insurance and other social security laws or 
regulations; 
 
(f) deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade 
contracts (other than for Indebtedness), leases (other than Capital 
Lease Obligations), statutory obligations, surety and appeal 
bonds, performance bonds and other obligations of a like nature, 
in each case in the ordinary course of business; 
 
(g) zoning restrictions, easements, rights-of-way, 
restrictions on use of real property and other similar 
encumbrances incurred in the ordinary course of business which, 
in the aggregate, are not substantial in amount and do not 
materially detract from the value of the property subject thereto 
or interfere with the ordinary conduct of the business of the 
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries; 
 
(h) purchase money security interests in real property, 
improvements thereto or equipment hereafter acquired (or, in the 
case of improvements, constructed) by the Borrower or any 
Subsidiary; provided that (i) such security interests secure 
Indebtedness permitted by Section 6.01, (ii) such security 
interests are incurred, and the Indebtedness secured thereby is 
created, within 180 days after such acquisition (or construction) 
and  (iii) such security interests do not apply to any other 
property or assets of the Borrower or any Subsidiary; 
 
(i) Liens in respect of judgments that do not constitute 
an Event of Default; and 
 
(j) Liens not otherwise permitted by the foregoing 
clauses of this Section 6.02 securing obligations otherwise 
permitted by this Agreement in an aggregate principal and face 
amount, when combined (without duplication) with the amount 
of Indebtedness or preferred stock of Subsidiaries incurred 
pursuant to Section 6.01(h), not to exceed $100,000,000 at any 
time outstanding. 
 
SECTION 6.03.  Sale and Lease-Back Transactions. Enter into 
any arrangement, directly or indirectly, with any person whereby it shall 
sell or transfer any property, real or personal, used 
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or useful in its business, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, and 
thereafter rent or lease such property or other property which it intends to 
use for substantially the same purpose or purposes as the property being sold 
or transferred unless (a) the sale of such property is permitted by Section 
6.04 and (b) any Capital Lease Obligations or Liens arising in connection 
therewith are permitted by Sections 6.01 and 6.02, respectively. 
 
SECTION 6.04.  Mergers, Consolidations and Sales of Assets. 
Merge into or consolidate with any other person, or permit any other 
person to merge into or consolidate with it, or sell, transfer, lease or 
otherwise dispose of (in one transaction or in a series of transactions) all 
or substantially all the assets (whether now owned or hereafter acquired) 
of the Borrower, or liquidate or dissolve, except that, if at the time 
thereof and immediately after giving effect thereto no Event of Default 
or Default shall have occurred and be continuing, (a) any person may 
merge into the Borrower in a transaction in which the Borrower is the 
surviving corporation, (b) any person, other than the Borrower, may 
merge into or consolidate with any Subsidiary in a transaction in which 
the surviving entity is a Subsidiary and (c) any Subsidiary may liquidate 
or dissolve if the Borrower determines in good faith that such liquidation 
or dissolution is in the best interests of the Borrower and is not materially 
disadvantageous to the Lenders. 
 
SECTION 6.05.  Restricted Payments. Declare or make, or agree 
to declare or make, directly or indirectly, any Restricted Payment 
(including pursuant to any Synthetic Purchase Agreement), or incur any 
obligation (contingent or otherwise) to do so; provided, however, that 
(i) any Subsidiary may declare and pay dividends or make other 
distributions ratably to holders of Equity Interests in it, (ii) the Borrower 
may declare and pay dividends or make other distributions of its Equity 
Interests and (iii) so long as no Default or Event of Default shall have 
occurred and be continuing or would result therefrom, the Borrower and 
the Subsidiaries may declare and make, directly or indirectly, additional 
Restricted Payments to the extent not otherwise permitted by the 
foregoing clauses of this Section 6.05 in an aggregate amount not to 
exceed $300,000,000. 
 
SECTION 6.06.  Business of Borrower and Subsidiaries. Engage 
to any material extent in any business or business activity other than 
businesses of the type currently conducted by the Borrower and the 
Subsidiaries and business activities reasonably related thereto. 
 
SECTION 6.07.  Interest Coverage Ratio.  Permit the Interest 
Coverage Ratio for any period of four consecutive fiscal quarters, in each 
case taken as one accounting period, to be less than 5.0 to 1.0. 
 
SECTION 6.08.  Maximum Leverage Ratio.  Permit the 
Leverage Ratio for any period of four consecutive fiscal quarters, in each 
case taken as one accounting period, to be greater than 2.5 to 1.0. 
 
SECTION 6.09.  Hedging Agreements.  Enter into any Hedging 
Agreement other than non-speculative Hedging Agreements entered into 
to hedge or mitigate risks to which the Borrower or a Subsidiary is 
exposed in the ordinary course of the conduct of its business or the 
management of its liabilities. 
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ARTICLE VII 
 
Events of Default 
 
In case of the happening of any of the following events ("Events 
of Default"): 
 
(a)  any representation or warranty made or deemed made in or 
in connection with this Agreement or the Borrowings hereunder, or any 
representation, warranty, statement or information contained in any 
report, certificate, financial statement or other instrument furnished in 
connection with or pursuant to this Agreement shall prove to have been 
false or misleading in any material respect when so made, deemed made 
or furnished; 
 
(b)  default shall be made in the payment of any principal of any 
Loan when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at the 
due date thereof or at a date fixed for prepayment thereof or by 
acceleration thereof or otherwise; 
 
(c)  default shall be made in the payment of any interest on any 
Loan or any Fee or any other amount (other than an amount referred to in 
(b) above) due under this Agreement, when and as the same shall 
become due and payable, and such default shall continue unremedied for 
a period of five Business Days; 
 
(d)  default shall be made in the due observance or performance 
by the Borrower or any Subsidiary of any covenant, condition or 
agreement contained in Section 5.01(a) (with respect to the Borrower), 
5.05(a) or 5.07 or in Article VI; 
 
(e)  default shall be made in the due observance or performance 
by the Borrower or any Subsidiary of any covenant, condition or 
agreement contained in this Agreement (other than those specified in (b), 
(c) or (d) above) and such default shall continue unremedied for a period 
of 30 days after notice thereof from the Administrative Agent to the 
Borrower (which notice will be given at the request of any Lender); 
 
(f)  (i) the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary shall (i) fail to 
pay any principal or interest, regardless of amount, due in respect of any 
Material Indebtedness, when and as the same shall become due and 
payable (after giving effect to any applicable grace period), or (ii) any 
other event or condition occurs (after giving effect to any applicable 
grace period) that results in any Material Indebtedness becoming due 
prior to its scheduled maturity or that enables or permits the holder or 
holders of any Material Indebtedness or any trustee or agent on its or 
their behalf to cause any Material Indebtedness to become due, or to 
require the prepayment, repurchase, redemption or defeasance thereof, 
prior to its scheduled maturity; provided that this clause (ii) shall not 
apply to secured Indebtedness that becomes due as a result of the 
voluntary sale or transfer of the property or assets securing such 
Indebtedness; 
 
(g)  an involuntary proceeding shall be commenced or an 
involuntary petition shall be filed in a court of competent jurisdiction 
seeking (i) relief in respect of the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary, 
or of a substantial part of the property or assets of the Borrower or a 
Material Subsidiary, under Title 11 of the United States Code, as now 
constituted or hereafter amended, or any other Federal, state or foreign 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar law, (ii) the appointment 
of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator or similar 
official for the 
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Borrower or any Material Subsidiary or for a substantial 
part of the property or assets of the Borrower or a Material Subsidiary or 
(iii) the winding-up or liquidation of the Borrower or any Material 
Subsidiary; and such proceeding or petition shall continue undismissed 
for 60 days or an order or decree approving or ordering any of the 
foregoing shall be entered; 
 
(h)  the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary shall (i) voluntarily 
commence any proceeding or file any petition seeking relief under 
Title 11 of the United States Code, as now constituted or hereafter 
amended, or any other Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, 
receivership or similar law, (ii) consent to the institution of, or fail to 
contest in a timely and appropriate manner, any proceeding or the filing 
of any petition described in (g) above, (iii) apply for or consent to the 
appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator or 
similar official for the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary or for a 
substantial part of the property or assets of the Borrower or any Material 
Subsidiary, (iv) file an answer admitting the material allegations of a 
petition filed against it in any such proceeding, (v) make a general 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, (vi) become unable, admit in 
writing its inability or fail generally to pay its debts as they become due 
or (vii) take any action for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing; 
 
(i)  one or more judgments for the payment of money in an 
amount in excess of $50,000,000 individually or $75,000,000 in the 
aggregate shall be rendered against the Borrower, any Material 
Subsidiary or any combination thereof and the same shall remain 
undischarged for a period of 30 consecutive days during which execution 
shall not be effectively stayed, or any action shall be legally taken by a 
judgment creditor to levy upon assets or properties of the Borrower or 
any Material Subsidiary to enforce any such judgment; provided, 
however, that any such judgment shall not be an Event of Default under 
this paragraph (i) if and for so long as (i) the entire amount of such 
judgment is covered by a valid and binding policy of insurance between 
the defendant and the insurer covering payment thereof and (ii) such 
insurer, which shall be rated at least "A" by A.M. Best Company, has 
been notified of, and has not disputed the claim made for payment of the 
amount of such judgment;. 
 
(j)  one or more ERISA Events shall have occurred that results in 
liability of the Borrower and its ERISA Affiliates exceeding $50,000,000 
individually or $75,000,000 in the aggregate; or 
 
(k)  there shall have occurred a Change in Control; 
 
then, and in every such event (other than an event with respect to the 
Borrower described in paragraph (g) or (h) above), and at any time 
thereafter during the continuance of such event, the Administrative 
Agent may, and at the request of the Required Lenders shall, by notice to 
the Borrower, take either or both of the following actions, at the same or 
different times:  (i) terminate forthwith the Commitments and (ii) declare 
the Loans then outstanding to be forthwith due and payable in whole or 
in part, whereupon the principal of the Loans so declared to be due and 
payable, together with accrued interest thereon and any unpaid accrued 
Fees and all other liabilities of the Borrower accrued hereunder, shall 
become forthwith due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest 
or any other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived 
by the Borrower, anything contained hereinto the contrary 
notwithstanding; and in any event with respect to the Borrower described 
in paragraph (g) or (h) above, the Commitments shall automatically 
terminate and the principal of the Loans then outstanding, 
 



 
38 
 
 
together with accrued interest thereon and any unpaid accrued Fees and all 
other liabilities of the Borrower accrued hereunder, shall automatically 
become due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or any other 
notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the 
Borrower, anything contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding. 
 
ARTICLE VIII 
 
The Administrative Agent 
 
Each of the Lenders hereby irrevocably appoints the 
Administrative Agent its agent and authorizes the Administrative Agent 
to take such actions on its behalf and to exercise such powers as are 
delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms of this Agreement, 
together with such actions and powers as are reasonably incidental 
thereto. 
 
The bank serving as the Administrative Agent hereunder shall 
have the same rights and powers in its capacity as a Lender as any other 
Lender and may exercise the same as though it were not the 
Administrative Agent, and such bank and its Affiliates may accept 
deposits from, lend money to and generally engage in any kind of 
business with the Borrower or any Subsidiary or other Affiliate thereof 
as if it were not the Administrative Agent hereunder. 
 
The Administrative Agent shall not have any duties or 
obligations except those expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, (a) the Administrative Agent 
shall not be subject to any fiduciary or other implied duties, regardless of 
whether a Default has occurred and is continuing, (b) the Administrative 
Agent shall not have any duty to take any discretionary action or exercise 
any discretionary powers, except discretionary rights and powers 
expressly contemplated by this Agreement that the Administrative Agent 
is required to exercise in writing by the Required Lenders (or such other 
number or percentage of the Lenders as shall be necessary under the 
circumstances as provided in Section 9.08), and (c) except as expressly 
set forth herein, the Administrative Agent shall not have any duty to 
disclose, and shall not be liable for the failure to disclose, any 
information relating to the Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries that is 
communicated to or obtained by the bank serving as Administrative 
Agent or any of its Affiliates in any capacity.  The Administrative Agent 
shall not be liable for any action taken or not taken by it with the consent 
or at the request of the Required Lenders (or such other number or 
percentage of the Lenders as shall be necessary under the circumstances 
as provided in Section 9.08) or in the absence of its own gross negligence 
or willful misconduct.  The Administrative Agent shall not be deemed to 
have knowledge of any Default unless and until written notice thereof is 
given to the Administrative Agent by the Borrower or a Lender, and the 
Administrative Agent shall not be responsible for or have any duty to 
ascertain or inquire into (i) any statement, warranty or representation 
made in or in connection with this Agreement, (ii) the contents of any 
certificate, report or other document delivered thereunder or in 
connection therewith, (iii) the performance or observance of any of the 
covenants, agreements or other terms or conditions set forth herein, (iv) 
the validity, enforceability, effectiveness or genuineness of this 
Agreement or any other agreement, instrument or document, or (v) the 
satisfaction of any condition set forth in Article IV or elsewhere herein, 
other than to confirm receipt of items expressly required to be delivered 
to the Administrative Agent. 
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The Administrative Agent shall be entitled to rely upon, and 
shall not incur any liability for relying upon, any notice, request, 
certificate, consent, statement, instrument, document or other writing 
believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or sent by the 
proper person.  The Administrative Agent may also rely upon any 
statement made to it orally or by telephone and believed by it to have 
been made by the proper person, and shall not incur any liability for 
relying thereon.  The Administrative Agent may consult with legal 
counsel (who may be counsel for the Borrower), independent 
accountants and other experts selected by it, and shall not be liable for 
any action taken or not taken by it in accordance with the advice of any 
such counsel, accountants or experts. 
 
The Administrative Agent may perform any and all its duties and 
exercise its rights and powers by or through any one or more sub-agents 
appointed by it.  The Administrative Agent and any such sub-agent may 
perform any and all its duties and exercise its rights and powers by or 
through their respective Related Parties.  The exculpatory provisions of 
the preceding paragraphs shall apply to any such sub-agent and to the 
Related Parties of each Administrative Agent and any such sub-agent, 
and shall apply to their respective activities in connection with the 
syndication of the credit facilities provided for herein as well as activities 
as Administrative Agent. 
 
Subject to the appointment and acceptance of a successor 
Administrative Agent as provided below, the Administrative Agent may 
resign at any time by notifying the Lenders and the Borrower.  Upon any 
such resignation, the Required Lenders shall have the right, with the 
consent of the Borrower (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld 
or delayed), to appoint a successor.  If no successor shall have been so 
appointed by the Required Lenders and shall have accepted such 
appointment within 30 days after the retiring Administrative Agent gives 
notice of its resignation, then the retiring Administrative Agent may, on 
behalf of the Lenders, appoint a successor Administrative Agent which 
shall be a bank with an office in New York, New York, or an Affiliate of 
any such bank, that is acceptable to the Borrower (which shall not 
unreasonably withhold its approval).  Upon the acceptance of its 
appointment as Administrative Agent hereunder by a successor, such 
successor shall succeed to and become vested with all the rights, powers, 
privileges and duties of the retiring Administrative Agent, and the 
retiring Administrative Agent shall be discharged from its duties and 
obligations hereunder. The fees payable by the Borrower to a successor 
Administrative  shall be the same as those payable to its predecessor 
unless otherwise agreed between the Borrower and such successor.  After 
the Administrative Agent's resignation hereunder, the provisions of this 
Article and Section 9.05 shall continue in effect for the benefit of such 
retiring Administrative Agent, its sub-agents and their respective Related 
Parties in respect of any actions taken or omitted to be taken by any of 
them while acting as Administrative Agent. 
 
Each Lender acknowledges that it has, independently and 
without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and 
based on such documents and information as it has deemed appropriate, 
made its own credit analysis and decision to enter into this Agreement. 
Each Lender also acknowledges that it will, independently and without 
reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and based 
on such documents and information as it shall from time to time deem 
appropriate, continue to make its own decisions in taking or not taking 
action under or based upon this Agreement, any related agreement or any 
document furnished hereunder or thereunder. 
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ARTICLE IX 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
SECTION 9.01.  Notices. Notices and other communications 
provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand or 
overnight courier service, mailed by certified or registered mail or sent 
by telecopy, as follows: 
 
(a) if to the Borrower, to it at 231 Maple Avenue, 
Burlington, NC 27215,  Attention of Wesley R. Elingburg 
(Telecopy No. (336) 436-1066); 
 
(b) if to the Administrative Agent, to Credit Suisse First 
Boston, Eleven Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10010, 
Attention of Ronald Davis, Agency Group (Telecopy No. 
(212) 325-8304, with a copy to Credit Suisse First Boston, at 
Eleven Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10010, Attention of 
Agency Group Manager  (Telecopy No. (212) 325-8304); and 
 
(c) if to a Lender, to it at its address (or telecopy 
number) set forth on Schedule 2.01 or in the Assignment and 
Acceptance pursuant to which such Lender shall have become a 
party hereto. 
 
All notices and other communications given to any party hereto in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to 
have been given on the date of receipt. 
 
SECTION 9.02.  Survival of Agreement. All covenants, 
agreements, representations and warranties made by the Borrower herein 
and in the certificates or other instruments prepared or delivered in 
connection with or pursuant to this Agreement shall be considered to 
have been relied upon by the Lenders and shall survive the making by 
the Lenders of the Loans, regardless of any investigation made by the 
Lenders or on their behalf, and shall continue in full force and effect as 
long as the principal of or any accrued interest on any Loan or any Fee or 
any other amount payable under this Agreement is outstanding and 
unpaid and so long as the Commitments have not been terminated.  The 
provisions of Sections 2.12, 2.14, 2.18 and 9.05 shall remain operative 
and in full force and effect regardless of the expiration of the term of this 
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, 
the repayment of any of the Loans, the expiration of the Commitments, 
the invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision of this 
Agreement, or any investigation made by or on behalf of the 
Administrative Agent or any Lender. 
 
SECTION 9.03.  Binding Effect. This Agreement shall become 
effective when it shall have been executed by the Borrower and the 
Administrative Agent and when the Administrative Agent shall have 
received counterparts hereof which, when taken together, bear the 
signatures of each of the other parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 9.04.  Successors and Assigns.  Whenever in this 
Agreement any of the parties hereto is referred to, such reference shall be 
deemed to include the permitted successors and assigns of such party; 
and all covenants, promises and agreements by or on behalf of the 
Borrower, the Administrative Agent or the Lenders that are contained in 
this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of their respective 
successors and assigns. 
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(b)  Each Lender may assign to one or more assignees all or a 
portion of its interests, rights and obligations under this Agreement 
(including all or a portion of its Commitment and the Loans at the time 
owing to it); provided, however, that (i) except in the case of (x) an 
assignment to a Lender or an Affiliate of a Lender or (y) an assignment 
by CSFB or an Affiliate of CSFB, (A) the Borrower and the 
Administrative Agent must give their prior written consent to such 
assignment (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed); provided, however, that the consent of the Borrower shall not 
be required to any such assignment during the continuance of any Event 
of Default described in paragraph (g) or (h) of Article VII, and (B) the 
amount of the Commitment of the assigning Lender subject to each such 
assignment (determined as of the date the Assignment and Acceptance 
with respect to such assignment is delivered to the Administrative Agent) 
shall not be less than $5,000,000 (or, if less, the entire remaining amount 
of such Lender's Commitment), (ii) each such assignment shall be of a 
constant, and not a varying, percentage of all the assigning Lender's 
rights and obligations under this Agreement, (iii) the parties to each such 
assignment shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent an 
Assignment and Acceptance, together with a processing and recordation 
fee of $3,500 and (iv) the assignee, if it shall not be a Lender, shall 
deliver to the Administrative Agent an Administrative Questionnaire and 
applicable tax forms.  Upon acceptance and recording pursuant to 
paragraph (e) of this Section 9.04, from and after the effective date 
specified in each Assignment and Acceptance, (A) the assignee 
thereunder shall be a party hereto and, to the extent of the interest 
assigned by such Assignment and Acceptance, have the rights and 
obligations of a Lender under this Agreement and (B) the assigning 
Lender thereunder shall, to the extent of the interest assigned by such 
Assignment and Acceptance, be released from its obligations under this 
Agreement (and, in the case of an Assignment and Acceptance covering 
all or the remaining portion of an assigning Lender's rights and 
obligations under this Agreement, such Lender shall cease to be a party 
hereto but shall continue to be entitled to the benefits of Sections 2.12, 
2.14, 2.18 and 9.05, as well as to any Fees accrued for its account and not 
yet paid). 
 
(c)  By executing and delivering an Assignment and Acceptance, 
the assigning Lender thereunder and the assignee thereunder shall be 
deemed to confirm to and agree with each other and the other parties 
hereto as follows:  (i) such assigning Lender warrants that it is the legal 
and beneficial owner of the interest being assigned thereby free and clear 
of any adverse claim and that its Commitment and the outstanding 
balance of its Loans, without giving effect to assignments thereof which 
have not become effective, are as set forth in such Assignment and 
Acceptance, (ii) except as set forth in (i) above, such assigning Lender 
makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with 
respect to any statements, warranties or representations made in or in 
connection with this Agreement, or the execution, legality, validity, 
enforceability, genuineness, sufficiency or value of this Agreement or 
any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto, or the 
financial condition of the Borrower or any Subsidiary or the performance 
or observance by the Borrower or any Subsidiary of any of its obligations 
under this Agreement or any other instrument or document furnished 
pursuant hereto; (iii) such assignee represents and warrants that it is 
legally authorized to enter into such Assignment and Acceptance; 
(iv) such assignee confirms that it has received a copy of this Agreement, 
together with copies of the most recent financial statements referred to in 
Section 3.05 or delivered pursuant to Section 5.04 and such other 
documents and information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own 
credit analysis and decision to enter into such Assignment and 
Acceptance; (v) such assignee will independently and without reliance 
upon the Administrative Agent, such assigning Lender or any other 
Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall deem 
appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in 
taking or not taking 
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action under this Agreement; (vi) such assignee appoints and authorizes 
the Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and 
to exercise such powers under this Agreement as are delegated to the 
Administrative Agent by the terms hereof, together with such powers as 
are reasonably incidental thereto; and (vii) such assignee agrees that it 
will perform in accordance with their terms all the obligations which by 
the terms of this Agreement are required to be performed by it as a Lender. 
 
(d)  The Administrative Agent, acting for this purpose as an 
agent of the Borrower, shall maintain at one of its offices in The City of 
New York a copy of each Assignment and Acceptance delivered to it and 
a register for the recordation of the names and addresses of the Lenders, 
and the Commitment of, and principal amount of the Loans owing to, 
each Lender pursuant to the terms hereof from time to time (the 
"Register").  The entries in the Register shall be conclusive and the 
Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders may treat each 
person whose name is recorded in the Register pursuant to the terms 
hereof as a Lender hereunder for all purposes of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding notice to the contrary.  The Register shall be available 
for inspection by the Borrower and any Lender, at any reasonable time 
and from time to time upon reasonable prior notice. 
 
(e)  Upon its receipt of a duly completed Assignment and 
Acceptance executed by an assigning Lender and an assignee, an 
Administrative Questionnaire completed in respect of the assignee 
(unless the assignee shall already be a Lender hereunder), the processing 
and recordation fee referred to in paragraph (b) above and, if required, 
the written consent of the Administrative Agent to such assignment, the 
Administrative Agent shall (i) accept such Assignment and Acceptance 
and (ii) record the information contained therein in the Register.  No 
assignment shall be effective unless it has been recorded in the Register 
as provided in this paragraph (e). 
 
(f)  Each Lender may without the consent of the Borrower or the 
Administrative Agent sell participations to one or more banks or other 
entities in all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this 
Agreement (including all or a portion of its Commitment and the Loans 
owing to it); provided, however, that (i) such Lender's obligations under 
this Agreement shall remain unchanged, (ii) such Lender shall remain 
solely responsible to the other parties hereto for the performance of such 
obligations, (iii) the participating banks or other entities shall be entitled 
to the benefit of the cost protection provisions contained in 
Sections 2.12, 2.14 and 2.18 to the same extent as if they were Lenders 
(but, with respect to any particular participant, to no greater extent than 
the Lender that sold the participation to such participant) and (iv) the 
Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders shall continue to 
deal solely and directly with such Lender in connection with such 
Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement, and such Lender 
shall retain the sole right to enforce the obligations of the Borrower 
relating to the Loans and to approve any amendment, modification or 
waiver of any provision of this Agreement (other than amendments, 
modifications or waivers decreasing any fees payable hereunder or the 
amount of principal of or the rate at which interest is payable on the 
Loans, extending any scheduled principal payment date or date fixed for 
the payment of interest on the Loans or increasing or extending the 
Commitments). 
 
(g)  Any Lender or participant may, in connection with any 
assignment or participation or proposed assignment or participation 
pursuant to this Section 9.04, disclose to the assignee or participant or 
proposed assignee or participant any information relating to the 
Borrower furnished to such Lender by or on behalf of the Borrower; 
provided that, prior to any such disclosure of 
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information designated by the Borrower as confidential, each such assignee 
or participant or proposed assignee or participant shall execute an agreement 
whereby such assignee or participant shall agree (subject to customary 
exceptions) to preserve the confidentiality of such confidential information 
on terms no less restrictive than those applicable to the Lenders pursuant to 
Section 9.16. 
 
(h)  Any Lender may at any time assign all or any portion of its 
rights under this Agreement to secure extensions of credit to such Lender 
or in support of obligations owed by such Lender; provided that no such 
assignment shall release a Lender from any of its obligations hereunder 
or substitute any such assignee for such Lender as a party hereto. 
 
(i)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, 
any Lender (a "Granting Lender") may grant to a special purpose 
funding vehicle (an "SPC"), identified as such in writing from time to 
time by the Granting Lender to the Administrative Agent and the 
Borrower, the option to provide to the Borrower all or any part of any 
Loan that such Granting Lender would otherwise be obligated to make to 
the Borrower pursuant to this Agreement; provided that (i) nothing 
herein shall constitute a commitment by any SPC to make any Loan and 
(ii) if an SPC elects not to exercise such option or otherwise fails to 
provide all or any part of such Loan, the Granting Lender shall be 
obligated to make such Loan pursuant to the terms hereof.  The making 
of a Loan by an SPC hereunder shall utilize the Commitment of the 
Granting Lender to the same extent, and as if, such Loan were made by 
such Granting Lender.  Each party hereto hereby agrees that no SPC 
shall be liable for any indemnity or similar payment obligation under this 
Agreement (all liability for which shall remain with the Granting 
Lender).  In furtherance of the foregoing, each party hereto hereby agrees 
(which agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement) that, 
prior to the date that is one year and one day after the payment in full of 
all outstanding commercial paper or other senior indebtedness of any 
SPC, it will not institute against, or join any other person in instituting 
against, such SPC any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, 
insolvency or liquidation proceedings under the laws of the United States 
or any State thereof.  In addition, notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained in this Section 9.04, any SPC may (i) with notice to, 
but without the prior written consent of, the Borrower and the 
Administrative Agent and without paying any processing fee therefor, 
assign all or a portion of its interests in any Loan to the Granting Lender 
or to any financial institutions (consented to by the Borrower and 
Administrative Agent) providing liquidity and/or credit support to or for 
the account of such SPC to support the funding or maintenance of Loans 
and (ii) disclose on a confidential basis any non-public information 
relating to its Loans to any rating agency, commercial paper dealer or 
provider of any surety, guarantee or credit or liquidity enhancement to 
such SPC. 
 
(j)  The Borrower shall not assign or delegate any of its rights or 
duties hereunder without the prior written consent of the Administrative 
Agent and each Lender, and any attempted assignment without such 
consent shall be null and void. 
 
SECTION 9.05.  Expenses; Indemnity.  The Borrower agrees 
to pay all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the 
Administrative Agent in connection with the syndication of the credit 
facilities provided for herein and the preparation and administration of 
this Agreement or in connection with any amendments, modifications or 
waivers of the provisions hereof (whether or not the transactions hereby 
or thereby contemplated shall be consummated) or incurred by the 
Administrative Agent or any Lender in connection with the enforcement or 
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protection of its rights in connection with this Agreement or in 
connection with the Loans made hereunder, including the reasonable 
fees, charges and disbursements of Cravath, Swaine & Moore, counsel 
for the Administrative Agent, and, in connection with any such 
enforcement or protection, the reasonable fees, charges and 
disbursements of any other counsel for the Administrative Agent or any 
Lender. 
 
(b)  The Borrower agrees to indemnify the Administrative Agent, 
each Lender and each Related Party of any of the foregoing persons 
(each such person being called an "Indemnitee") against, and to hold 
each Indemnitee harmless from, any and all losses, claims, damages, 
liabilities and related expenses, including reasonable counsel fees, 
charges and disbursements, incurred by or asserted against any 
Indemnitee (other than Taxes, Other Taxes or amounts that would be 
Other Taxes if imposed by the United States of America or any political 
subdivision thereof) arising out of, in any way connected with, or as a 
result of (i) the execution or delivery of this Agreement or any agreement 
or instrument contemplated thereby, the performance by the parties 
thereto of their respective obligations thereunder or the consummation of 
the Transactions and the other transactions contemplated thereby, (ii) the 
use of the proceeds of the Loans, or (iii) any claim, litigation, 
investigation or proceeding relating to any of the foregoing, whether or 
not any Indemnitee is a party thereto; provided that such indemnity shall 
not, as to any Indemnitee, be available to the extent that such losses, 
claims, damages, liabilities or related expenses (x) are determined by a 
court of competent jurisdiction by final and nonappealable judgment (a 
"Final Judgment") to have resulted from the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of such Indemnitee or (y) arise from any legal proceedings 
commenced against any Lender by any other Lender (other than legal 
proceedings against the Administrative Agent in its capacity as such) or 
in which a Final Judgment is rendered in the Borrower's favor against 
such Indemnitee. 
 
(c)  To the extent that the Borrower fails to pay any amount 
required to be paid by it to the Administrative Agent under paragraph (a) 
or (b) of this Section, each Lender severally agrees to pay to the 
Administrative Agent such Lender's pro rata share (determined as of the 
time that the applicable unreimbursed expense or indemnity payment is 
sought) of such unpaid amount; provided that the unreimbursed expense 
or indemnified loss, claim, damage, liability or related expense, as the 
case may be, was incurred by or asserted against the Administrative 
Agent in its capacity as such.  For purposes hereof, a Lender's "pro rata 
share" shall be determined based upon its share of the outstanding Loans. 
 
(d)  To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Borrower 
shall not assert, and hereby waives, any claim against any Indemnitee, on 
any theory of liability, for special, indirect, consequential or punitive 
damages (as opposed to direct or actual damages) arising out of, in 
connection with, or as a result of, this Agreement or any agreement or 
instrument contemplated hereby, the Transactions, any Loan or the use of 
the proceeds thereof. 
 
(e)  All amounts due under this Section 9.05 shall be payable not 
later than 15 days after written demand therefor. 
 
SECTION 9.06.  Right of Setoff. If an Event of Default shall 
have occurred and be continuing, each Lender is hereby authorized at 
any time and from time to time, except to the extent prohibited by law, to 
set off and apply any and all deposits (general or special, time or 
demand, provisional or final) at any time held and other indebtedness at 
any time owing by such Lender to or for the credit or the account of the 
Borrower against any of and all the obligations of 
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the Borrower now or hereafter existing under this Agreement held by such 
Lender, irrespective of whether or not such Lender shall have made any 
demand under this Agreement and although such obligations may be unmatured. 
The rights of each Lender under this Section 9.06 are in addition to other 
rights and remedies (including other rights of setoff) which such Lender may 
have. 
 
SECTION 9.07.  Applicable Law. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL 
BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY 
THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. 
 
SECTION 9.08.  Waivers; Amendment.  No failure or delay 
of the Administrative Agent or any Lender in exercising any power or 
right hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or 
partial exercise of any such right or power, or any abandonment or 
discontinuance of steps to enforce such a right or power, preclude any 
other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or 
power.  The rights and remedies of the Administrative Agent and the 
Lenders hereunder are cumulative and are not exclusive of any rights or 
remedies that they would otherwise have.  No waiver of any provision of 
this Agreement or consent to any departure by the Borrower therefrom 
shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be permitted by 
paragraph (b) below, and then such waiver or consent shall be effective 
only in the specific instance and for the purpose for which given.  No 
notice or demand on the Borrower in any case shall entitle the Borrower 
to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other 
circumstances. 
 
(b)  Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof may be 
waived, amended or modified except pursuant to an agreement or 
agreements in writing entered into by the Borrower and the Required 
Lenders; provided, however, that no such agreement shall (i) decrease the 
principal amount of, or extend the maturity of or any scheduled principal 
payment date or date for the payment of any interest on any Loan, or 
waive or excuse any such payment or any part thereof, or decrease the 
rate of interest on any Loan, without the prior written consent of each 
Lender affected thereby, (ii) increase or extend the Commitment or 
decrease or extend the date for payment of any Fees of any Lender 
without the prior written consent of such Lender, (iii) amend or modify 
the pro rata requirements of Section 2.15, the provisions of Section 
9.04(j), the provisions of this Section or the definition of the term 
"Required Lenders", without the prior written consent of each Lender or 
(iv) modify the protections afforded to an SPC pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 9.04(i) without the written consent of such SPC; provided 
further that no such agreement shall amend, modify or otherwise affect 
the rights or duties of the Administrative Agent hereunder without the 
prior written consent of the Administrative Agent. 
 
SECTION 9.09.  Interest Rate Limitation. Notwithstanding 
anything herein to the contrary, if at any time the interest rate applicable 
to any Loan, together with all fees, charges and other amounts which are 
treated as interest on such Loan under applicable law (collectively the 
"Charges"), shall exceed the maximum lawful rate (the "Maximum 
Rate") which may be contracted for, charged, taken, received or reserved 
by the Lender holding such Loan or participation in accordance with 
applicable law, the rate of interest payable in respect of such Loan or 
participation hereunder, together with all Charges payable in respect 
thereof, shall be limited to the Maximum Rate and, to the extent lawful, 
the interest and Charges that would have been payable in respect of such 
Loan or participation but were not payable as a result of the operation of 
this Section 9.09 shall be cumulated and the interest and Charges payable 
to such Lender in respect of other Loans or participations or periods shall 
be increased (but not above the 
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Maximum Rate therefor) until such cumulated amount, together with interest 
thereon at the Federal Funds Effective Rate to the date of repayment, shall 
have been received by such Lender. 
 
SECTION 9.10.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Fee 
Letter dated November 8, 2002, between the Borrower and CSFB, 
constitute the entire contract between the parties relative to the subject 
matter hereof.  Any other previous agreement among the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof is superseded by this Agreement. 
Nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, is intended to confer 
upon any person (other than the parties hereto, their respective 
successors and assigns permitted hereunder and, to the extent expressly 
contemplated hereby, the Related Parties of each of the Administrative 
Agent and the Lenders) any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities 
under or by reason of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 9.11.  WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY 
HERETO HEREBY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE 
TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION 
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT.  EACH PARTY HERETO 
(A) CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR 
ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, 
EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY 
WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO 
ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER AND 
(B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES 
HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS 
AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL 
WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 9.11. 
 
SECTION 9.12.  Severability. In the event any one or more of 
the provisions contained in this Agreement should be held invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability 
of the remaining provisions contained herein and therein shall not in any 
way be affected or impaired thereby (it being understood that the 
invalidity of a particular provision in a particular jurisdiction shall not in 
and of itself affect the validity of such provision in any other 
jurisdiction).  The parties shall endeavor in good-faith negotiations to 
replace the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions with valid 
provisions the economic effect of which comes as close as possible to 
that of the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions. 
 
SECTION 9.13.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be 
executed in counterparts (and by different parties hereto on different 
counterparts), each of which shall constitute an original but all of which 
when taken together shall constitute a single contract, and shall become 
effective as provided in Section 9.03.  Delivery of an executed signature 
page to this Agreement by facsimile transmission shall be as effective as 
delivery of a manually signed counterpart of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 9.14.  Headings. Article and Section headings and the 
Table of Contents used herein are for convenience of reference only, are 
not part of this Agreement and are not to affect the construction of, or to 
be taken into consideration in interpreting, this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 9.15.  Jurisdiction; Consent to Service of Process. 
The Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits, for 
itself and its property, to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of any New York 
State court or Federal court of the United States of America sitting in 
New York City, and any appellate court from any thereof, in any action 
or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or for 
recognition or enforcement of any judgment, and each 
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of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably and unconditionally agrees that all 
claims in respect of any such action or proceeding may be heard and determined 
in such New York State or, to the extent permitted by law, in such Federal 
court.  Each of the parties hereto agrees that a final judgment in any such 
action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be enforced in other 
jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by 
law.  Nothing in this Agreement shall affect any right that the 
Administrative Agent or any Lender may otherwise have to bring any 
action or proceeding relating to this Agreement against the Borrower or 
its properties in the courts of any jurisdiction. 
 
(b)  The Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally 
waives, to the fullest extent it may legally and effectively do so, any 
objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of 
any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement 
in any New York State or Federal court.  Each of the parties hereto 
hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
defense of an inconvenient forum to the maintenance of such action or 
proceeding in any such court. 
 
(c)  Each party to this Agreement irrevocably consents to service 
of process in the manner provided for notices in Section 9.01.  Nothing 
in this Agreement will affect the right of any party to this Agreement to 
serve process in any other manner permitted by law. 
 
SECTION 9.16.  Confidentiality.  Each of the Administrative 
Agent and the Lenders agrees to maintain the confidentiality of the 
Information (as defined below), except that Information may be 
disclosed (a) to its and its Affiliates' officers, directors, employees and 
agents, including accountants, legal counsel and other advisors who need 
to know such Information in connection with its role as Administrative 
Agent or Lender (as the case may be) hereunder (it being understood that 
the persons to whom such disclosure is made will be informed of the 
confidential nature of such Information and instructed to keep such 
Information confidential), (b) to the extent requested by any regulatory 
authority or quasi-regulatory authority (such as the National Association 
of Insurance Commissioners) (provided that, to the extent permitted by 
applicable law and practicable under the circumstances, such person will 
first inform the Borrower of any such request), (c) to the extent required 
by applicable laws or regulations or by any subpoena or similar legal 
process (provided that, to the extent permitted by applicable law, such 
person will promptly notify the Borrower of such requirement as far in 
advance of its disclosure as is practicable to enable the Borrower to seek 
a protective order and, to the extent practicable, such person will 
cooperate with the Borrower in seeking any such order), (d) in 
connection with the exercise of any remedies hereunder or any suit, 
action or proceeding relating to the enforcement of its rights hereunder, 
(e) subject to an agreement containing provisions substantially the same 
as those of this Section 9.16, to (i) any actual or prospective assignee of 
or participant in any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement or 
(ii) any actual or prospective counterparty (or its advisors) to any credit 
default swap or similar credit derivative transaction relating to the 
obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement, (f) with the consent of 
the Borrower or (g) to the extent such Information becomes publicly 
available other than as a result of a breach of this Section 9.16.  For the 
purposes of this Section, "Information" shall mean all information 
received from the Borrower and related to the Borrower or its business, 
other than any such information that was available to the Administrative 
Agent or any Lender on a nonconfidential basis prior to its disclosure by 
the Borrower.  Each of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders agrees 
that, except as expressly provided in this Section 9.16, it will use 
 



 
48 
 
 
Information only in connection with its role as Administrative Agent or 
Lender (as the case may be) hereunder. 
 
SECTION 9.17.  Syndication of Commitments and Loans. 
Pursuant to the Commitment Letter dated November 8, 2002, between 
the Borrower and CSFB, the Borrower has agreed to, among other 
things, actively assist CSFB in completing a satisfactory syndication of 
the Commitments and Loans hereunder, which syndication may occur, if 
at all, prior to or after the Closing Date.  Without limiting the obligations 
of the Borrower with respect to and under such Commitment Letter and 
this Agreement, in order to ensure a successful syndication of the 
Commitments and the Loans, the Borrower hereby agrees (a) to enter 
into any amendment of the Existing Borrower Credit Agreements and 
any amendment or amendment and restatement of this Agreement 
reasonably proposed by the Administrative Agent to accomplish any of 
the changes that may be made by CSFB pursuant to the sixth paragraph 
of the Fee Letter dated November 8, 2002, between the Borrower and 
CSFB; provided that the Total Commitment shall remain unchanged, and 
(b) to pay all Participation Fees (as defined in the Fee Letter dated 
November 8, 2002, between the Borrower and CSFB) in connection with 
any syndication of the Commitments and Loans hereunder. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 
Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized officers as 
of the day and year first above written. 
 
LABORATORY CORPORATION OF AMERICA HOLDINGS, 
 
By: 
   ---------------------------------------- 
   Name: 
   Title: 
 
 
CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON, acting through its 
Cayman Islands Branch, individually and as 
Administrative Agent, 
 
By: 
   ------------------------------------------ 
   Name: 
   Title 
 
By: 
   ------------------------------------------ 
   Name: 
   Title: 
 
 
 



AMENDMENT NO. 1 dated as of January 14, 
2003 (this "Amendment"), to the THREE-YEAR 
CREDIT AGREEMENT dated as of February 20, 2002 
(the "Credit Agreement"), among LABORATORY 
CORPORATION OF AMERICA HOLDINGS, a 
Delaware corporation (the "Borrower"), the Lenders (as 
defined in Article I of the Credit Agreement), and 
CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON, as administrative 
agent (in such capacity, the "Administrative Agent") for 
the Lenders. 
 
A.  Pursuant to the Credit Agreement, the Lenders and the Issuing Bank 
have extended, and have agreed to extend, credit to the Borrower. 
 
B.  The Borrower has requested that the Required Lenders agree to 
amend certain provisions of the Credit Agreement as provided herein.  The 
Required Lenders are willing so to amend the Credit Agreement on the terms and 
subject to the conditions set forth herein. 
 
C.  Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings 
assigned to them in the Credit Agreement. 
Accordingly, in consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained 
and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  Amendments to the Credit Agreement.  (a) Section 1.01 of 
the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by inserting the following definition in 
the appropriate alphabetical order therein: 
 
""Acquisition" shall mean the acquisition by the Borrower or any 
wholly owned Subsidiary of the Borrower of all or substantially all of the 
assets of a person or line of business of such person, or all or 
substantially all of the Equity Interests of a person, in each case where 
the aggregate consideration (in whatever form) payable by the Borrower 
or any Subsidiary exceeds $10,000,000.". 
 
(b) The definition of the term "Leverage Ratio" set forth in Section 1.01 
of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by inserting the following sentences 
at the end thereof: 
 
    "Solely for purposes of this definition, if at the time of any 
determination of the Leverage Ratio an Acquisition shall have been 
completed during the relevant period, the Consolidated EBITDA for such 
period shall be reformulated on a pro forma basis to give effect to such 
Acquisition as if it had occurred on the first day of such period.  For 
purposes of the foregoing, all pro forma adjustments shall be (a) only 
those required or permitted by Regulation S-X of the Securities Act of 
1933 or otherwise based on reasonably detailed written assumptions 
reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent and (b) certified by a 
Financial Officer of the Borrower as having been prepared in good faith 
based upon reasonable assumptions.". 
 
(c) Section 3.14 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting 
the amount "$50,000,000" set forth therein and substituting therefor the amount 
"$60,000,000". 
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(d) Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) 
inserting immediately before the words "except that" set forth therein the 
words "or liquidate or dissolve," (ii) deleting the word "and" at the end of 
clause (a) thereof and substituting a comma therefor and (iii) inserting the 
following clause immediately before the period at the end thereof: 
 
     "and (c) any Subsidiary may liquidate or dissolve if the 
     Borrower determines in good faith that such liquidation or dissolution is 
     in the best interests of the Borrower and is not materially 
     disadvantageous to the Lenders". 
 
SECTION 2.  Representations and Warranties.  To induce the other 
parties hereto to enter into this Amendment, the Borrower represents and 
warrants to each of the Lenders, the Administrative Agent and the Issuing Bank 
that: 
 
(a)  After giving effect to this Amendment, the representations and 
warranties set forth in Article III of the Credit Agreement are true and 
correct in all material respects on and as of the date hereof with the same 
effect as though made on and as of the date hereof, except to the extent 
such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date. 
 
(b)  After giving effect to this Amendment, no Default or Event of 
Default has occurred and is continuing. 
 
SECTION 3.  Conditions to Effectiveness.  This Amendment shall 
become effective as of the date first above written on the date that the 
Administrative Agent shall have received counterparts of this Amendment that, 
when taken together, bear the signatures of the Borrower and the Required 
Lenders. 
 
SECTION 4.  Effect of Amendment.  Except as expressly set forth herein, 
this Amendment shall not by implication or otherwise limit, impair, constitute 



a waiver of, or otherwise affect the rights and remedies of the Lenders, the 
Administrative Agent or the Issuing Bank under the Credit Agreement, and shall 
not alter, modify, amend or in any way affect any of the terms, conditions, 
obligations, covenants or agreements contained in the Credit Agreement, all of 
which are ratified and affirmed in all respects and shall continue in full 
force and effect.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to entitle the Borrower to 
a consent to, or a waiver, amendment, modification or other change of, any of 
the terms, conditions, obligations, covenants or agreements contained in the 
Credit Agreement in similar or different circumstances.  This Amendment shall 
apply and be effective only with respect to the provisions of the Credit 
Agreement specifically referred to herein.  After the date hereof, any 
reference to the Credit Agreement shall mean the Credit Agreement as modified 
hereby. 
 
SECTION 5.  Applicable Law.  THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE 
GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE 
LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK. 
 
SECTION 6.  Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in 
counterparts (and by different parties hereto on different counterparts), 
each of which shall constitute an original but all of which when taken 
together shall constitute a single contract.  Delivery of an executed 
signature page to this Amendment by facsimile transmission shall be effective 
as delivery of a manually signed counterpart of this Amendment. 
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SECTION 7.  Expenses.  The Borrower agrees to reimburse the 
Administrative Agent for its out-of-pocket expenses in connection with this 
Amendment, including the reasonable fees, charges and disbursements of 
Cravath, Swaine & Moore, counsel for the Administrative Agent. 
 
SECTION 8.  Headings.  The headings of this Amendment are for 
purposes of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning 
hereof. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 
Amendment to be duly executed by their respective authorized officers as of the 
day and year first above written. 
 
 
LABORATORY CORPORATION OF AMERICA HOLDINGS, 
 
     By: 
       ------------------------------------ 
       Name: 
       Title: 
 
 
CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON, individually and as 
Administrative Agent and Issuing Bank, 
 
     By: 
        ------------------------------------ 
        Name: 
        Title: 
 
     By: 
        ------------------------------------ 
        Name: 
        Title: 
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SIGNATURE PAGE TO AMENDMENT NO.1  DATED AS 
OF THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN, TO THE 
LABORATORY CORPORATION OF AMERICA HOLDINGS 
THREE-YEAR CREDIT AGREEMENT DATED AS OF 
FEBRUARY 20, 2002 
 
 
 
NAME OF LENDER: 
               -------------------------------- 
     By: 
         -------------------------------------- 
         Name: 
         Title: 
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364-DAY CREDIT AGREEMENT dated as of  January 
14, 2003, among LABORATORY CORPORATION OF 
AMERICA HOLDINGS, a Delaware corporation (the 
"Borrower"), the Lenders (as defined in Article I), and CREDIT 
SUISSE FIRST BOSTON, as administrative agent (in such 
capacity, the "Administrative Agent") for the Lenders. 
 
The Borrower has requested the Lenders to extend credit in the form of 
Revolving Loans (such term and each other capitalized term used but not 
defined herein having the meaning given it in Article I) at any time and 
from time to time prior to the Maturity Date, in an aggregate 
principal amount at any time outstanding not in excess of $150,000,000.  The 
Borrower has also requested the Lenders to provide a procedure pursuant to 
which the Borrower may invite the Lenders to bid on an uncommitted basis on 
short-term borrowings by the Borrower.  The proceeds of the Loans are to be 
used solely for general corporate purposes of the Borrower and its 
Subsidiaries, including (a) working capital, (b) capital expenditures, 
(c) the funding of share repurchases and other Restricted Payments permitted 
hereunder, (d) acquisitions and (e) the repayment of all amounts outstanding 
or due under the Existing Credit Agreement. 
 
The Lenders are willing to extend such credit to the Borrower on the terms and 
subject to the conditions set forth herein.  Accordingly, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I 
 
Definitions 
 
SECTION 1.01.  Defined Terms.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms 
shall have the meanings specified below: 
 
"ABR", when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers to whether such 
Loan, or the Loans comprising such Borrowing, are bearing interest at a rate 
determined by reference to the Alternate Base Rate. 
 
"Acquisition" shall mean the acquisition by the Borrower or any wholly owned 
Subsidiary of the Borrower of all or substantially all of the assets of a 
person or line of business of such person, or all or substantially all of the 
Equity Interests of a person, in each case where the aggregate consideration 
(in whatever form) payable by the Borrower or any Subsidiary exceeds 
$10,000,000. 
 
"Administrative Agent Fees" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in 
Section 2.06(b). 
 
"Administrative Questionnaire" shall mean an Administrative Questionnaire in 
the form of Exhibit A, or such other form as may be supplied from time to time 
by the Administrative Agent. 
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"Affiliate" shall mean, when used with respect to a specified person, another 
person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, 
Controls or is Controlled by or is under common Control with the person 
specified. 
 
"Aggregate Revolving Credit Exposure" shall mean the aggregate amount of the 
Lenders' Revolving Credit Exposures. 
 
"Alternate Base Rate" shall mean, for any day, a rate per annum equal to the 
greater of (a) the Prime Rate in effect on such day and (b) the Federal Funds 
Effective Rate in effect on such day plus 1/2 of 1%.  Any change in the 
Alternate Base Rate due to a change in the Prime Rate or the Federal Funds 
Effective Rate shall be effective on the effective date of such change in 
the Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Effective Rate, respectively. 
 
"Applicable Percentage" shall mean, for any day, with respect to any 
Eurodollar Loan (other than any Eurodollar Competitive Loan) or ABR Loan, 
or with respect to the Facility Fees, as the case may be, the applicable 
percentage set forth below under the caption "Eurodollar Spread", "ABR Spread" 
or "Facility Fee Percentage", as the case may be, based upon the rating 
by S&P applicable on such date to the Index Debt: 
 
                             Eurodollar             ABR         Facility Fee 
S&P Rating                    Spread              Spread         Percentage 
- ----------                  -----------          --------      -------------- 
 
Category 1 
- ---------- 
Equal to or greater than A-   0.545%               0.00%           0.080% 
 
 
Category 2 
- ---------- 
BBB+                          0.650%               0.00%           0.100% 
 
Category 3 
- ---------- 
BBB                           0.875%               0.00%           0.125% 
 
Category 4 
- ---------- 
BBB-                          1.200%               0.200%          0.175% 
 
Category 5 
- ---------- 
Less than BBB-                1.525%               0.525%          0.225% 
 
 
For purposes of the foregoing, (i) if S&P shall not have in effect a 
rating for the Index Debt (other than by reason of the circumstances 
referred to in the last sentence of this definition), then S&P shall be 
deemed to have established a rating in Category 5; and (ii) if the rating 
established or deemed to have been established by S&P for the Index Debt 
shall be changed (other than as a result of a change in the rating system 
of S&P), such change shall be effective as of the date on which it is 
first announced by S&P.  Each change in the Applicable Percentage 
shall apply during the period commencing on the effective date of such 
change and ending on the date immediately preceding the effective date of 
the next such change.  If the rating system of S&P shall change, or if S&P 
shall cease to be in the business of rating corporate debt obligations, 
the Borrower and the Lenders shall negotiate in good faith to amend this 
definition to reflect such changed rating system or the non-availability 
of a rating from S&P and, pending the effectiveness of any such amendment, 
the Applicable Percentage shall be determined by reference to the rating 
most recently in effect prior to such change or cessation. 
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"Assignment and Acceptance" shall mean an assignment and acceptance 
entered into by a Lender and an assignee (with the consent of any party 
whose consent is required by Section 9.04), and accepted by the 
Administrative Agent, in the form of Exhibit B or such other form as shall 
be approved by the Administrative Agent. 
 
"Board" shall mean the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of 
the United States of America. 
 
"Borrowing" shall mean (a) Loans of the same Type made, converted or 
continued on the same date and, in the case of Eurodollar Loans, as to 
which a single Interest Period is in effect or (b) a Borrowing described 
in the definition of the term "Competitive Borrowing". 
 
"Borrowing Request" shall mean a request by the Borrower in accordance 
with the terms of Section 2.04. 
 
"Business Day" shall mean any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or day on 
which banks in New York City are authorized or required by law to close; 
provided, however, that when used in connection with a Eurodollar Loan, 
the term "Business Day" shall also exclude any day on which banks are not 
open for dealings in dollar deposits in the London interbank market. 
Capital Lease Obligations" of any person shall mean the obligations of 
such person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease of (or other 
arrangement conveying the right to use) real or personal property, or a 
combination thereof, which obligations are required to be classified 
and accounted for as capital leases on a balance sheet of such person 
under GAAP, and the amount of such obligations shall be the capitalized 
amount thereof determined in accordance with GAAP. 
 
A "Change in Control" shall be deemed to have occurred if (a) any person 
or group (within the meaning of Rule 13d-5 of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 as in effect on the date hereof) shall own directly or indirectly, 
beneficially or of record, shares representing more than 
40% of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by the issued and 
outstanding capital stock of the Borrower or (b) a majority of the seats 
(other than vacant seats) on the board of directors of the Borrower shall 
at any time be occupied by persons who were neither (i) nominated by the 
board of directors of the Borrower, nor (ii) appointed by directors so 
nominated. 
 
"Change in Law" shall mean (a) the adoption of any law, rule or regulation 
after the date of this Agreement, (b) any change in any law, rule or 
regulation or in the interpretation or application thereof by any 
Governmental Authority after the date of this Agreement or (c) 
compliance by any Lender (or, for purposes of Section 2.13, by any lending 
office of such Lender or by such Lender's holding company, if any) with 
any request, guideline or directive (whether or not having the force of 
law) of any Governmental Authority made or issued after the date of this 
Agreement. 
 
"Closing Date" shall mean January 14, 2003. 
 
"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time 
to time. 
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"Commitment" shall mean, with respect to each Lender, the commitment of 
such Lender to make Loans hereunder as set forth on Schedule 2.01, or in 
the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which such Lender assumed its 
Commitment, as applicable, as the same may be (a) reduced from time to 
time pursuant to Section 2.10 and (b) reduced or increased from time to 
time pursuant to assignments by or to such Lender pursuant to Section 
9.04. 
 
"Competitive Bid" shall mean an offer by a Lender to make a Competitive 
Loan pursuant to Section 2.03(b) in the form of Exhibit D-3. 
 
"Competitive Bid Accept/Reject Letter" shall mean a notification made by 
the Borrower pursuant to Section 2.03(d) in the form of Exhibit D-4. 
 
"Competitive Bid Rate" shall mean, as to any Competitive Bid, (i) in the 
case of a Eurodollar Loan, the Margin, and (ii) in the case of a Fixed 
Rate Loan, the fixed rate of interest offered by the Lender making such 
Competitive Bid. 
 
"Competitive Bid Request" shall mean a request made by the Borrower 
pursuant to Section 2.03(a). 
 
"Competitive Borrowing" shall mean a Borrowing consisting of a Competitive 
Loan or concurrent Competitive Loans from the Lender or Lenders whose 
Competitive Bids for such Borrowing have been accepted by the Borrower 
under the bidding procedure described in Section 2.03. 
 
"Competitive Loan" shall mean a Loan from a Lender to the Borrower 
pursuant to the bidding procedure described in Section 2.03.  Each 
Competitive Loan shall be a Eurodollar Competitive Loan or a Fixed Rate 
Loan. 
 
"Confidential Information Memorandum" shall mean the Confidential 
Information Memorandum of the Borrower dated December 2002. 
 
"Consolidated EBITDA" shall mean, for any period, Consolidated Net Income 
for such period plus (a) without duplication and to the extent deducted in 
determining such Consolidated Net Income, the sum of (i) consolidated 
interest expense net of interest income for such period, 
(ii) consolidated income tax expense for such period, (iii) all amounts 
attributable to depreciation and amortization for such period and (iv) any 
extraordinary charges and all non-cash write-offs and write-downs of 
amortizable and depreciable items for such period, and minus (b) without 
duplication, to the extent included in determining such Consolidated Net 
Income, any extraordinary gains and all non-cash items of income for such 
period, all determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP. 
 
"Consolidated Interest Expense" shall mean, for any period, the interest 
expense (including (a)  imputed interest expense in respect of Capital 
Lease Obligations and (b) the amortization of original issue discount in 
connection with the Subordinated Notes and other Indebtedness issued with 
original issue discount) of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries for such 
period, net of interest income, in each case  determined on a consolidated 
basis in accordance with GAAP. For purposes of the foregoing, interest 
expense shall be determined after giving 
 



 
5 
 
 
effect to any net payments made or received by the Borrower or any 
Subsidiary with respect to interest rate Hedging Agreements. 
 
"Consolidated Net Income" shall mean, for any period, the net income or 
loss of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries for such period determined on a 
consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP. 
 
"Control" shall mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power 
to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of a 
person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or 
otherwise, and the terms "Controlling" and "Controlled" shall have 
meanings correlative thereto. 
 
"Default" shall mean any event or condition which upon notice, lapse of 
time or both would constitute an Event of Default. 
 
"dollars" or "$" shall mean lawful money of the United States of America. 
 
"Environmental Laws" shall mean all laws, rules, regulations, codes, 
ordinances, orders, decrees, judgments or  injunctions issued, promulgated 
or entered into by any Governmental Authority, relating to the 
environment, the preservation or reclamation of natural resources, the 
management or release of Hazardous Materials or to the effect of the 
environment on human health and safety. 
 
"Environmental Liability" shall mean liabilities, obligations, claims, 
actions, suits, judgments or orders under or relating to any Environmental 
Law for any damages, injunctive relief, losses, fines, penalties, fees, 
expenses (including fees and expenses of attorneys and consultants) or 
costs, whether contingent or otherwise, including those arising from or 
relating to (a) any action to address the on- or off-site presence, 
release of, or exposure to, Hazardous Materials, (b) permitting and 
licensing, governmental administrative oversight and financial 
assurance requirements, (c) any personal injury (including death), any 
property damage (real or personal) or natural resource damage and (d) the 
violation of any Environmental Law. 
 
"Equity Interests" shall mean shares of capital stock, partnership 
interests, membership interests in a limited liability company, beneficial 
interests in a trust or other equity interests in any person, or any 
obligations convertible into or exchangeable for, or giving any person a 
right, option or warrant to acquire such equity interests or such 
convertible or exchangeable obligations; provided that the Subordinated 
Notes are deemed not to constitute Equity Interests of the Borrower. 
 
"ERISA" shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as 
amended from time to time. 
 
"ERISA Affiliate" shall mean any trade or business (whether or not 
incorporated) that, together with the Borrower, is treated as a single 
employer under Section 414(b) or (c) of the Code, or solely for purposes 
of Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the Code, is treated as a 
single employer under Section 414 of the Code. 
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"ERISA Event" shall mean (a) any "reportable event", as defined in Section 
4043 of ERISA or the regulations issued thereunder, with respect to a Plan 
(other than an event for which the 30-day notice period is waived); (b) 
the existence with respect to any Plan of an "accumulated funding 
deficiency" (as defined in Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of 
ERISA), whether or not waived; (c) the filing pursuant to Section 412(d) 
of the Code or Section 303(d) of ERISA of an application for a waiver of 
the minimum funding standard with respect to any Plan; (d) the 
incurrence by the Borrower or any of its ERISA Affiliates of any liability 
under Title IV of ERISA with respect to the termination of any Plan or the 
withdrawal or partial withdrawal of the Borrower or any of its ERISA 
Affiliates from any Plan or Multiemployer Plan; (e) the receipt by 
the Borrower or any of its ERISA Affiliates from the PBGC or a plan 
administrator of any notice relating to the intention to terminate any 
Plan or Plans or to appoint a trustee to administer any Plan; (f) the 
adoption of any amendment to a Plan that would require the provision of 
security pursuant to Section 401(a)(29) of the Code or Section 307 of 
ERISA; (g) the receipt by the Borrower or any of its ERISA Affiliates of 
any notice, or the receipt by any Multiemployer Plan from the Borrower or 
any of its ERISA Affiliates of any notice, concerning the imposition of 
Withdrawal Liability or a determination that a Multiemployer Plan is, or 
is expected to be, insolvent or in reorganization, within the meaning of 
Title IV of ERISA; or (h) the occurrence of a "prohibited transaction" 
with respect to which the Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries is a 
"disqualified person" (within the meaning of Section 4975 of the Code) or 
with respect to which the Borrower or any such Subsidiary could otherwise 
be liable. 
 
"Eurodollar", when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers to 
whether such Loan, or the Loans comprising such Borrowing, are bearing 
interest at a rate determined by reference to the LIBO Rate. 
 
"Event of Default" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Article 
VII. 
 
"Excluded Taxes" shall mean, with respect to the Administrative Agent, any 
Lender or any other recipient of any payment to be made by or on account 
of any obligation of the Borrower hereunder, (a) income, franchise or 
similar taxes imposed on (or measured by) its net income by 
the United States of America, the jurisdiction under the laws of which 
such recipient is organized or in which its principal office is located 
(or, in the case of any Lender, in which its applicable 
lending office is located), or, in the case of a jurisdiction that imposes 
taxes on the basis of management or control or other concept or principle 
of residence, the jurisdiction in which such recipient is so resident, (b) 
Taxes imposed by reason of any present or former connection between 
such person and the jurisdiction imposing such Taxes, other than solely as 
a result of the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the making of 
any Loans hereunder or the performance of any action provided for 
hereunder, (c) any branch profits taxes imposed by the United States of 
America or any similar tax imposed by any other jurisdiction in which the 
Borrower is located and (d) in the case of a Foreign Lender (other than as 
an assignee pursuant to a request by the Borrower under Section 2.20(a)), 
any withholding tax that (i) is imposed on amounts payable to 
such Foreign Lender at the time such Foreign Lender becomes a party to his 
Agreement (or designates a new lending office), except to the extent that 
such Foreign Lender (or its assignor, if any) was entitled, at the time of 
designation of a new lending office (or assignment), to receive 
additional amounts from the Borrower with respect to such withholding tax 
pursuant to Section 2.19(a) or (ii) is attributable to such Foreign 
Lender's failure to comply with Section 2.19(e). 
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"Existing Credit Agreement" shall mean the 364-Day Credit Agreement dated 
as of February 20, 2002, among the Borrower, the lenders from time to time 
party thereto, and Credit Suisse First Boston, as administrative agent. 
 
"Facility Fee" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 
2.06(a). 
 
"Federal Funds Effective Rate" shall mean, for any day, the weighted 
average (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the next 1/100 of 1%) of the 
rates on overnight Federal funds transactions with members of the Federal 
Reserve System arranged by Federal funds brokers, as published on the next 
succeeding Business Day by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or, if 
such rate is not so published for any day that is a Business Day, the 
average (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the next 1/100 of 1%) of the 
quotations for the day for such transactions received by the 
Administrative Agent from three Federal funds brokers of recognized 
standing selected by it. 
 
"Fees" shall mean the Facility Fees and the Administrative Agent Fees. 
 
"Financial Officer" of any person shall mean the chief financial officer, 
principal accounting officer, Treasurer or Controller of such person. 
 
"Fixed Rate Borrowing" shall mean a Borrowing comprised of Fixed Rate 
Loans. 
 
"Fixed Rate Loan" shall mean any Competitive Loan bearing interest at a 
fixed percentage rate per annum (expressed in the form of a decimal to no 
more than four decimal places) specified by the Lender making such Loan in 
its Competitive Bid. 
 
"Foreign Lender" shall mean any Lender that is organized under the laws of 
a jurisdiction other than that in which the Borrower is located. For 
purposes of this definition, the United States of America, each State 
thereof and the District of Columbia shall be deemed to constitute a 
single jurisdiction. 
 
"GAAP" shall mean generally accepted accounting principles applied on a 
consistent basis. 
 
"Governmental Authority" shall mean any Federal, state, local or foreign 
court or governmental agency, authority, instrumentality or regulatory 
body. 
 
"Granting Lender" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 
9.04(i). 
 
"Guarantee" of or by any person (the "guarantor") shall mean any 
obligation, contingent or otherwise, of such person guaranteeing or having 
the economic effect of guaranteeing any Indebtedness of any other person 
(the "primary obligor") in any manner, whether directly or indirectly, and 
including any obligation of the guarantor, direct or indirect, (a) to 
purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds for the purchase or payment 
of) such Indebtedness or to purchase (or to advance or supply funds for 
the purchase of) any security for the payment of such Indebtedness, (b) to 
purchase or lease property, securities or services for the purpose of 
assuring the owner of such Indebtedness of the payment of such 
Indebtedness or other obligation, (c) to maintain working capital, equity 
capital or any other financial statement condition or liquidity of 
the primary obligor so as to enable the primary obligor to pay such 
Indebtedness or (d) as an 
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account party in respect of any letter of credit or letter of guaranty 
issued to support such Indebtedness; provided, however, that the term 
"Guarantee" shall not include endorsements for collection or deposit in 
the ordinary course of business. 
 
"Hazardous Materials" shall mean (a) petroleum products and byproducts, 
asbestos, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, polychlorinated biphenyls, 
radon gas, chlorofluorocarbons and all other ozone-depleting substances 
and (b) any chemical, material, substance, waste, pollutant or 
contaminant that is prohibited, limited or regulated by or pursuant to 
any Environmental Law. 
 
"Hedging Agreement" shall mean any interest rate protection agreement, 
foreign currency exchange agreement, commodity price protection agreement 
or other interest or currency exchange rate or commodity price hedging 
arrangement. 
 
"Indebtedness" of any person shall mean, without duplication, (a) all 
obligations of such person for borrowed money, (b) all obligations of such 
person evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments, (c) 
all obligations of such person under conditional sale or other title 
retention agreements relating to property or assets purchased by such 
person, (d) all obligations of such person issued or assumed as the 
deferred purchase price of property or services (excluding trade accounts 
payable and accrued obligations incurred in the ordinary course of 
business), (e) all Indebtedness of others secured by (or for which the 
holder of such Indebtedness has an existing right, contingent or 
otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien on property owned or acquired 
by such person, whether or not the obligations secured thereby have been 
assumed, (f) all Guarantees by such person of Indebtedness of others, (g) 
all Capital Lease Obligations of such person, (h) all obligations, 
contingent or otherwise, of such person as an account party in respect of 
letters of credit and letters of guaranty, (i) all obligations, contingent 
or otherwise, of such person in respect of bankers' acceptances and (j) 
all obligations of such person to make contingent cash payments in respect 
of any acquisition, to the extent such obligations are or are required to 
be shown as liabilities on the balance sheet of such person in accordance 
with GAAP.  The Indebtedness of any person shall include the Indebtedness 
of any other entity (including any partnership in which such person is a 
general partner) to the extent such person is liable therefor 
as a result of such person's ownership interest in or other relationship 
with such entity, except to the extent the terms of such Indebtedness 
provide that such person is not liable therefor. 
 
"Indemnified Taxes" shall mean Taxes other than Excluded Taxes. 
 
"Index Debt" shall mean the senior, unsecured, non-credit enhanced, long- 
term indebtedness for borrowed money of the Borrower. 
 
"Interest Coverage Ratio" shall mean, for any period, the ratio of (a) 
Consolidated EBITDA for such period to (b) Consolidated Interest Expense 
for such period. 
 
"Interest Payment Date" shall mean (a) with respect to any ABR Loan, the 
last Business Day of each March, June, September and December and (b) with 
respect to any Eurodollar Loan or Fixed Rate Borrowing, the last day of 
the Interest Period applicable to the Borrowing of which 
such Loan is a part or such Fixed Rate Borrowing, as the case may be, and, 
in the case of a Eurodollar Borrowing with an Interest Period of more than 
three months' duration or a Fixed Rate Borrowing with an Interest Period 
of more than 90 days' duration, each day that would have 
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been an Interest Payment Date had successive Interest Periods of three 
months' or 90 days' duration, respectively, been applicable to such 
Borrowing. 
 
"Interest Period" shall mean, (a) with respect to any Eurodollar 
Borrowing, the period commencing on the date of such Borrowing and ending 
on the numerically corresponding day (or, if there is no numerically 
corresponding day, on the last day) in the calendar month that is 
1, 2, 3 or 6 months thereafter, as the Borrower may elect, and (b) with 
respect to any Fixed Rate Borrowing, the period commencing on the date of 
such Borrowing and ending on the date specified in the Competitive Bids in 
which the offers to make the Fixed Rate Loans comprising such Borrowing 
were extended, which shall not be earlier than 30 days after the date of 
such Borrowing or later than 360 days after the date of such Borrowing; 
provided, however, that if any Interest Period would end on a day other 
than a Business Day, such Interest Period shall be extended to the next 
succeeding Business Day unless, in the case of a Eurodollar Borrowing 
only, such next succeeding Business Day would fall in the next calendar 
month, in which case such Interest Period shall end on the next preceding 
Business Day.  Interest shall accrue from and including the first day of 
an Interest Period to but excluding the last day of such Interest Period. 
For purposes hereof, the date of a Borrowing initially shall be the date 
on which such Borrowing is made and thereafter shall be the effective date 
of the most recent conversion or continuation of such Borrowing. 
 
"Lenders" shall mean (a) the persons listed on Schedule 2.01 (other than 
any such person that has ceased to be a party hereto pursuant to an 
Assignment and Acceptance) and (b) any person that has become a party 
hereto pursuant to an Assignment and Acceptance. 
 
"Leverage Ratio" shall mean, for any period, the ratio of Total Debt on 
the last day of such  period to Consolidated EBITDA for such period. 
Solely for purposes of this definition, if at the time of any 
determination of the Leverage Ratio an Acquisition shall have been 
completed during the relevant period, the Consolidated EBITDA for such 
period shall be reformulated on a pro forma basis to give effect to such 
Acquisition as if it had occurred on the first day of such period.  For 
purposes of the foregoing, all pro forma adjustments shall be (a) only 
those required or permitted by Regulation S-X of the Securities Act of 
1933 or otherwise based on reasonably detailed written assumptions 
reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent and (b) certified 
by a Financial Officer of the Borrower as having been prepared in good 
faith based upon reasonable assumptions. 
 
"LIBO Rate" shall mean, with respect to any Eurodollar Borrowing for any 
Interest Period, the rate per annum determined by the Administrative Agent 
at approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, on the date that is two Business 
Days prior to the commencement of such Interest Period by reference to the 
British Bankers' Association Interest Settlement Rates for deposits in 
dollars (as set forth by the Bloomberg Information Service or any 
successor thereto or any other service selected by the Administrative 
Agent which has been nominated by the British Bankers' Association as an 
authorized information vendor for the purpose of displaying such rates) 
for a period equal to such Interest Period; provided that, to the extent 
that an interest rate is not ascertainable pursuant to the foregoing 
provisions of this definition, the "LIBO Rate" shall be the interest rate 
per annum determined by the Administrative Agent to be the average of the 
rates per annum at which dollar deposits of $10,000,000 are offered for 
such relevant Interest Period to major banks in the London interbank 
market in London, England by the Administrative Agent at 
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approximately 11:00 a.m. (London time) on the date that is two Business 
Days prior to the beginning of such Interest Period. 
 
"Lien" shall mean, with respect to any asset, (a) any mortgage, deed of 
trust, lien, pledge, encumbrance, charge or security interest in or on 
such asset or (b) the interest of a vendor or a lessor under any 
conditional sale agreement, capital lease or title retention agreement (or 
any financing lease having substantially the same economic effect as any 
of the foregoing) relating to such asset. 
 
"Loans" shall mean the Revolving Loans and the Competitive Loans. 
 
"Margin" shall mean, as to any Eurodollar Competitive Loan, the margin 
(expressed as a percentage rate per annum in the form of a decimal to no 
more than four decimal places) to be added to or subtracted from the LIBO 
Rate in order to determine the interest rate applicable to 
such Loan, as specified in the Competitive Bid relating to such Loan. 
 
"Margin Stock" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Regulation 
U. 
 
"Material Adverse Effect" shall mean a materially adverse effect on the 
financial condition, results of operations or business of the Borrower and 
the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. 
 
"Material Indebtedness" shall mean Indebtedness (other than the Loans), or 
obligations in respect of one or more Hedging Agreements, of any one or 
more of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries in an aggregate principal amount 
exceeding $50,000,000.  For purposes of determining Material Indebtedness, 
the "principal amount" of the obligations of the Borrower or any 
Subsidiary in respect of any Hedging Agreement at any time shall be the 
maximum aggregate amount (giving effect to any netting agreements) that 
the Borrower or such Subsidiary would be required to pay if such Hedging 
Agreement were terminated at such time. 
 
"Material Subsidiary" shall mean at any time any Subsidiary, except 
Subsidiaries which, if aggregated and considered as a single Subsidiary, 
would not meet the definition of a "significant subsidiary" contained as 
of the date hereof in Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 
 
"Maturity Date" shall mean January 13, 2004. 
 
"Moody's" shall mean Moody's Investors Service, Inc. 
 
"Multiemployer Plan" shall mean a multiemployer plan as defined in Section 
4001(a)(3) of ERISA. 
 
"Other Taxes" shall mean any and all present or future stamp or 
documentary taxes or any other excise or property taxes, charges or 
similar levies arising from any payment made under this Agreement or from 
the execution, delivery or enforcement of, or otherwise with respect to, 
this Agreement. 
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"PBGC" shall mean the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation referred to and 
defined in ERISA. 
 
"person" shall mean any natural person, corporation, business trust, joint 
venture, association, company, limited liability company, partnership, 
Governmental Authority or other entity. 
 
"Plan" shall mean any employee pension benefit plan (other than a 
Multiemployer Plan) subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA or 
Section 412 of the Code or Section 307 of ERISA, and in respect of which 
the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate is (or, if such plan were terminated, 
would under Section 4069 of ERISA be deemed to be) an "employer" as 
defined in Section 3(5) of ERISA. 
 
"Prime Rate" shall mean the rate of interest per annum publicly announced 
from time to time by the Administrative Agent as its prime rate in effect 
at its principal office in New York City; each change in the Prime Rate 
shall be effective on the date such change is publicly announced as being 
effective. 
 
"Register" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 
9.04(d). 
 
"Regulation T" shall mean Regulation T of the Board as from time to time 
in effect and all official rulings and interpretations thereunder or 
thereof. 
 
"Regulation U" shall mean Regulation U of the Board as from time to time 
in effect and all official rulings and interpretations thereunder or 
thereof. 
 
"Regulation X" shall mean Regulation X of the Board as from time to time 
in effect and all official rulings and interpretations thereunder or 
thereof. 
 
"Related Parties" shall mean, with respect to any specified person, such 
person's Affiliates and the respective directors, officers, employees, 
agents and advisors of such person and such person's Affiliates. 
 
"Required Lenders" shall mean, at any time, Lenders having Commitments 
(or, if the Commitments have terminated, Loans) representing at least a 
majority of the Total Commitment (or if the Commitments have terminated, 
the aggregate amount of Loans outstanding) at such time or, for purposes 
of acceleration pursuant to clause (ii) of the last paragraph of Article 
VII, Lenders having Loans and unused Commitments representing at least a 
majority of the sum of all Loans outstanding and unused Commitments. 
 
"Restricted Payment" shall mean (a) any dividend or other distribution 
(whether in cash, securities or other property) with respect to any Equity 
Interests in the Borrower or any subsidiary, or (b) any payment (whether 
in cash, securities or other property), including any sinking fund or 
similar deposit, other than a payment to the extent consisting of Equity 
Interests  of equal or junior ranking, on account of the purchase, 
redemption, retirement, acquisition, cancellation or termination of any 
Equity Interests in the Borrower or any Subsidiary.  It is understood that 
the withholding of shares, and the payment of cash to the Internal Revenue 
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Service in an amount not to exceed the value of the withheld shares, by 
the Company in connection with any of its stock incentive plans shall not 
constitute Restricted Payments. 
 
"Revolving Credit Borrowing" shall mean a Borrowing comprised of Revolving 
Loans. 
 
"Revolving Credit Exposure" shall mean, with respect to any Lender at any 
time, the aggregate principal amount at such time of all outstanding 
Revolving Loans of such Lender."Revolving Loans" shall mean the revolving 
loans made by the Lenders to the Borrower pursuant to Section 2.01.  Each 
Revolving Loan shall be a Eurodollar Revolving Loan or an ABR Revolving 
Loan. 
 
"S&P" shall mean Standard & Poor's Ratings Service. 
 
"SPC" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.04(i). 
 
"Subordinated Notes" shall mean the Borrower's Zero Coupon Liquid Yield 
Option (Subordinated Convertible) Notes due 2021, in an aggregate 
principal amount at maturity of $744,000,000. 
 
"Subordinated Note Documents" shall mean the indenture under which the 
Subordinated Notes were issued and all other instruments, agreements and 
other documents evidencing or governing the Subordinated Notes or 
providing for any Guarantee or other right in respect thereof. 
 
"subsidiary" shall mean, with respect to any person (herein referred to as 
the "parent"), any corporation, partnership, association or other business 
entity (a) of which securities or other ownership interests representing 
more than 50% of the equity or more than 50% of the ordinary voting power 
or more than 50% of the general partnership interests are, at the time any 
determination is being made, owned, controlled or held, or (b) that is, at 
the time any determination is made, otherwise Controlled, by the parent or 
one or more subsidiaries of the parent or by the parent and one or more 
subsidiaries of the parent. 
 
"Subsidiary" shall mean any subsidiary of the Borrower. 
 
"Synthetic Purchase Agreement" shall mean any swap, derivative or other 
agreement or combination of agreements pursuant to which the Borrower or 
any Subsidiary is or may become obligated to make (a) any payment in 
connection with a purchase by any third party from a person other than the 
Borrower or any Subsidiary of any Equity Interest or (b) any payment 
(other than on account of a permitted purchase by it of any Equity 
Interest) the amount of which is determined by reference to the price or 
value at any time of any Equity Interest; provided that no phantom stock 
or similar plan providing for payments only to current or former 
directors, officers or employees of the Borrower or the Subsidiaries (or 
to their heirs or estates) shall be deemed to be a Synthetic Purchase 
Agreement. 
 
"Taxes" shall mean any and all present or future taxes, levies, imposts, 
duties, deductions, charges, liabilities or withholdings imposed by any 
Governmental Authority. 
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"Three-Year Credit Agreement" shall mean the Three-Year Credit Agreement 
dated as of February 20, 2002 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise 
modified from time to time), among the Borrower, the lenders from time to 
time party thereto, and Credit Suisse First Boston, as administrative 
agent. 
 
"Total Debt" shall mean, at any time, the total Indebtedness of the 
Borrower and the subsidiaries at such time (excluding Indebtedness of the 
type described in clause (h) of the definition of such term, except to the 
extent of any unreimbursed drawings thereunder). 
 
"Total Commitment" shall mean, at any time, the aggregate amount of the 
Commitments, as in effect at such time. 
 
"Transactions" shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 
3.02. 
 
"Type", when used in respect of any Loan or Borrowing, shall refer to the 
Rate by reference to which interest on such Loan or on the Loans 
comprising such Borrowing is determined.  For purposes hereof, the term 
"Rate" shall include the LIBO Rate and the Alternate Base Rate. 
 
"wholly owned Subsidiary" of any person shall mean a subsidiary of such 
person of which securities (except for directors' qualifying shares) or 
other ownership interests representing 100% of the Equity Interests are, 
at the time any determination is being made, owned, controlled 
or held by such person or one or more wholly owned Subsidiaries of such 
person or by such person and one or more wholly owned Subsidiaries of such 
person. 
 
"Withdrawal Liability" shall mean liability to a Multiemployer Plan as a 
result of a complete or partial withdrawal from such Multiemployer Plan, 
as such terms are defined in Part I of Subtitle E of Title IV of ERISA. 
 
SECTION 1.02.  Terms Generally.  The definitions in Section 1.01 shall 
apply equally to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined. 
Whenever the context may require, any pronoun shall include the 
corresponding masculine, feminine and neuter forms.  The words 
"include", "includes" and "including" shall be deemed to be followed by 
the phrase "without limitation".  The word "will" shall be construed to 
have the same meaning and effect as the word "shall"; and the words 
"asset" and "property" shall be construed as having the same meaning and 
effect and to refer to any and all tangible and intangible assets and 
properties, including cash, securities, accounts and contract rights.  All 
references herein to Articles, Sections, Exhibits and Schedules shall be 
deemed references to Articles and Sections of, and Exhibits and Schedules 
to, this Agreement unless the context shall otherwise require.  Except as 
otherwise expressly provided herein, all terms of an accounting or 
financial nature shall be construed in accordance with GAAP, as in effect 
from time to time; provided, however, that if the Borrower notifies the 
Administrative Agent that the Borrower wishes to amend any covenant in 
Article VI or any related definition to eliminate the effect of any change 
in GAAP occurring after the date of this Agreement on the operation of 
such covenant (or if the Administrative Agent notifies the Borrower that 
the Required Lenders wish to amend Article VI or any related definition 
for such purpose), then the Borrower's compliance with such covenant shall 
be determined on the basis of GAAP in effect immediately before the 
relevant change in GAAP became effective, until either 
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such notice is withdrawn or such covenant is amended in a manner 
satisfactory to the Borrower and the Required Lenders. 
 
SECTION 1.03.  Classification of Loans and Borrowings.  For purposes of 
this Agreement, Loans may be classified and referred to by Class (e.g., a 
"Revolving Loan") or by Type (e.g., a "Eurodollar Loan") or by Class and 
Type (e.g., a "Eurodollar Revolving Loan").  Borrowings also may be 
classified and referred to by Class (e.g., a "Revolving Borrowing") or by 
Type (e.g., a "Eurodollar Borrowing") or by Class and Type (e.g., a 
"Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing"). 
 
ARTICLE II 
 
The Credits 
 
SECTION 2.01.  Commitments. Subject to the terms and conditions and 
relying upon the representations and warranties herein set forth, each 
Lender agrees, severally and not jointly, to make Revolving Loans to the 
Borrower, at any time and from time to time on or after the date 
hereof, and until the earlier of the Maturity Date and the termination of 
the Commitment of such Lender in accordance with the terms hereof, in an 
aggregate principal amount at any time outstanding that will not result in 
such Lender's Revolving Credit Exposure exceeding such Lender's Commitment 
minus the amount by which the outstanding Competitive Borrowings shall 
be deemed to have utilized such Commitment in accordance with Section 
2.16.  Within the limits set forth in the preceding sentence and subject 
to the terms, conditions and limitations set forth herein, the Borrower 
may borrow, pay or prepay and reborrow Revolving Loans. 
 
SECTION 2.02.  Loans.  Each Loan (other than Competitive Loans) shall be 
made as part of a Borrowing consisting of Loans made by the Lenders 
ratably in accordance with their respective Commitments; provided, 
however, that the failure of any Lender to make any Loan 
shall not in itself relieve any other Lender of its obligation to lend 
hereunder (it being understood, however, that no Lender shall be 
responsible for the failure of any other Lender to make any Loan 
required to be made by such other Lender).  Each Competitive Loan shall be 
made in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 2.03.  The 
Loans comprising any Borrowing shall be in an aggregate principal amount 
that is (i) an integral multiple of $1,000,000 and not less than 
$10,000,000 or (ii) equal to the remaining available balance of the 
Commitments. 
 
(b)  Subject to Sections 2.09 and 2.14, each Competitive Borrowing shall 
be comprised entirely of Eurodollar Competitive Loans or Fixed Rate Loans, 
and each other Borrowing shall be comprised entirely of ABR Loans or 
Eurodollar Loans as the Borrower may request pursuant to Section 2.03 or 
2.04, as applicable.  Each Lender may at its option make any Eurodollar 
Loan by causing any domestic or foreign branch or Affiliate of such Lender 
to make such Loan; provided that any exercise of such option shall not 
affect the obligation of the Borrower to repay such Loan in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement.  Borrowings of more than one Type may be 
outstanding at the same time; provided, however, that the Borrower shall 
not be entitled to request any Borrowing that, if made, would result in 
more than 15 Eurodollar Borrowings outstanding hereunder at any time.  For 
purposes of the foregoing, Borrowings having different Interest 
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Periods, regardless of whether they commence on the same date, shall be 
considered separate Borrowings. 
 
(c)  Each Lender shall make each Loan to be made by it hereunder on the 
proposed date thereof by wire transfer of immediately available funds to 
such account in New York City as the Administrative Agent may designate 
not later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, and the Administrative 
Agent shall promptly credit the amounts so received to an account in the 
name of the Borrower and designated by the Borrower in the applicable 
Borrowing Request or Competitive Bid Request or, if a Borrowing shall not 
occur on such date because any condition precedent herein specified shall 
not have been met, return the amounts so received to the respective 
Lenders. 
 
(d)  Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from a 
Lender prior to the date of any Borrowing that such Lender will not make 
available to the Administrative Agent such Lender's portion of such 
Borrowing, the Administrative Agent may assume that such Lender 
has made such portion available to the Administrative Agent on the date of 
such Borrowing in accordance with paragraph (c) above and the 
Administrative Agent may, in reliance upon such assumption, make available 
to the Borrower on such date a corresponding amount.  If the 
Administrative Agent shall have so made funds available then, to the 
extent that such Lender shall not have made such portion available to the 
Administrative Agent, such Lender and the Borrower severally agree to 
repay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand such corresponding 
amount together with interest thereon, for each day from the date such 
amount is made available to the Borrower until the date such amount is 
repaid to the Administrative Agent at (i) in the case of the Borrower, the 
interest rate applicable at the time to the Loans comprising such 
Borrowing and (ii) in the case of such Lender, a rate determined by the 
Administrative Agent to represent its cost of overnight or short-term 
funds (which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error).  If 
such Lender shall repay to the Administrative Agent such corresponding 
amount, such amount shall constitute such Lender's Loan as part of such 
Borrowing for purposes of this Agreement. 
 
(e)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Borrower 
shall not be entitled to request any Borrowing if the Interest Period 
requested with respect thereto would end after the Maturity Date. 
 
SECTION 2.03.  Competitive Bid Procedure.  In order to request Competitive 
Bids, the Borrower shall notify the Administrative Agent of such request 
by telephone (i) in the case of a Eurodollar Competitive Borrowing , not 
later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, four Business Days before the 
proposed date of such Borrowing and (ii) in the case of a Fixed Rate 
Borrowing, not later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, one Business Day 
before the proposed date of such Borrowing.   Provided that no two 
Competitive Bid Requests submitted on the same day shall be identical, the 
Borrower may submit up to (but not more than) three Competitive Bid 
Requests on the same day, but a Competitive Bid Request shall not be made 
within five Business Days after the date of any previous Competitive Bid 
Request unless such previous Competitive Bid Request shall have been 
rejected by the Administrative Agent, as provided below. No ABR 
Loan shall be requested in, or made pursuant to, a Competitive Bid 
Request.  Each such telephonic Competitive Bid Request shall be confirmed 
promptly by hand delivery or telecopy to the Administrative Agent of a 
written Competitive Bid Request substantially in the form of Exhibit D-1. 
A Competitive Bid Request that does not conform substantially to the 
format of 
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Exhibit D-1 may be rejected by the Administrative Agent and the 
Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower of such rejection as 
promptly as practicable. Each Competitive Bid Request shall refer to this 
Agreement and specify (i) whether the Borrowing being requested is to be a 
Eurodollar Borrowing or a Fixed Rate Borrowing; (ii) the date of such 
Borrowing (which shall be a Business Day); (iii) the number and the 
location of the account to which funds are to be disbursed (which shall be 
an account that complies with the requirements of Section 2.02(c)); (iv) 
the aggregate principal amount of such Borrowing, which shall be a minimum 
of $10,000,000 and an integral multiple of $1,000,000, and in any event 
shall not result in the sum of the Aggregate Revolving Credit Exposure and 
the aggregate outstanding principal amount of Competitive Loans, after 
giving effect to such Borrowing, exceeding the Total Commitment; and 
(v) the Interest Period with respect thereto (which may not end after the 
maturity Date). Promptly after its receipt of a Competitive Bid Request 
that is not rejected, the Administrative Agent shall invite the Lenders 
in the form set forth as Exhibit D-2 to bid to make Competitive Loans 
pursuant to the Competitive Bid Request. 
 
(b)  Each Lender may make one or more Competitive Bids to the Borrower 
responsive to a Competitive Bid Request.  Each Competitive Bid by a Lender 
must be received by the Administrative Agent by telecopy, (i) in the case 
of a Eurodollar Competitive Borrowing, not later than 9:30 a.m., New York 
City time, three Business Days before the proposed date of such 
Competitive Borrowing, and (ii) in the case of a Fixed Rate Borrowing, not 
later than 9:30 a.m., New York City time, on the proposed date of such 
Competitive Borrowing.  Competitive Bids that do not conform substantially 
to the format of Exhibit D-3 may be rejected by the Administrative Agent, 
and the Administrative Agent shall notify the applicable Lender as 
promptly as practicable.  Each Competitive Bid shall refer to this 
Agreement and specify (x) the principal amount (which shall be a minimum 
of $5,000,000 and an integral multiple of $1,000,000 and which may equal 
the entire principal amount of the Competitive Borrowing requested by the 
Borrower) of the Competitive Loan or Loans that the Lender is willing to 
make, (y) the Competitive Bid Rate or Rates at which the Lender is 
prepared to make such Loan or Loans and (z) the Interest Period applicable 
to such Loan or Loans and the last day thereof. 
 
(c)  The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify the Borrower by 
telecopy of the Competitive Bid Rate and the principal amount of each 
Competitive Loan in respect of which a Competitive Bid shall have been 
made and the identity of the Lender that shall have made each bid. 
 
(d)  The Borrower may, subject only to the provisions of this paragraph 
(d), accept or reject any Competitive Bid.  The Borrower shall notify the 
Administrative Agent by telephone, confirmed by telecopy in the form of a 
Competitive Bid Accept/Reject Letter, whether and to what extent it has 
decided to accept or reject each Competitive Bid, (x) in the case of a 
Eurodollar Competitive Borrowing, not later than 10:30 a.m., New York City 
time, three Business Days before the date of the proposed Competitive 
Borrowing, and (y) in the case of a Fixed Rate Borrowing, not later than 
10:30 a.m., New York City time, on the proposed date of the 
Competitive Borrowing; provided, however, that (i) the failure of the 
Borrower to give such notice shall be deemed to be a rejection of each 
Competitive Bid, (ii) the Borrower shall not accept a Competitive Bid made 
at a particular Competitive Bid Rate if the Borrower has decided 
to reject a Competitive Bid made at a lower Competitive Bid Rate, (iii) 
the aggregate amount of the Competitive Bids accepted by the Borrower 
shall not exceed the principal amount specified in the Competitive Bid 
Request, (iv) if the Borrower shall accept a Competitive Bid or Bids made 
at 
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a particular Competitive Bid Rate but the amount of such Competitive 
Bid or Bids would cause the total amount to be accepted by the Borrower to 
exceed the amount specified in the Competitive Bid Request, then the 
Borrower shall accept a portion of such Competitive Bid or Bids in an 
amount equal to the amount specified in the Competitive Bid Request less 
the amount of all other Competitive Bids so accepted, which acceptance, in 
the case of multiple Competitive Bids at such Competitive Bid Rate, shall 
be made pro rata in accordance with the amount of each such Bid, and (v) 
except pursuant to clause (iv) above, no Competitive Bid shall be accepted 
for a Competitive Loan unless such Competitive Loan is in a minimum 
principal amount of $5,000,000 and an integral multiple of $1,000,000; 
provided further, however, that if a Competitive Loan must be in an amount 
less than $5,000,000 because of the provisions of clause (iv) above, such 
Competitive Loan may be for a minimum of $1,000,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof, and in calculating the pro rata allocation of 
acceptances of portions of multiple Competitive Bids at a particular 
Competitive Bid Rate pursuant to clause (iv) the amounts shall be rounded 
to integral multiples of $1,000,000 in a manner determined by the 
Borrower.  A notice given by the Borrower pursuant to this paragraph (d) 
shall be irrevocable. 
 
(e)  The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each bidding Lender by 
telecopy whether or not its Competitive Bid has been accepted (and, if so, 
in what amount and at what Competitive Bid Rate), and each successful 
bidder will thereupon become bound, upon the terms and subject to the 
conditions hereof, to make the Competitive Loan in respect of which its 
Competitive Bid has been accepted. 
 
(f) If the Administrative Agent shall elect to submit a Competitive Bid 
in its capacity as a Lender, it shall submit such Competitive Bid directly 
to the Borrower at least one quarter of an hour earlier than the time by 
which the other Lenders are required to submit their Competitive Bids to 
the Administrative Agent pursuant to paragraph (b) above. 
 
(g) Within the limits set forth in this Section 2.03 and subject to the 
terms, conditions and limitations set forth herein, the Borrower may 
borrow, pay and reborrow Competitive Loans. 
 
SECTION 2.04.  Borrowing Procedure. In order to request a Borrowing (other 
than a Competitive Borrowing, as to which this Section 2.04 shall not 
apply), the Borrower shall notify the Administrative Agent of such request 
by telephone (a) in the case of a Eurodollar Borrowing, not later than 
11:00 a.m., New York City time, three Business Days before a proposed 
Borrowing, and (b) in the case of an ABR Borrowing, not later than 11:00 
a.m., New York City time, on the day of a proposed Borrowing.  Each 
Borrowing Request shall be irrevocable, shall be confirmed promptly by 
hand delivery or telecopy to the Administrative Agent of a written 
Borrowing Request substantially in the form of Exhibit C or such other 
form as shall be acceptable to the Administrative Agent and shall specify 
the following information: (i) whether the Borrowing then being requested 
is to be a Eurodollar Borrowing or an ABR Borrowing; (ii) the date of such 
Borrowing (which shall be a Business Day); (iii) the number and location 
of the account to which funds are to be disbursed (which shall be an 
account that complies with the requirements of Section 2.02(c)); (iv) the 
amount of such Borrowing; and (v) if such Borrowing is to be a Eurodollar 
Borrowing, the Interest Period with respect thereto; provided, however, 
that, notwithstanding any contrary specification in any Borrowing Request, 
each requested Borrowing shall comply with the requirements set forth in 
Section 2.02.  If no election as to the Type of Borrowing is specified in 
any such notice, then the requested Borrowing shall be an ABR Borrowing. 
If no Interest Period with respect to any Eurodollar Borrowing is 
specified in any 
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such notice, then the Borrower shall be deemed to have selected an 
Interest Period of one month's duration.  The Administrative Agent shall 
promptly advise the Lenders of any notice given pursuant to this Section 
2.04 (and the contents thereof), and of each Lender's portion of the 
requested Borrowing. 
 
SECTION 2.05.  Evidence of Debt; Repayment of Loans.  The Borrower hereby 
unconditionally promises to pay to the Administrative Agent for the 
account of each Lender (i) the then unpaid principal amount of each 
Competitive Loan of such Lender on the last day of the Interest Period 
applicable to such Loan and (ii) the then unpaid principal amount of each 
Revolving Loan of such Lender on the Maturity Date. 
 
(b) Each Lender shall maintain in accordance with its usual practice an 
account or accounts evidencing the indebtedness of the Borrower to such 
Lender resulting from each Loan made by such Lender from time to time, 
including the amounts of principal and interest payable and paid to such 
Lender from time to time under this Agreement. 
 
(c) The Administrative Agent shall maintain accounts in which it will 
record (i) the amount of each Loan made hereunder, the Type thereof and 
the Interest Period applicable thereto, (ii) the amount of any principal 
or interest due and payable or to become due and payable from the Borrower 
to each Lender hereunder and (iii) the amount of any sum received by the 
Administrative Agent hereunder from the Borrower and each Lender's share 
thereof. 
 
(d) The entries made in the accounts maintained pursuant to paragraphs 
(b) and (c) above shall be prima facie evidence of the existence and 
amounts of the obligations therein recorded; provided, however, that the 
failure of any Lender or the Administrative Agent to maintain such 
accounts or any error therein shall not in any manner affect the 
obligations of the Borrower to repay the Loans in accordance with their 
terms. 
 
(e) Any Lender may request that Loans made by it hereunder be evidenced 
by a promissory note.  In such event, the Borrower shall execute and 
deliver to such Lender a promissory note payable to such Lender and its 
registered assigns and in a form and substance reasonably acceptable to 
the Administrative Agent and the Borrower. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Agreement, in the event any Lender shall request and 
receive such a promissory note, the interests represented by such note 
shall at all times (including after any assignment of all or part of such 
interests pursuant to Section 9.04) be represented by one or more 
promissory notes payable to the payee named therein or its registered 
assigns. 
 
SECTION 2.06.  Fees.   The Borrower agrees to pay to each Lender, through 
the Administrative Agent, on the last Business Day of March, June, 
September and December in each year, and on the date on which the 
Commitment of such Lender shall expire or be terminated as provided 
herein, a facility fee (a "Facility Fee") equal to the Applicable 
Percentage per annum in effect from time to time on the daily amount of 
the Commitment of such Lender (whether used or unused) during the 
preceding quarter (or shorter period commencing with the date hereof or 
ending with the Maturity Date or the date on which the Commitment of such 
Lender shall expire or be terminated); provided that, if such Lender 
continues to have any Revolving Credit Exposure after its Commitment 
terminates, then the Facility Fee shall continue to accrue (and be payable 
on demand) on the daily amount of such Lender's Revolving Credit Exposure 
from and including the date on which its Commitment terminates to and 
including the date on which such Lender ceases 
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to have any Revolving Credit Exposure.  All Facility Fees shall be 
computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed (including the 
first day but excluding the last day) in a year of 360 days.  The Facility 
Fee due to each Lender shall commence to accrue on the date of this 
Agreement and shall cease to accrue on the later of the date on which the 
Commitment of such Lender shall expire or be terminated as provided herein 
and such Lender shall have no Revolving Credit Exposure. 
 
(b)  The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent, for its own 
account, the administrative fees separately agreed to in writing from time 
to time by the Borrower and the Administrative Agent (the "Administrative 
Agent Fees"). 
 
(c) All Fees shall be paid on the dates due, in immediately available 
funds, to the Administrative Agent for distribution, if and as appropriate, 
among the Lenders.  Once paid, none of the Fees shall be refundable under 
any circumstances. 
 
SECTION 2.07.  Interest on Loans.  Subject to the provisions of Section 
2.08, the Loans comprising each ABR Borrowing shall bear interest 
(computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed (including the 
first day but excluding the last day) over a year of 365 or 366 days, as 
the case may be, when the Alternate Base Rate is determined by reference 
to the Prime Rate and over a year of 360 days at all other times) at a 
rate per annum equal to the Alternate Base Rate plus the Applicable 
Percentage in effect from time to time. 
 
(b) Subject to the provisions of Section 2.08, the Loans comprising each 
Eurodollar Borrowing shall bear interest (computed on the basis of the 
actual number of days elapsed (including the first day but excluding the 
last day) over a year of 360 days) at a rate per annum equal to (i) in the 
case of each Revolving Loan, the LIBO Rate for the Interest Period in 
effect for such Borrowing plus the Applicable Percentage in effect from 
time to time, and (ii) in the case of each Competitive Loan, the LIBO Rate 
for the Interest Period in effect for such Borrowing plus the Margin 
offered by the Lender making such Loan and accepted by the Borrower 
pursuant to Section 2.03. 
 
(c) Subject to the provisions of Section 2.08, each Fixed Rate Loan shall 
bear interest (computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed 
(including the first day but excluding the last day) over a year of 360 
days) at a rate per annum equal to the fixed rate of interest offered 
by the Lender making such Loan and accepted by the Borrower pursuant to 
Section 2.03. 
 
(d) Interest on each Loan shall be payable on the Interest Payment Dates 
applicable to such Loan except as otherwise provided in this Agreement; 
provided that (i) in the event of any repayment or prepayment of any Loan 
(other than a prepayment of an ABR Loan), accrued interest on the 
principal amount repaid or prepaid shall be payable on the date of such 
repayment or prepayment and (ii) in the event of any conversion of any 
Eurodollar Loan prior to the end of the current Interest Period therefor, 
accrued interest on such Loan shall be payable on the effective date of 
such conversion.  The applicable Alternate Base Rate or LIBO Rate for each 
Interest Period or day within an Interest Period, as the case may be, 
shall be determined by the Administrative Agent, and such determination 
shall be conclusive absent manifest error. 
 
SECTION 2.08.  Default Interest. If the Borrower shall default in the 
payment of the principal of or interest on any Loan or any other amount 
becoming due hereunder, by acceleration 
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or otherwise, the Borrower shall on demand from time to time pay interest, 
to the extent permitted by law, on such defaulted amount to but excluding 
the date of actual payment after as well as before judgment) (a) in the 
case of overdue principal, at the rate otherwise applicable to such Loan 
pursuant to Section 2.07 plus 2.00% per annum and (b) in all other cases, 
at a rate per annum (computed on the basis of the actual number of days 
elapsed (including the first day but excluding the last day) over a year 
of 365 or 366 days, as the case may be, when determined by reference to 
the Prime Rate and over a year of 360 days at all other times) equal to 
the rate that would be applicable to an ABR Revolving Loan plus 2.00%. 
 
SECTION 2.09.  Alternate Rate of Interest.   In the event, and on each 
occasion, that on the day two Business Days prior to the commencement of 
any Interest Period for a Eurodollar Borrowing the Administrative Agent 
shall have determined that dollar deposits in the principal amounts of the 
Loans comprising such Borrowing are not generally available in the London 
interbank market, or that reasonable means do not exist for ascertaining 
the LIBO Rate, or the Administrative Agent shall have been informed by the 
Required Lenders (or, in the case of a Eurodollar Competitive Loan, any 
Lender required to make such Loan) that the rates at which such dollar 
deposits are being offered will not adequately and fairly reflect the cost 
to the Required Lenders (or such Lender) of making or maintaining their or 
its Eurodollar Loan during such Interest Period, the Administrative Agent 
shall, as soon as practicable thereafter, give written or telecopy notice 
thereof to the Borrower and the Lenders.  In the event of any such 
notice, until the Administrative Agent shall have advised the Borrower and 
the Lenders that the circumstances giving rise to such notice no longer 
exist, (i) any request by the Borrower for a Eurodollar Revolving Credit 
Borrowing pursuant to Section 2.04 shall be deemed to be a request 
for an ABR Borrowing and (ii) any request by the Borrower for a Eurodollar 
Competitive Borrowing pursuant to Section 2.03 shall be of no force and 
effect and shall be denied by the Administrative Agent; provided that if 
the circumstances giving rise to such notice do not affect all the 
Lenders, then the Borrower may make requests for Eurodollar Competitive 
Borrowings to Lenders that are not affected thereby.  Each determination 
by the Administrative Agent under this Section 2.09 shall be conclusive 
absent manifest error. 
 
SECTION 2.10.  Termination and Reduction of Commitments.  The Commitments 
shall automatically terminate on the Maturity Date. 
 
(b) Upon at least three Business Days' prior irrevocable written or 
telecopy notice (or telephone notice promptly confirmed by written or 
telecopy notice) to the Administrative Agent, the Borrower may at any time 
in whole permanently terminate, or from time to time in part permanently 
reduce, the Commitments; provided, however, that (i) each partial 
reduction of the Commitments shall be in an integral multiple of 
$1,000,000 and in a minimum amount of $10,000,000 and (ii) the Total 
Commitment shall not be reduced to an amount that is less than the 
sum of the Aggregate Revolving Credit Exposure and the aggregate 
outstanding principal amount of the Competitive Loans at the time. 
 
(c) Each reduction in the Commitments hereunder shall be made ratably 
among the Lenders in accordance with their respective Commitments.  The 
Borrower shall pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of the 
applicable Lenders, on the date of each termination or reduction, the 
Facility Fees on the amount of the Commitments so terminated or reduced 
accrued to but excluding the date of such termination or reduction. 
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SECTION 2.11.  Conversion and Continuation of Borrowings. The Borrower 
shall have the right at any time upon prior irrevocable written or 
telecopy notice (or telephone notice promptly confirmed by written or 
telecopy notice) to the Administrative Agent (a) not later than 
11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the day of conversion, to convert any 
Eurodollar Borrowing into an ABR Borrowing, (b) not later than 11:00 a.m., 
New York City time, three Business Days prior to conversion or 
continuation, to convert any ABR Borrowing into a Eurodollar Revolving 
Credit Borrowing or to continue any Eurodollar Revolving Credit Borrowing 
as a Eurodollar Revolving Credit Borrowing for an additional Interest 
Period, and (c) not later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, three 
Business Days prior to conversion, to convert the Interest Period with 
respect to any Eurodollar Revolving Credit Borrowing to another 
 permissible Interest Period, subject in each case to the following: 
 
(i) each conversion or continuation shall be made pro rata among the 
Lenders in accordance with the respective principal amounts of the Loans 
comprising the converted or continued Borrowing; 
 
(ii) if less than all the outstanding principal amount of any Borrowing 
shall be converted or continued, then each resulting Borrowing shall 
satisfy the limitations specified in Sections 2.02(a) and 2.02(b) 
regarding the principal amount and maximum number of Borrowings of the 
relevant Type; 
 
(iii) each conversion shall be effected by each Lender and the 
Administrative Agent by recording for the account of such Lender the new 
Loan of such Lender resulting from such conversion and reducing the Loan 
(or portion thereof) of such Lender being converted by an equivalent 
principal amount; accrued interest on any Eurodollar Loan (or portion 
thereof) being converted shall be paid by the Borrower at the time of 
conversion; 
 
(iv) if any Eurodollar Borrowing is converted at a time other than the end 
of the Interest Period applicable thereto, the Borrower shall pay, upon 
demand, any amounts due to the Lenders pursuant to Section 2.15; 
 
(v) any portion of a Borrowing maturing or required to be repaid in less 
than one month may not be converted into or continued as a Eurodollar 
Borrowing; 
 
(vi) any portion of a Eurodollar Borrowing that cannot be converted into 
or continued as a Eurodollar Borrowing by reason of the immediately 
preceding clause shall be automatically converted at the end of the 
Interest Period in effect for such Borrowing into an ABR Borrowing; and 
 
(vii) upon notice to the Borrower from the Administrative Agent given at 
the request of the Required Lenders, after the occurrence and during the 
continuance of a Default or Event of Default, no outstanding Revolving 
Loan may be converted into, or continued as, a Eurodollar Loan and, unless 
repaid, each Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing shall be converted into an ABR 
Borrowing at the end of the Interest Period applicable thereto. 
 
Each notice pursuant to this Section 2.11 shall refer to this Agreement 
and specify (i) the identity and amount of the Borrowing that the Borrower 
requests be converted or continued, 
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(ii) whether such Borrowing is to be converted to or continued as a 
Eurodollar Borrowing or an ABR Borrowing, (iii) if such notice requests a 
conversion, the date of such conversion (which shall be a Business Day) 
and (iv) if such Borrowing is to be converted to or continued as a 
Eurodollar Borrowing, the Interest Period with respect thereto.  If no 
Interest Period is specified in any such notice with respect to any 
conversion to or continuation as a Eurodollar Borrowing, the Borrower 
shall be deemed to have selected an Interest Period of one month's 
duration.  The Administrative Agent shall advise the Lenders of any notice 
given pursuant to this Section 2.11 and of each Lender's portion of any 
converted or continued Borrowing.  If the Borrower shall not have given 
notice in accordance with this Section 2.11 to continue any Borrowing into 
a subsequent Interest Period (and shall not otherwise have given notice in 
accordance with this Section 2.11 to convert such Borrowing), such 
Borrowing shall, at the end of the Interest Period applicable thereto 
(unless repaid pursuant to the terms hereof), automatically be continued 
into an ABR Borrowing.  The Borrower shall not have the right to continue 
or convert the Interest Period with respect to any Competitive Borrowing 
pursuant to this Section 2.11. 
 
SECTION 2.12.  Optional Prepayment.  The Borrower shall have the right at 
any time and from time to time to prepay any Borrowing (other than a 
Competitive Borrowing), in whole or in part, upon at least three Business 
Days' prior written or telecopy notice (or telephone notice promptly 
confirmed by written or telecopy notice) in the case of Eurodollar Loans, 
or written or telecopy notice (or telephone notice promptly confirmed by 
written or telecopy notice) on the day of prepayment in the case of ABR 
Loans, to the Administrative Agent before 11:00 a.m., New York City time; 
provided, however, that each partial prepayment shall be in an amount that 
is an integral multiple of $1,000,000 and not less than $10,000,000.  The 
Borrower shall not have the right to prepay any Competitive Borrowing. 
 
(b) In the event of any termination of all the Commitments, the Borrower 
shall repay or prepay all its outstanding Revolving Credit Borrowings on 
the date of such termination. If as a result of any partial reduction of 
the Commitments the sum of the Aggregate Revolving Credit Exposure and the 
aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Competitive Loans at the 
time would exceed the Total Commitment after giving effect thereto, then 
the Borrower shall, on the date of such reduction, repay or prepay 
Revolving Credit Borrowings in an amount sufficient to eliminate such 
excess. 
 
(c) Each notice of prepayment shall specify the prepayment date and the 
principal amount of each Borrowing (or portion thereof) to be prepaid, 
shall be irrevocable and shall commit the Borrower to prepay such 
Borrowing by the amount stated therein on the date stated therein.  All 
prepayments under this Section 2.12 shall be subject to Section 2.15 but 
otherwise without premium or penalty.  All prepayments under this Section 
2.12 (other than prepayment of an ABR Loan that does not occur in 
connection with, or as a result of, the reduction or termination of the 
Commitments) shall be accompanied by accrued and unpaid interest on the 
principal amount to be prepaid to but excluding the date of payment. 
 
SECTION 2.13.  Reserve Requirements; Change in Circumstances. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if any Change in 
Law shall impose, modify or deem applicable any reserve, special deposit 
or similar requirement against assets of, deposits with or for the account 
of or credit extended by any Lender or shall impose on such Lender or the 
London interbank market any other condition affecting this Agreement or 
Eurodollar Loans or Fixed Rate Loans made by such Lender, and the result 
of any of the foregoing shall be to increase the cost to 
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such Lender of making or maintaining any Eurodollar Loan or Fixed Rate 
Loan or to reduce the amount of any sum received or receivable by such 
Lender hereunder (whether of principal, interest or otherwise) by an 
amount deemed by such Lender to be material, then the Borrower will pay to 
such Lender upon demand such additional amount or amounts as will 
compensate such Lender for such additional costs incurred or reduction 
suffered. 
 
(b) If any Lender shall have determined that any Change in Law regarding 
capital adequacy has or would have the effect of reducing the rate of 
return on such Lender's capital or on the capital of such Lender's holding 
company, if any, as a consequence of this Agreement or the Loans made to a 
level below that which such Lender or such Lender's holding company could 
have achieved but for such Change in Law (taking into consideration such 
Lender's policies and the policies of such Lender's holding company with 
respect to capital adequacy) by an amount deemed by such Lender to be 
material, then from time to time the Borrower shall pay to such 
Lender such additional amount or amounts as will compensate such Lender or 
such Lender's holding company for any such reduction suffered. 
 
(c)  A certificate of a Lender setting forth the amount or amounts 
necessary to compensate such Lender or its holding company, as applicable, as 
specified in paragraph (a) or (b) above shall be delivered to the Borrower and 
shall be conclusive absent manifest error.  The Borrower shall pay such Lender 
the amount shown as due on any such certificate delivered by it 
within 15 days after its receipt of the same. 
 
(d)  Failure or delay on the part of any Lender to demand compensation for 
any increased costs or reduction in amounts received or receivable or 
reduction in return on capital shall not constitute a waiver of such Lender's 
right to demand such compensation; provided that the Borrower shall not be 
under any obligation to compensate any Lender under paragraph (a) or (b) 
above with respect to increased costs or reductions with respect to any 
period prior to the date that is 120 days prior to such request if such 
Lender knew or could reasonably have been expected to know of the 
circumstances giving rise to such increased costs or reductions and of the 
fact that such circumstances could reasonably be expected to result in a 
claim for increased compensation by reason of such increased costs or 
reductions; provided further that the foregoing limitation shall not apply 
to any increased costs or reductions arising out of the retroactive 
application of any Change in Law within such 120-day period.  The 
protection of this Section shall be available to each Lender regardless of 
any possible contention of the invalidity or inapplicability of the Change 
in Law that shall have occurred or been imposed.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Section, no Lender shall be entitled to demand compensation 
hereunder in respect of any Competitive Loan if it shall have been aware 
of the event or circumstance giving rise to such demand at the time it 
submitted the Competitive Bid pursuant to which such Loan was made. 
 
SECTION 2.14.  Change in Legality.  Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this Agreement, if any Change in Law shall make it unlawful for any Lender to 
make or maintain any Eurodollar Loan or to give effect to its obligations as 
contemplated hereby with respect to any Eurodollar Loan, then, by written 
notice to the Borrower and to the Administrative Agent: 
 
(i) such Lender may declare that Eurodollar Loans will not thereafter (for 
the duration of such unlawfulness) be made by such Lender hereunder (or be 
continued for additional Interest Periods and ABR Loans will not thereafter 
(for such duration) be 
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converted into Eurodollar Loans), whereupon such Lender shall not submit a 
Competitive Bid in response to a request for a Eurodollar Competitive Loan 
and any request for a Eurodollar Borrowing (or to convert an ABR Borrowing 
to a Eurodollar Borrowing or to continue a Eurodollar Borrowing for an 
additional Interest Period) shall, as to such Lender only, be deemed a 
request for an ABR Loan (or a request to continue an ABR Loan as such for 
an additional Interest Period or to convert a Eurodollar Loan into an 
ABR Loan, as the case may be), unless such declaration shall be 
subsequently withdrawn; and 
 
(ii) such Lender may require that all outstanding Eurodollar Loans made by 
it be converted to ABR Loans, in which event all such Eurodollar Loans shall 
be automatically converted to ABR Loans as of the effective date of such 
notice as provided in paragraph (b) below. 
 
In the event any Lender shall exercise its rights under (i) or (ii) above, 
all payments and prepayments of principal that would otherwise have been 
applied to repay the Eurodollar Loans that would have been made by such 
Lender or the converted Eurodollar Loans of such Lender shall instead be 
applied to repay the ABR Loans made by such Lender in lieu of, or resulting 
from the conversion of, such Eurodollar Loans. 
 
(b)  For purposes of this Section 2.14, a notice to the Borrower by any 
Lender shall be effective as to each Eurodollar Loan made by such Lender, 
if lawful, on the last day of the Interest Period then applicable to such 
Eurodollar Loan; in all other cases such notice shall be effective on the 
date of receipt by the Borrower. 
 
SECTION 2.15.  Break Funding. The Borrower shall compensate each Lender 
for any loss or expense that such Lender may sustain or incur as a consequence 
of (a) such Lender receiving or being deemed to receive any amount on account 
of the principal of any Fixed Rate Loan or Eurodollar Loan prior to the end 
of the Interest Period in effect therefor, (b) the conversion of any 
Eurodollar Loan to an ABR Loan, or the conversion of the Interest Period with 
respect to any Eurodollar Loan, in each case other than on the last day of 
the Interest Period in effect therefor or (c) the failure of the Borrower to 
borrow, convert, continue or prepay any Fixed Rate Loan or Eurodollar Loan 
made or to be made by such Lender (including any Eurodollar Loan to be made 
pursuant to a conversion or continuation under Section 2.11) after notice of 
such borrowing, conversion, continuation or prepayment shall have been given 
by the Borrower hereunder (any of the events referred to in this sentence 
being called a "Breakage Event").  In the case of any Breakage Event, such 
loss shall include an amount equal to the excess, as reasonably determined by 
such Lender, of (i) its cost of obtaining funds for the Fixed Rate Loan or 
Eurodollar Loan that is the subject of such Breakage Event for the period 
from the date of such Breakage Event to the last day of the Interest Period 
in effect (or that would have been in effect) for such Loan over (ii) the 
amount of interest likely to be realized by such Lender in redeploying 
the funds released or not utilized by reason of such Breakage Event for 
such period.  A certificate of any Lender setting forth any amount or 
amounts which such Lender is entitled to receive pursuant to this Section 
2.15 shall be delivered to the Borrower and shall be conclusive absent 
manifest error.  The Borrower shall pay such Lender the amount due within 
15 days of the receipt of any such certificate. 
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SECTION 2.16.  Pro Rata Treatment.  Except as provided below in this 
Section 2.16 with respect to Competitive Borrowings and as required under 
Section 2.14, each Borrowing, each payment or prepayment of principal of any 
Borrowing, each payment of interest on the Loans, each payment of the Facility 
Fees, each reduction of the Commitments and each conversion of any Borrowing 
to or continuation of any Borrowing as a Borrowing of any Type shall be 
allocated pro rata among the Lenders in accordance with their respective 
Commitments (or, if such Commitments shall have expired or been terminated, in 
accordance with the respective principal amounts of their outstanding Loans). 
Each payment of principal of and interest on any Competitive Borrowing shall 
be allocated pro rata among the Lenders participating in such Borrowing in 
accordance with the respective principal amounts of their outstanding 
Competitive Loans comprising such Borrowing.  For purposes of determining the 
available Commitments of the Lenders at any time, each outstanding Competitive 
Borrowing shall be deemed to have utilized the Commitments of the Lenders 
(including those Lenders which shall not have made Loans as part of such 
Competitive Borrowing) pro rata in accordance with such respective 
Commitments.  Each Lender agrees that in computing such Lender's portion of 
any Borrowing to be made hereunder, the Administrative Agent may, in its 
discretion, round each Lender's percentage of such Borrowing to the next 
higher or lower whole dollar amount. 
 
SECTION 2.17.  Sharing of Setoffs. Each Lender agrees that if it shall, 
through the exercise of a right of banker's lien, setoff or counterclaim 
against the Borrower, or pursuant to a secured claim under Section 506 of 
Title 11 of the United States Code or other security or interest arising 
from, or in lieu of, such secured claim, received by such Lender under any 
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law or otherwise, or by 
any other means, obtain payment (voluntary or involuntary) in respect of any 
Loan or Loans as a result of which the unpaid principal portion of its Loans 
shall be proportionately less than the unpaid principal portion of the 
Loans of any other Lender, it shall be deemed simultaneously to have 
purchased from such other Lender at face value, and shall promptly pay to 
such other Lender the purchase price for, a participation in the Loans of 
such other Lender, so that the aggregate unpaid principal amount of 
the Loans and participations in Loans held by each Lender shall be in the 
same proportion to the aggregate unpaid principal amount of all Loans then 
outstanding as the principal amount of its Loans prior to such exercise of 
banker's lien, setoff or counterclaim or other event was to the principal 
amount of all Loans outstanding prior to such exercise of banker's lien, 
setoff or counterclaim or other event; provided, however, that if any such 
purchase or purchases or adjustments shall be made pursuant to this 
Section 2.17 and the payment giving rise thereto shall thereafter be 
recovered, such purchase or purchases or adjustments shall be rescinded to the 
extent of such recovery and the purchase price or prices or adjustment 
restored without interest.  The Borrower expressly consents to the foregoing 
arrangements and agrees that any Lender holding a participation in a Loan 
deemed to have been so purchased may exercise any and all rights of banker's 
lien, setoff or counterclaim with respect to any and all moneys owing by the 
Borrower to such Lender by reason thereof as fully as if such Lender had 
made a Loan directly to the Borrower in the amount of such participation. 
 
SECTION 2.18.  Payments.  The Borrower shall make each payment (including 
principal of or interest on any Borrowing or any Fees or other amounts) 
hereunder not later than 12:00 (noon), New York City time, on the date 
when due in immediately available dollars, without setoff, defense or 
counterclaim.  Each such payment shall be made to the Administrative 
Agent at its offices at Eleven Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10010 or as 
otherwise instructed by the Administrative Agent. 
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(b)  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, whenever any payment 
(including principal of or interest on any Borrowing or any Fees or other 
amounts) hereunder shall become due, or otherwise would occur, on a day that 
is not a Business Day, such payment may be made on the next succeeding 
Business Day, and such extension of time shall in such case be included in 
the computation of interest or Fees, if applicable. 
 
SECTION 2.19.  Taxes.  Any and all payments by the Borrower hereunder 
shall be made free and clear of and without deduction for any Indemnified 
Taxes or Other Taxes; provided that if the Borrower shall be required to 
deduct any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes from such payments, then (i) the 
sum payable shall be increased as necessary so that after making all required 
deductions (including deductions applicable to additional sums payable under 
this Section) the Administrative Agent or such Lender (as the case may be) 
receives an amount equal to the sum it would have received had no such 
deductions been made, (ii) the Borrower shall make such deductions and 
(iii) the Borrower shall pay the full amount deducted to the relevant 
Governmental Authority in accordance with applicable law. 
 
(b)  In addition, the Borrower shall pay any Other Taxes not paid pursuant 
to Section 2.19(a)(iii) to the relevant Governmental Authority in accordance 
with applicable law.  As of the Closing Date, each Foreign Lender intends to 
make Loans hereunder out of an office located in the United States of America 
or out of an office so that such Loans would not be subject to Other Taxes. 
 
(c)  The Borrower shall indemnify the Administrative Agent and each 
Lender, within 15 days after written demand therefor, for the full amount of 
any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes paid by the Administrative Agent or such 
Lender, as the case may be, on or with respect to any payment by or on account 
of any obligation of the Borrower hereunder (including Indemnified Taxes or 
Other Taxes imposed or asserted on or attributable to amounts payable under 
this Section) and any penalties, interest and reasonable expenses arising 
therefrom or with respect thereto, whether or not such Indemnified Taxes or 
Other Taxes were correctly or legally imposed or asserted by the relevant 
Governmental Authority; provided, however, that the Borrower shall not be 
obligated to make a payment pursuant to this Section 2.19 in respect of 
penalties, interest and other liabilities attributable to any Indemnified 
Taxes or Other Taxes, if (i) such penalties, interest and other liabilities 
are attributable to the failure of the Administrative Agent or such Lender, 
as the case may be, to pay amounts paid to the Administrative Agent or such 
Lender by the Borrower (for Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes) to the 
appropriate taxing authority in a timely manner after receipt of such payment 
from the Borrower or (ii) such penalties, interest and other liabilities are 
attributable to the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the 
Administrative Agent or such Lender, as the case may be.  After the 
Administrative Agent or a Lender learns of the imposition of Indemnified Taxes 
or Other Taxes, such person will act in good faith to promptly notify the 
Borrower of its obligations hereunder.  A certificate as to the amount of such 
payment or liability delivered to the Borrower by a Lender, or by the 
Administrative Agent on its behalf or on behalf of a Lender, shall be 
conclusive absent manifest error. 
 
(d)  As soon as practicable after any payment of Indemnified Taxes or 
Other Taxes by the Borrower to a Governmental Authority, the Borrower shall 
deliver to the Administrative Agent the original or a certified copy of a 
receipt issued by such Governmental Authority evidencing such payment, a copy 
of the return reporting such payment or other evidence of such payment 
reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent. 
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(e)  Any Lender that is entitled to an exemption from or reduction of 
withholding tax under the law of the jurisdiction in which the Borrower is 
located, or any treaty to which such jurisdiction is a party, with respect to 
payments under this Agreement shall deliver to the Borrower (with a copy to 
the Administrative Agent), at the time or times prescribed by applicable 
law, such properly completed and executed documentation prescribed by 
applicable law and reasonably requested by the Borrower as will permit such 
payments to be made without withholding or at a reduced rate.  Each Foreign 
Lender, before it signs and delivers this Agreement if listed on the signature 
pages hereof and before it becomes a Lender in the case of each other Foreign 
Lender, and from time to time thereafter, before the date any such form 
expires or becomes obsolete or invalid, shall provide the Borrower and the 
Administrative Agent with Internal Revenue Service form W-8BEN or W-8ECI (or 
other appropriate or successor form prescribed by the Internal Revenue 
Service) in duplicate, certifying that such Foreign Lender is entitled to 
benefits under an income tax treaty to which the United States of America is 
a party which exempts the Foreign Lender from U.S. withholding tax on payments 
of interest for the account of such Foreign Lender or certifying that the 
income receivable pursuant to this Agreement is effectively connected with 
the conduct by such Foreign Lender of a trade or business in the United States 
of America and exempt from United States withholding tax. 
 
(f)  If the Administrative Agent or a Lender determines that it has 
received a refund or credit in respect of and specifically associated with any 
Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes as to which it has been indemnified by the 
Borrower, or with respect to which the Borrower has paid additional amounts, 
it shall promptly notify the Borrower of such refund or credit and shall 
within 15 days from the date of receipt of such refund or benefit of such 
credit pay over the amount of such refund or benefit of such credit (including 
any interest paid or credited by the relevant taxing authority or Governmental 
Authority with respect to such refund or credit) to the Borrower (but only to 
the extent of indemnity payments made, or additional amounts paid, by the 
Borrower with respect to the Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes giving rise to 
such refund of credit), net of all out-of-pocket expenses of such person.  If 
the Administrative Agent or a Lender shall become aware that it is entitled to 
receive a refund or credit in respect of Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes as 
to which it has been indemnified by the Borrower or with respect to which the 
Borrower has paid additional amounts, it shall promptly notify the Borrower of 
the availability of such refund or credit and shall, within 15 days after 
receipt of a request for such by the Borrower (whether as a result of 
notification that it has made of such to the Borrower or otherwise), make a 
claim to such taxing authority or Governmental Authority for such refund 
or credit and contest such Indemnified Taxes, Other Taxes or liabilities 
if (i) such Lender or the Administrative Agent determines, in its sole 
discretion, that it would not be materially disadvantaged or prejudiced as a 
result of such contest (it being understood that the mere existence of 
fees, charges, costs or expenses that the Borrower has offered to and agreed 
to pay on behalf of a Lender or the Administrative Agent shall not be deemed 
to be materially disadvantageous to such person) and (ii) the Borrower 
furnishes, upon request of the Lender or the Administrative Agent, an opinion 
of reputable tax counsel (such opinion and such counsel to be acceptable 
to such Lender or the Administrative Agent) to the effect that such 
Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes were wrongfully or illegally imposed. 
 
SECTION 2.20.  Assignment of Commitments Under Certain Circumstances; Duty 
to Mitigate.  In the event (i) any Lender delivers a certificate requesting 
compensation pursuant to Section 2.13, (ii) any Lender delivers a notice 
described in Section 2.14 or (iii) the Borrower is required to pay any 
additional amount to any Lender  or any Governmental Authority on account 
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of any Lender pursuant to Section 2.19, the Borrower may, at its sole 
expense and effort (including with respect to the processing and recordation 
fee referred to in Section 9.04(b)), upon notice to such Lender and the 
Administrative Agent, require such Lender to transfer and assign, 
without recourse (in accordance with and subject to the restrictions 
contained in Section 9.04), all of its interests, rights and obligations under 
this Agreement to an assignee that shall assume such assigned obligations 
(which assignee may be another Lender, if a Lender accepts such assignment); 
provided that (x) such assignment shall not conflict with any law, rule or 
regulation or order of any court or other Governmental Authority having 
jurisdiction, (y) the Borrower shall have received the prior written consent 
of the Administrative Agent, which consent shall not unreasonably be withheld, 
and (z) the Borrower or such assignee shall have paid to the affected Lender 
in immediately available funds an amount equal to the sum of the principal of 
and interest accrued to the date of such payment on the outstanding Loans of 
such Lender, respectively, plus all Fees and other amounts accrued for the 
account of such Lender hereunder (including any amounts under Section 2.13 and 
Section 2.15); provided further that, if prior to any such transfer and 
assignment the circumstances or event that resulted in such Lender's claim for 
compensation under Section 2.13 or notice under Section 2.14 or the amounts 
paid pursuant to Section 2.19, as the case may be, cease to cause such Lender 
to suffer increased costs or reductions in amounts received or receivable or 
reduction in return on capital, or cease to have the consequences specified in 
Section 2.14, or cease to result in amounts being payable under Section 2.19, 
as the case may be (including as a result of any action taken by such Lender 
pursuant to paragraph (b) below), or if such Lender shall waive its right to 
claim further compensation under Section 2.13 in respect of such circumstances 
or event or shall withdraw its notice under Section 2.14 or shall waive its 
right to further payments under Section 2.19 in respect of such circumstances 
or event, as the case may be, then such Lender shall not thereafter be 
required to make any such transfer and assignment hereunder. 
 
(b) If (i) any Lender shall request compensation under Section 2.13, (ii) any 
Lender delivers a notice described in Section 2.14 or (iii) the Borrower is 
required to pay any additional amount or indemnity payment to any Lender  or 
any Governmental Authority on account of any Lender, pursuant to Section 2.19, 
then such Lender shall use reasonable efforts (which shall not require such 
Lender to incur an unreimbursed loss or unreimbursed cost or expense or 
otherwise take any action inconsistent with its internal policies or legal or 
regulatory restrictions or suffer any disadvantage or burden deemed by it to 
be significant) (x) to file any certificate or document reasonably requested 
in writing by the Borrower or (y) to assign its rights and delegate and 
transfer its obligations hereunder to another of its offices, branches or 
affiliates, if such filing or assignment would reduce its claims for 
compensation under Section 2.13 or enable it to withdraw its notice pursuant 
to Section 2.14 or would reduce amounts payable pursuant to Section 2.19, as 
the case may be, in the future.  The Borrower hereby agrees to pay all 
reasonable costs and expenses incurred by any Lender in connection with any 
such filing or assignment, delegation and transfer. 
 



 
29 
 
ARTICLE III 
 
Representations and Warranties 
 
The Borrower represents and warrants to the Administrative Agent and each of 
the Lenders that: 
 
SECTION 3.01. Organization; Powers.  The Borrower and each of the Subsidiaries 
(a) is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of 
the jurisdiction of its organization, (b) has all requisite power and 
authority to own its property and assets and to carry on its business as now 
conducted and (c) is qualified to do business in, and is in good standing in, 
every jurisdiction where such qualification is required, except where the 
failure so to qualify could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material 
Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 3.02.  Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by  the 
Borrower of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby (including 
the Borrowings hereunder) (collectively, the "Transactions") (a) are within 
the Borrower's corporate powers and have been duly authorized by all requisite 
corporate and, if required, stockholder action and (b) will not (i) violate 
(A) any provision of law, statute, rule or regulation, or of the certificate 
or articles of incorporation or other constitutive documents or by-laws of the 
Borrower or any Subsidiary, (B) any order of any Governmental Authority or (C) 
any provision of any indenture, agreement or other instrument to which the 
Borrower or any Subsidiary is a party or by which any of them or any of their 
property is or may be bound, the effect of which could reasonably be 
expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) result in a breach of or 
constitute (alone or with notice or lapse of time or both) a default under, or 
give rise to any right to accelerate or to require the prepayment, repurchase 
or redemption of any obligation under any such indenture, agreement or other 
instrument, the effect of which could reasonably be expected to result in a 
Material Adverse Effect, or (iii) result in the creation or imposition of any 
Lien upon or with respect to any property or assets now owned or hereafter 
acquired by the Borrower or any Subsidiary. 
 
SECTION 3.03.  Enforceability.  This Agreement has been duly executed and 
delivered by the Borrower and constitutes a legal, valid and binding 
obligation of the Borrower enforceable against  the Borrower in accordance 
with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
moratorium or similar laws affecting the enforceability of creditors' rights 
generally and to general principles of equity, regardless of whether 
considered in a proceeding in equity or at law. 
 
SECTION 3.04.  Governmental Approvals. No action, consent or approval of, 
registration or filing with or any other action by any Governmental Authority 
is or will be required in connection with the Transactions, except for such as 
have been made or obtained and are in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 3.05.  Financial Statements.   The Borrower has heretofore furnished 
to the Lenders its consolidated balance sheets and related statements of 
income, stockholders' equity and cash flows (i) as of and for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2001, audited by and accompanied by the opinion of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent public accountants, 
and (ii) as of and for the fiscal quarter and the portion of the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 
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2002, certified by its chief financial officer.  Such financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial condition and results 
of operations and cash flows of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries 
as of such dates and for such periods in accordance with GAAP, subject to 
normal year-end audit adjustments and the absence of footnotes in the case of 
the statements referred to in clause (ii) above. 
 
SECTION 3.06.  No Material Adverse Change. Since December 31, 2001, there has 
been no material adverse change in the financial condition, results of 
operations or business of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. 
 
SECTION 3.07.  Subsidiaries. Schedule 3.07 sets forth as of the Closing Date a 
list of all Subsidiaries and the percentage ownership interest of the Borrower 
therein. 
 
SECTION 3.08.  Litigation; Compliance with Laws.  There are not any 
actions, suits or proceedings at law or in equity or by or before any 
Governmental Authority now pending or, to the knowledge of the Borrower, 
threatened against or affecting the Borrower or any Subsidiary or 
any business, property or rights of any such person (i) that involve this 
Agreement or the Transactions or (ii) as to which there is a reasonable 
possibility of an adverse determination and that, if adversely determined, 
could reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to result in 
a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
(b) None of the Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries is in violation of any 
law, rule or regulation, or is in default with respect to any judgment, writ, 
injunction, decree or order of any Governmental Authority, where such 
violation or default could reasonably be expected to result in a Material 
Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 3.09.  Federal Reserve Regulations.  The Borrower is not engaged 
principally, or as one of its important activities, in the business of 
extending credit for the purpose of buying or carrying Margin Stock. 
 
(b)  No part of the proceeds of any Loan will be used, whether directly or 
indirectly, and whether immediately, incidentally or ultimately, for any 
purpose that entails a violation of, or that is inconsistent with, the 
provisions of the Regulations of the Board, including Regulation T, U or 
X. 
 
SECTION 3.10.  Investment Company Act; Public Utility Holding Company Act. 
None of  the Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries is (a) an "investment 
company" as defined in, or subject to regulation under, the Investment Company 
Act of 1940 or (b) a "holding company" as defined in, or subject to regulation 
under, the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935. 
 
SECTION 3.11.  Use of Proceeds.  The Borrower will use the proceeds of the 
Loans only for the purposes specified in the preamble to this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 3.12.  Tax Returns. Each of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries has 
filed or caused to be filed all Federal, state, local and foreign tax returns 
or materials required to have been filed by it and has paid or caused to be 
paid all Taxes due and payable by it and all assessments received by it, 
except (a) Taxes that are being contested in good faith by appropriate 
proceedings and for which the Borrower or such Subsidiary, as applicable, 
shall have set aside on 
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its books adequate reserves or (b) to the extent that the failure to do so 
could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 3.13.  No Material Misstatements. None of (a) the Confidential 
Information Memorandum or (b) any other information, report, financial 
statement, exhibit or schedule furnished by or on behalf of the Borrower to 
the Administrative Agent or any Lender in connection with the negotiation of 
this Agreement contains any material misstatement of fact or omits to state any 
material fact necessary to make the statements therein taken as a whole, in 
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; 
provided that to the extent any such information, report, financial statement, 
exhibit or schedule was based upon or constitutes a forecast or projection, 
the Borrower represents only that it acted in good faith and utilized 
reasonable assumptions and due care in the preparation of such information, 
report, financial statement, exhibit or schedule. 
 
SECTION 3.14.  Employee Benefit Plans. No ERISA Event has occurred or is 
reasonably expected to occur that, when taken together with all other such 
ERISA Events, could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse 
Effect.  The accumulated benefit obligations (as defined in Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 87) under all Plans (based on the 
assumptions used for purposes of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 87) did not, as of the last annual valuation dates applicable thereto, 
exceed by more than $60,000,000 the fair market value of the assets of all 
such Plans. 
 
SECTION 3.15.  Environmental Matters. Except with respect to any matters that, 
individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to result in 
a Material Adverse Effect, neither the Borrower nor any of the Subsidiaries 
(i) has failed to comply with any Environmental Law or to obtain, maintain or 
comply with any permit, license or other approval required under any 
environmental Law, (ii) is subject to any Environmental Liability, (iii) has 
received written notice of any claim with respect to any Environmental 
Liability or (iv) knows of any basis for any Environmental Liability of the 
Borrower or the Subsidiaries. 
 
SECTION 3.16.  Senior Indebtedness.  The Loans and other obligations hereunder 
constitute  "Senior Indebtedness" under and as defined in the Subordinated Note 
Documents. 
 
ARTICLE IV 
 
Conditions of Lending 
 
The obligations of the Lenders to make Loans hereunder are subject to the 
satisfaction of the following conditions: 
 
SECTION 4.01.  All Borrowings. On the date of each Borrowing: 
 
(a) The Administrative Agent shall have received a notice of such Borrowing 
as required by Section 2.03 or 2.04, as applicable. 
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(b) The representations and warranties set forth in Article III hereof shall 
be true and correct in all material respects on and as of the date of such 
Borrowing with the same effect as though made on and as of such date, except 
to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an 
earlier date. 
 
(c) At the time of and immediately after such Borrowing, no Event of Default 
or Default shall have occurred and be continuing. 
 
Each Borrowing shall be deemed to constitute a representation and warranty by 
the Borrower on the date of such Borrowing as to the matters specified in 
paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Section 4.01. 
 
SECTION 4.02.  Closing Date. On the Closing Date: 
 
(a) The Administrative Agent (or its counsel) shall have received from each 
party hereto either (i) a counterpart of this Agreement signed on behalf of 
such party or (ii) written evidence satisfactory to the Administrative Agent 
(which may include telecopy transmission of a signed signature page of this 
Agreement) that such party has signed a counterpart of this Agreement. 
 
(b) The Administrative Agent shall have received, on behalf of itself and the 
Lenders a favorable written opinion of each of (i) Bradford T. Smith, Chief 
Legal Counsel of the Borrower, substantially to the effect set forth in 
Exhibit E-1, and (ii) Hogan & Hartson L.L.P., special counsel for the 
Borrower, substantially to the effect set forth in Exhibit E-2, (A) dated the 
Closing Date, (B) addressed to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, 
and (C) covering such other matters relating to this Agreement and the 
Transactions as the Administrative Agent shall reasonably request, and 
the Borrower hereby requests such counsel to deliver such opinions. 
 
(c) The Administrative Agent shall have received (i) a copy of the certificate 
of incorporation, including all amendments thereto, of the Borrower, certified 
as of a recent date by the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, and a 
certificate as to the good standing of the Borrower as of a recent date, from 
such Secretary of State; (ii) a certificate of the Secretary or Assistant 
Secretary of the Borrower dated the Closing Date and certifying (A) that 
attached thereto is a true and complete copy of the by-laws of the 
Borrower as in effect on the Closing Date and at all times since a date prior 
to the date of the resolutions described in clause (B) below, (B) that 
attached thereto is a true and complete copy of resolutions duly adopted by 
the Board of Directors of the Borrower authorizing the execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement and the borrowings hereunder, and that such 
resolutions have not been modified, rescinded or amended and are in full force 
and effect, (C) that the certificate of incorporation of the Borrower has not 
been amended since the date of the last amendment thereto shown on the 
certificate of good standing furnished pursuant to clause (i) above, and (D) 
as to the incumbency and specimen signature of each officer executing this 
Agreement or any other document delivered in connection herewith on behalf of 
the Borrower; (iii) a certificate of another officer as to the incumbency and 
specimen signature of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary executing the 
certificate pursuant to clause (ii) above; 
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and (iv) such other documents relating to the Borrower, this Agreement or the 
Transactions as the Lenders or the Administrative Agent may reasonably request. 
 
(d) The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate, dated the 
Closing Date and signed by a Financial Officer of the Borrower, confirming 
compliance with the conditions precedent set forth in paragraphs (b) and (c) 
of Section 4.01. 
 
(e) The Administrative Agent shall have received all Fees and other amounts due 
and payable on or prior to the Closing Date, including, to the extent 
invoiced, reimbursement or payment of all out-of-pocket expenses required to 
be reimbursed or paid by the Borrower hereunder. 
 
(f) All principal, interest, fees and other amounts outstanding or due under 
the Existing Credit Agreement shall have been paid in full, and the commitments 
thereunder terminated, and the Administrative Agent shall have received 
satisfactory evidence thereof. 
 
(g) The  credit facility provided for by this Agreement shall be rated not 
lower than BBB by S&P, and the Administrative Agent shall have received 
satisfactory evidence thereof. 
 
ARTICLE V 
 
Affirmative Covenants 
 
The Borrower covenants and agrees with each Lender that until the Commitments 
have been terminated and the principal of and interest on each Loan, all Fees 
and all other expenses or amounts payable hereunder shall have been paid in 
full, unless the Required Lenders shall otherwise consent in writing, the 
Borrower will, and will cause each of the Subsidiaries to: 
 
SECTION 5.01.  Existence; Businesses and Properties.  Do or cause to be done 
all things necessary to preserve, renew and keep in full force and effect its 
legal existence, except as otherwise expressly permitted under Section 6.04. 
 
(b)  Do or cause to be done all things necessary to obtain, preserve, renew, 
extend and keep in full force and effect its rights, licenses, permits, 
franchises, authorizations, patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade names, 
and comply in all material respects with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and decrees and orders of any Governmental Authority, in each case 
except where the failure to do so could not reasonably be expected to result in 
a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 5.02.  Insurance.  Maintain with responsible and reputable insurance 
companies insurance, to such extent and against such risks as is customary 
with companies in the same or similar businesses operating in the same or 
 similar locations. 
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SECTION 5.03.  Obligations and Taxes. Pay its Indebtedness and other 
obligations, including Taxes, before the same shall become delinquent or in 
default, except where (a) the validity or amount thereof shall be contested in 
good faith by appropriate proceedings and the Borrower shall have set aside on 
its books adequate reserves with respect thereto in accordance with GAAP or 
(b) to the extent that the failure to do so could not reasonably be expected 
to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 5.04.  Financial Statements, Reports, etc. In the case of the Borrower, 
furnish to the Administrative Agent and each Lender: 
 
(a) within 105 days after the end of each fiscal year, its consolidated balance 
sheet and related statements of income, stockholders' equity and cash flows as 
of the close of and for such fiscal year, together with comparative figures for 
the immediately preceding fiscal year, all audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers 
LLP or other independent public accountants of recognized national standing and 
accompanied by an opinion of such accountants (which shall not be qualified in 
any material respect) to the effect that such consolidated financial statements 
present fairly in all material respects the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries on a 
consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP consistently applied; 
 
(b) within 50 days after the end of each of the first three fiscal quarters of 
each fiscal year, its consolidated balance sheet and related statements of 
income, stockholders' equity and cash flows as of the close of and for such 
fiscal quarter and the then elapsed portion of the fiscal year, and comparative 
figures for the same periods in the immediately preceding fiscal year, all 
certified by one of its Financial Officers as presenting fairly in all material 
respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Borrower and 
its consolidated Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP 
consistently applied, subject to normal year-end audit adjustments and the 
absence of footnotes; 
 
(c) concurrently with any delivery of financial statements under paragraph (a) 
or (b) above, a certificate of a Financial Officer (A) certifying that no Event 
of Default or Default has occurred or, if such an Event of Default or Default 
has occurred, specifying the nature and extent thereof and any corrective 
action taken or proposed to be taken with respect thereto, (B) setting forth 
computations in reasonable detail satisfactory to the Administrative Agent 
 demonstrating compliance with the covenants contained in Sections 6.07 
and 6.08 and (C) stating whether any change in GAAP or in the application 
thereof has occurred since the date of the audited financial statements 
referred to in Section 3.05 and, if any such change has occurred, specifying 
the effect of such change on the financial statements accompanying such 
certificate; 
 
(d) promptly after the same become publicly available, copies of all periodic 
and other reports, proxy statements and other materials filed by the Borrower 
or any Subsidiary with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or any 
Governmental Authority succeeding to any or all of the functions of said 
Commission, or with any national securities exchange, or distributed to its 
shareholders, as the case may be; 
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(e) promptly after the receipt thereof by the Borrower or any of its 
Subsidiaries, a copy of any "management letter" received by any such person 
from its certified public accountants and the management's response thereto; 
and 
(f) promptly, from time to time, such other information regarding the 
operations, business affairs and financial condition of the Borrower or any 
Subsidiary, or compliance with the terms of this Agreement, as the 
Administrative Agent or any Lender may reasonably request. 
 
SECTION 5.05.  Litigation and Other Notices. In the case of the Borrower, 
furnish to the Administrative Agent and each Lender prompt written notice of 
the following: 
 
(a) any Event of Default or Default, specifying the nature and 
extent thereof and the corrective action (if any) taken or proposed to be 
taken with respect thereto; 
 
(b) the filing or commencement of, or any threat or notice of intention of any 
person to file or commence, any action, suit or proceeding, whether at law or 
in equity or by or before any Governmental Authority, against the Borrower or 
any Affiliate thereof that could reasonably be expected to result in a Material 
Adverse Effect; 
 
(c) any change in the rating by S&P of the Index Debt; and 
 
(d) the occurrence of any ERISA Event that, alone or together with any other 
ERISA Events that have occurred, could reasonably be expected to result in a 
Material Adverse Effect. 
 
SECTION 5.06.  Maintaining Records; Access to Properties and Inspections.  Keep 
books of record and account in conformity with GAAP and all requirements of law 
in relation to its business and activities.  The Borrower will, and will cause 
each of its Subsidiaries to, permit any representatives designated by the 
Administrative Agent or any Lender, upon reasonable prior notice, to visit and 
inspect the financial records and the properties of the Borrower or any 
Subsidiary at reasonable times and as often as reasonably requested and to make 
extracts from and copies of such financial records, and permit any 
representatives designated by the Administrative Agent or any Lender to discuss 
the affairs, finances and condition of the Borrower or any Subsidiary with the 
officers thereof and independent accountants therefor. 
 
SECTION 5.07.  Use of Proceeds. Use the proceeds of the Loans only for the 
purposes set forth in the preamble to this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VI 
 
Negative Covenants 
 
The Borrower covenants and agrees with each Lender that, until the Commitments 
have been terminated and the principal of and interest on each Loan, all Fees 
and all other expenses or 
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amounts payable hereunder have been paid in full, unless the Required Lenders 
shall otherwise consent in writing, the Borrower will not, and will not cause 
or permit any of the Subsidiaries to: 
 
SECTION 6.01.  Subsidiary Indebtedness. With respect to the Subsidiaries, 
incur, create, issue, assume or permit to exist any Indebtedness or preferred 
stock, except: 
 
(a) Indebtedness or preferred stock existing on the date hereof and having an 
aggregate principal amount (or, in the case of preferred stock, an aggregate 
liquidation preference) of less than $25,000,000 in the aggregate and, in the 
case of any such Indebtedness, any extensions, renewals or replacements thereof 
to the extent the principal amount of such Indebtedness is not increased, and 
such Indebtedness, if subordinated to the Loans, remains so subordinated on 
terms no less favorable to the Lenders, and the original obligors in respect of 
such Indebtedness remain the only obligors thereon; 
 
(b) Indebtedness created or existing (i) hereunder or (ii) under the Three-Year 
Credit Agreement; 
 
(c) intercompany Indebtedness or preferred stock to the extent owing to or held 
by the Borrower or another Subsidiary; 
 
(d) Indebtedness of any Subsidiary incurred to finance the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of any fixed or capital assets, and extensions, 
renewals and replacements of any such Indebtedness that do not increase the 
outstanding principal amount thereof; provided that (i) such Indebtedness is 
incurred prior to or within 180 days after such acquisition or the completion 
of such construction or improvement and (ii) the aggregate principal amount 
of Indebtedness permitted by this Section 6.01(d), when combined with the 
aggregate principal amount of all Capital Lease Obligations incurred pursuant 
to Section 6.01(e) and all Indebtedness incurred pursuant to Section  6.01(f), 
shall not exceed $100,000,000 at any time outstanding; 
 
(e) Capital Lease Obligations in an aggregate principal amount, when combined 
with the aggregate principal amount of all Indebtedness incurred pursuant to 
Section 6.01(d) and Section 6.01(f), not in excess of $100,000,000 at any time 
outstanding; 
 
(f) Indebtedness of any person that becomes a Subsidiary after the date hereof; 
provided that (i) such Indebtedness exists at the time such person becomes a 
Subsidiary and is not created in contemplation of or in connection with such 
person becoming a Subsidiary, (ii) immediately before and after such person 
becomes a Subsidiary, no Event of Default or Default shall have occurred and 
be continuing and (iii) the aggregate principal amount of Indebtedness 
permitted by this clause (f), when combined with the aggregate principal 
amount of all Indebtedness incurred pursuant to Section 6.01(d) and all 
Capital Lease Obligations incurred pursuant to Section 6.01(e), shall not 
exceed $100,000,000 at any time outstanding; 
 
(g) Indebtedness under performance bonds or with respect to workers' 
compensation claims, in each case incurred in the ordinary course of business; 
and 
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(h) additional Indebtedness or preferred stock of the Subsidiaries to the 
extent not otherwise permitted by the foregoing clauses of this Section 6.01 
in an aggregate principal amount (or, in the case of preferred stock, with an 
aggregate liquidation preference), when combined (without duplication) with 
the amount of obligations of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries secured by 
Liens pursuant to Section 6.02(j), not to exceed $100,000,000 at any time 
outstanding. 
 
SECTION 6.02.  Liens. Create, incur, assume or permit to exist any Lien on any 
property or assets (including Equity Interests or other securities of any 
person, including any Subsidiary) now owned or hereafter acquired by it or on 
any income or revenues or rights in respect of any thereof, except: 
 
(a) Liens on property or assets of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries existing 
on the date hereof and encumbering property or assets with a fair market value, 
and securing obligations having an aggregate principal amount, in each case 
less than $25,000,000 in the aggregate; provided that (x) such Liens shall 
secure only those obligations which they secure on the date hereof and 
extensions, renewals and replacements thereof permitted hereunder and (y) such 
Liens shall not apply to any other property or assets of the Borrower or any 
of the Subsidiaries; 
 
(b) any Lien existing on any property or asset prior to the acquisition 
thereof by the Borrower or any Subsidiary or existing on any property or asset 
of any person that becomes a Subsidiary after the date hereof prior to the time 
such person becomes a Subsidiary; provided that (i) such Lien is not created 
in contemplation of or in connection with such acquisition or such person 
becoming a Subsidiary, as the case may be, (ii) such Lien does not apply to 
any other property or assets of the Borrower or any Subsidiary and 
(ii) such Lien shall secure only those obligations which it secures on the 
date of such acquisition or the date such person becomes a Subsidiary, as the 
case may be and extensions, renewals and replacements thereof permitted 
hereunder; 
 
(c) Liens for taxes not yet due or which are being contested in compliance with 
Section 5.03; 
 
(d) carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's, repairmen's or other 
like Liens arising in the ordinary course of business and securing obligations 
that are not overdue by more than 90 days or which are being contested in 
compliance with Section 5.03; 
 
(e) pledges and deposits made in the ordinary course of business in compliance 
with workmen's compensation, unemployment insurance and other social security 
laws or regulations; 
 
(f) deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade contracts (other than for 
Indebtedness), leases (other than Capital Lease Obligations), statutory 
obligations, surety and appeal bonds, performance bonds and other obligations 
of a like nature, in each case in the ordinary course of business; 
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(g) zoning restrictions, easements, rights-of-way, restrictions on use of real 
property and other similar encumbrances incurred in the ordinary course of 
business which, in the aggregate, are not substantial in amount and do not 
materially detract from the value of the property subject thereto or interfere 
with the ordinary conduct of the business of the Borrower or any of its 
Subsidiaries; 
 
(h) purchase money security interests in real property, improvements thereto or 
equipment hereafter acquired (or, in the case of improvements, constructed) by 
the Borrower or any Subsidiary; provided that (i) such security interests 
secure Indebtedness permitted by Section 6.01, (ii) such security interests are 
incurred, and the Indebtedness secured thereby is created, within 180 days 
after such acquisition (or construction) and  (iii) such security interests do 
not apply to any other property or assets of the Borrower or any Subsidiary; 
 
(i) Liens in respect of judgments that do not constitute an Event of Default; 
and 
 
(j) Liens not otherwise permitted by the foregoing clauses of this Section 
6.02 securing obligations otherwise permitted by this Agreement in an 
aggregate principal and face amount, when combined (without duplication) with 
the amount of Indebtedness or preferred stock of Subsidiaries incurred pursuant 
to Section 6.01(h), not to exceed $100,000,000 at any time outstanding. 
 
SECTION 6.03.  Sale and Lease-Back Transactions. Enter into any arrangement, 
directly or indirectly, with any person whereby it shall sell or transfer any 
property, real or personal, used or useful in its business, whether now owned 
or hereafter acquired, and thereafter rent or lease such property or other 
property which it intends to use for substantially the same purpose or 
purposes as the property being sold or transferred unless (a) the sale of such 
property is permitted by Section 6.04 and (b) any Capital Lease Obligations or 
Liens arising in connection therewith are permitted by Sections 6.01 and 6.02, 
respectively. 
 
SECTION 6.04.  Mergers, Consolidations and Sales of Assets.  Merge into or 
consolidate with any other person, or permit any other person to merge into or 
consolidate with it, or sell, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of (in one 
transaction or in a series of transactions) all or substantially all the assets 
(whether now owned or hereafter acquired) of the Borrower, or liquidate or 
dissolve, except that, if at the time thereof and immediately after giving 
effect thereto no Event of Default or Default shall have occurred and be 
continuing, (a) any person may merge into the Borrower in a transaction in 
which the Borrower is the surviving corporation, (b) any person, other than 
the Borrower, may merge into or consolidate with any Subsidiary in a 
transaction in which the surviving entity is a Subsidiary and (c) any 
Subsidiary may liquidate or dissolve if the Borrower determines in good 
faith that such liquidation or dissolution is in the best interests of the 
Borrower and is not materially disadvantageous to the Lenders. 
 
SECTION 6.05.  Restricted Payments. Declare or make, or agree to declare or 
make, directly or indirectly, any Restricted Payment (including pursuant to 
any Synthetic Purchase Agreement), or incur any obligation (contingent or 
otherwise) to do so; provided, however, that (i) any Subsidiary may declare 
and pay dividends or make other distributions ratably to holders of 
Equity Interests in it, (ii) the Borrower may declare and pay dividends or 
make other distributions of its Equity Interests and (iii) so long as no 
Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and 
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be continuing or would result therefrom, the Borrower and the Subsidiaries may 
declare and make, directly or indirectly, additional Restricted Payments to 
the extent not otherwise permitted by the foregoing clauses of this Section 
6.05 in an aggregate amount not to exceed $300,000,000. 
 
SECTION 6.06.  Business of Borrower and Subsidiaries. Engage to any material 
extent in any business or business activity other than businesses of the type 
currently conducted by the Borrower and the Subsidiaries and business 
activities reasonably related thereto. 
 
SECTION 6.07.  Interest Coverage Ratio.  Permit the Interest Coverage Ratio for 
any period of four consecutive fiscal quarters, in each case taken as one 
accounting period, to be less than 5.0 to 1.0. 
 
SECTION 6.08.  Maximum Leverage Ratio.  Permit the Leverage Ratio for any 
period of four consecutive fiscal quarters, in each case taken as one 
accounting period, to be greater than 2.5 to 1.0. 
 
SECTION 6.09.  Hedging Agreements.  Enter into any Hedging Agreement other than 
non-speculative Hedging Agreements entered into to hedge or mitigate risks to 
which the Borrower or a Subsidiary is exposed in the ordinary course of the 
conduct of its business or the management of its liabilities. 
 
ARTICLE VII 
 
Events of Default 
 
In case of the happening of any of the following events ("Events of Default"): 
 
(a) any representation or warranty made or deemed made in or in connection 
with this Agreement or the Borrowings hereunder, or any representation, 
warranty, statement or information contained in any report, certificate, 
financial statement or other instrument furnished in connection with or 
pursuant to this Agreement shall prove to have been false or misleading in 
any material respect when so made, deemed made or furnished; 
 
(b)  default shall be made in the payment of any principal of any Loan when and 
as the same shall become due and payable, whether at the due date thereof or at 
a date fixed for prepayment thereof or by acceleration thereof or otherwise; 
 
(c) default shall be made in the payment of any interest on any Loan or any 
Fee or any other amount (other than an amount referred to in (b) above) due 
under this Agreement, when and as the same shall become due and payable, and 
such default shall continue unremedied for a period of five Business Days; 
 
(d)  default shall be made in the due observance or performance by the Borrower 
or any Subsidiary of any covenant, condition or agreement contained in Section 
5.01(a) (with respect to the Borrower), 5.05(a) or 5.07 or in Article VI; 
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(e)  default shall be made in the due observance or performance by the Borrower 
or any Subsidiary of any covenant, condition or agreement contained in this 
Agreement (other than those specified in (b), (c) or (d) above) and such 
default shall continue unremedied for a period of 30 days after notice thereof 
from the Administrative Agent to the Borrower (which notice will be given at 
the request of any Lender); 
 
(f)  (i) the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary shall (i) fail to pay any 
principal or interest, regardless of amount, due in respect of any Material 
Indebtedness, when and as the same shall become due and payable (after giving 
effect to any applicable grace period), or (ii) any other event or condition 
occurs (after giving effect to any applicable grace period) that results in any 
Material Indebtedness becoming due prior to its scheduled maturity or that 
enables or permits the holder or holders of any Material Indebtedness or any 
trustee or agent on its or their behalf to cause any Material Indebtedness to 
become due, or to require the prepayment, repurchase, redemption or defeasance 
thereof, prior to its scheduled maturity; provided that this clause (ii) 
shall not apply to secured Indebtedness that becomes due as a result of the 
voluntary sale or transfer of the property or assets securing such 
Indebtedness; 
 
(g) an involuntary proceeding shall be commenced or an involuntary petition 
shall be filed in a court of competent jurisdiction seeking (i) relief in 
\respect of the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary, or of a substantial part 
of the property or assets of the Borrower or a Material Subsidiary, under 
Title 11 of the United States Code, as now constituted or hereafter amended, 
or any other Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or 
similar law, (ii) the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, 
sequestrator, conservator or similar official for the Borrower or any Material 
Subsidiary or for a substantial part of the property or assets of the 
Borrower or a Material Subsidiary or (iii) the winding-up or liquidation of the 
Borrower or any Material Subsidiary; and such proceeding or petition shall 
continue undismissed for 60 days or an order or decree approving or ordering 
any of the foregoing shall be entered; 
 
(h)  the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary shall (i) voluntarily commence any 
proceeding or file any petition seeking relief under Title 11 of the United 
States Code, as now constituted or hereafter amended, or any other Federal, 
state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar law, (ii) 
consent to the institution of, or fail to contest in a timely and appropriate 
manner, any proceeding or the filing of any petition described in (g) above, 
(iii) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, 
custodian, sequestrator, conservator or similar official for the Borrower or 
any Material Subsidiary or for a substantial part of the property or assets of 
the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary, (iv) file an answer admitting the 
material allegations of a petition filed against it in any such proceeding, (v) 
make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (vi) become unable, 
admit in writing its inability or fail generally to pay its debts as they 
become due or (vii) take any action for the purpose of effecting any of the 
foregoing; 
 
(i)  one or more judgments for the payment of money in an amount in excess of 
$50,000,000 individually or $75,000,000 in the aggregate shall be rendered 
against the Borrower, any Material Subsidiary or any combination thereof and 
the same shall remain undischarged for a period of 30 consecutive days during 
which execution shall not be effectively stayed, or any action shall be legally 
taken by a judgment creditor to levy upon assets or properties of the 
Borrower or any Material Subsidiary to enforce any such judgment; provided, 
however, that any such judgment shall not be an Event of Default under this 
paragraph (i) if and for so long as (i) 
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the entire amount of such judgment is covered by a valid and binding policy of 
insurance between the defendant and the insurer covering payment thereof and 
(ii) such insurer, which shall be rated at least "A" by A.M. Best Company, has 
been notified of, and has not disputed the claim made for payment of the amount 
of such judgment;. 
 
(j) one or more ERISA Events shall have occurred that results in liability of 
the Borrower and its ERISA Affiliates exceeding $50,000,000 individually or 
$75,000,000 in the aggregate; or 
 
(k) there shall have occurred a Change in Control; 
 
then, and in every such event (other than an event with respect to the 
Borrower described in paragraph (g) or (h) above), and at any time thereafter 
during the continuance of such event, the Administrative Agent may, and at the 
request of the Required Lenders shall, by notice to the Borrower, take either 
or both of the following actions, at the same or different times: 
(i) terminate forthwith the Commitments and (ii) declare the Loans then 
outstanding to be forthwith due and payable in whole or in part, whereupon the 
principal of the Loans so declared to be due and payable, together with 
accrued interest thereon and any unpaid accrued Fees and all other liabilities 
of the Borrower accrued hereunder, shall become forthwith due and payable, 
without presentment, demand, protest or any other notice of any kind, all of 
which are hereby expressly waived by the Borrower, anything contained hereinto 
the contrary notwithstanding; and in any event with respect to the Borrower 
described in paragraph (g) or (h) above, the Commitments shall automatically 
terminate and the principal of the Loans then outstanding, together with 
accrued interest thereon and any unpaid accrued Fees and all other liabilities 
of the Borrower accrued hereunder, shall automatically become due and payable, 
without presentment, demand, protest or any other notice of any kind, all of 
which are hereby expressly waived by the Borrower, anything contained herein 
to the contrary notwithstanding. 
 
ARTICLE VIII 
 
The Administrative Agent 
 
Each of the Lenders hereby irrevocably appoints the Administrative Agent its 
agent and authorizes the Administrative Agent to take such actions on its 
behalf and to exercise such powers as are delegated to the Administrative 
Agent by the terms of this Agreement, together with such actions and powers 
as are reasonably incidental thereto. 
 
The bank serving as the Administrative Agent hereunder shall have the same 
rights and powers in its capacity as a Lender as any other Lender and may 
exercise the same as though it were not the Administrative Agent, and such 
bank and its Affiliates may accept deposits from, lend money to and generally 
engage in any kind of business with the Borrower or any Subsidiary or other 
Affiliate thereof as if it were not the Administrative Agent hereunder. 
 
The Administrative Agent shall not have any duties or obligations except those 
expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, (a) the Administrative Agent shall not be subject to any fiduciary 
or other implied duties, regardless of 
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whether a Default has occurred and is continuing, (b) the Administrative Agent 
shall not have any duty to take any discretionary action or exercise any 
discretionary powers, except discretionary rights and powers expressly 
contemplated by this Agreement that the Administrative Agent is required to 
exercise in writing by the Required Lenders (or such other number or 
percentage of the Lenders as shall be necessary under the circumstances as 
provided in Section 9.08), and (c) except as expressly set forth herein, the 
Administrative Agent shall not have any duty to disclose, and shall not be 
liable for the failure to disclose, any information relating to the Borrower 
or any of the Subsidiaries that is communicated to or obtained by the bank 
serving as Administrative Agent or any of its Affiliates in any capacity. 
The Administrative Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or not taken 
by it with the consent or at the request of the Required Lenders (or 
such other number or percentage of the Lenders as shall be necessary under the 
circumstances as provided in Section 9.08) or in the absence of its own gross 
negligence or willful misconduct.  The Administrative Agent shall not be deemed 
to have knowledge of any Default unless and until written notice thereof is 
given to the Administrative Agent by the Borrower or a Lender, and the 
Administrative Agent shall not be responsible for or have any duty to ascertain 
or inquire into (i) any statement, warranty or representation made in or in 
connection with this Agreement, (ii) the contents of any certificate, report 
or other document delivered thereunder or in connection therewith, (iii) the 
performance or observance of any of the covenants, agreements or other terms 
or conditions set forth herein, (iv) the validity, enforceability, 
effectiveness or genuineness of this Agreement or any other agreement, 
instrument or document, or (v) the satisfaction of any condition set forth in 
Article IV or elsewhere herein, other than to confirm receipt of items 
expressly required to be delivered to the Administrative Agent. 
 
The Administrative Agent shall be entitled to rely upon, and shall not incur 
any liability for relying upon, any notice, request, certificate, consent, 
statement, instrument, document or other writing believed by it to be genuine 
and to have been signed or sent by the proper person.  The Administrative Agent 
may also rely upon any statement made to it orally or by telephone and 
believed by it to have been made by the proper person, and shall not incur any 
liability for relying thereon.  The Administrative Agent may consult with legal 
counsel (who may be counsel for the Borrower), independent accountants and 
other experts selected by it, and shall not be liable for any action taken or 
not taken by it in accordance with the advice of any such counsel, accountants 
or experts. 
 
The Administrative Agent may perform any and all its duties and exercise its 
rights and powers by or through any one or more sub-agents appointed by it. 
The Administrative Agent and any such sub-agent may perform any and all its 
duties and exercise its rights and powers by or through their respective 
Related Parties.  The exculpatory provisions of the preceding paragraphs 
shall apply to any such sub-agent and to the Related Parties of each 
Administrative Agent and any such sub-agent, and shall apply to their 
respective activities in connection with the syndication of the credit 
facilities provided for herein as well as activities as Administrative Agent. 
 
Subject to the appointment and acceptance of a successor Administrative Agent 
as provided below, the Administrative Agent may resign at any time by notifying 
the Lenders and the Borrower.  Upon any such resignation, the Required Lenders 
shall have the right, with the consent of the Borrower (such consent not to be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed), to appoint a successor.  If no successor 
shall have been so appointed by the Required Lenders and shall have 
accepted such appointment within 30 days after the retiring Administrative 
Agent gives notice of its resignation, then the retiring Administrative Agent 
may, on behalf of the Lenders, appoint a 
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successor Administrative Agent which shall be a bank with an office in New 
York, New York, or an Affiliate of any such bank, that is acceptable to the 
Borrower (which shall not unreasonably withhold its approval).  Upon the 
acceptance of its appointment as Administrative Agent hereunder by a successor, 
such successor shall succeed to and become vested with all the rights, 
powers, privileges and duties of the retiring Administrative Agent, and the 
retiring Administrative Agent shall be discharged from its duties and 
obligations hereunder. The fees payable by the Borrower to a successor 
Administrative  shall be the same as those payable to its predecessor 
unless otherwise agreed between the Borrower and such successor.  After the 
Administrative Agent's resignation hereunder, the provisions of this Article 
and Section 9.05 shall continue in effect for the benefit of such retiring 
Administrative Agent, its sub-agents and their respective Related Parties in 
respect of any actions taken or omitted to be taken by any of them while 
acting as Administrative Agent. 
 
Each Lender acknowledges that it has, independently and without reliance upon 
the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and based on such documents and 
information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own credit analysis and 
decision to enter into this Agreement.  Each Lender also acknowledges that it 
will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any 
other Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall from time 
to time deem appropriate, continue to make its own decisions in taking or not 
taking action under or based upon this Agreement, any related agreement or any 
document furnished hereunder or thereunder. 
 
ARTICLE IX 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
SECTION 9.01.  Notices. Notices and other communications provided for herein 
shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand or overnight courier 
service, mailed by certified or registered mail or sent by telecopy, as 
follows: 
 
(a) if to the Borrower, to it at 231 Maple Avenue, Burlington, NC 27215, 
Attention of Wesley R. Elingburg  (Telecopy No. (336) 436-1066); 
 
(b) if to the Administrative Agent, to Credit Suisse First Boston, Eleven 
Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10010, Attention of Ronald Davis, Agency Group 
(Telecopy No. (212) 325-8304, with a copy to Credit Suisse First Boston, at 
Eleven Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10010, Attention of Agency Group Manager 
(Telecopy No. (212) 325-8304); and 
 
(c) if to a Lender, to it at its address (or telecopy number) set forth on 
Schedule 2.01 or in the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which such 
Lender shall have become a party hereto. 
 
All notices and other communications given to any party hereto in accordance 
with the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been given on 
the date of receipt. 
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SECTION 9.02.  Survival of Agreement. All covenants, agreements, 
representations and warranties made by the Borrower herein and in the 
certificates or other instruments prepared or delivered in connection with or 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be considered to have been relied upon by the 
Lenders and shall survive the making by the Lenders of the Loans, regardless 
of any investigation made by the Lenders or on their behalf, and shall continue 
in full force and effect as long as the principal of or any accrued interest 
on any Loan or any Fee or any other amount payable under this Agreement is 
outstanding and unpaid and so long as the Commitments have not been 
terminated.  The provisions of Sections 2.13, 2.15, 2.19 and 9.05 shall remain 
operative and in full force and effect regardless of the expiration of the term 
of this Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, 
the repayment of any of the Loans, the expiration of the Commitments, the 
invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision of this Agreement, or 
any investigation made by or on behalf of the Administrative Agent or any 
Lender. 
 
SECTION 9.03.  Binding Effect. This Agreement shall become effective when it 
shall have been executed by the Borrower and the Administrative Agent and when 
the Administrative Agent shall have received counterparts hereof which, when 
taken together, bear the signatures of each of the other parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 9.04.  Successors and Assigns.  Whenever in this Agreement any of the 
parties hereto is referred to, such reference shall be deemed to include the 
permitted successors and assigns of such party; and all covenants, promises 
and agreements by or on behalf of the Borrower, the Administrative Agent or 
the Lenders that are contained in this Agreement shall bind and inure to the 
benefit of their respective successors and assigns. 
 
(b)  Each Lender may assign to one or more assignees all or a portion of its 
interests, rights and obligations under this Agreement (including all or a 
portion of its Commitment and the Loans at the time owing to it); provided, 
however, that (i) except in the case of an assignment to a Lender or an 
Affiliate of a Lender, (x) the Borrower and the Administrative Agent must give 
their prior written consent to such assignment (which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed); provided, however, that the consent of the 
Borrower shall not be required to any such assignment during the continuance 
of any Event of Default described in paragraph (g) or (h) of Article VII, and 
(y) the amount of the Commitment of the assigning Lender subject to each such 
assignment (determined as of the date the Assignment and Acceptance with 
respect to such assignment is delivered to the Administrative Agent) shall 
not be less than $5,000,000 (or, if less, the entire remaining amount of such 
Lender's Commitment), (ii) each such assignment shall be of a constant, and 
not a varying, percentage of all the assigning Lender's rights and obligations 
under this Agreement, (iii) the parties to each such assignment shall execute 
and deliver to the Administrative Agent an Assignment and Acceptance, together 
with a processing and recordation fee of $3,500 and (iv) the assignee, if it 
shall not be a Lender, shall deliver to the Administrative Agent an 
Administrative Questionnaire and applicable tax forms.  Upon acceptance 
and recording pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Section 9.04, from and after 
the effective date specified in each Assignment and Acceptance, (A) the 
assignee thereunder shall be a party hereto and, to the extent of the interest 
assigned by such Assignment and Acceptance, have the rights and obligations 
of a Lender under this Agreement and (B) the assigning Lender thereunder 
shall, to the extent of the interest assigned by such Assignment and 
Acceptance, be released from its obligations under this Agreement (and, in 
the case of an Assignment and Acceptance covering all or the remaining 
portion of an assigning Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement, 
such Lender shall 
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cease to be a party hereto but shall continue to be entitled to the benefits 
of Sections 2.13, 2.15, 2.19 and 9.05, as well as to any Fees accrued for its 
account and not yet paid).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Lender assigning 
its rights and obligations under this Agreement may retain any Competitive 
Loans made by it outstanding at such time, and in such case shall retain its 
rights hereunder in respect of any such Loans so retained until such Loans have 
been repaid in full in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
(c)  By executing and delivering an Assignment and Acceptance, the assigning 
Lender thereunder and the assignee thereunder shall be deemed to confirm to 
and agree with each other and the other parties hereto as follows:  (i) such 
assigning Lender warrants that it is the legal and beneficial owner of the 
interest being assigned thereby free and clear of any adverse claim and 
that its Commitment, and the outstanding balances of its Revolving Loans and 
Competitive Loans, in each case without giving effect to assignments thereof 
which have not become effective, are as set forth in such Assignment and 
Acceptance, (ii) except as set forth in (i) above, such assigning Lender makes 
no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to 
any statements, warranties or representations made in or in connection with 
this Agreement, or the execution, legality, validity, enforceability, 
genuineness, sufficiency or value of this Agreement or any other instrument or 
document furnished pursuant hereto, or the financial condition of the Borrower 
or any Subsidiary or the performance or observance by the Borrower or any 
Subsidiary of any of its obligations under this Agreement or any other 
instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto; (iii) such assignee 
represents and warrants that it is legally authorized to enter into such 
Assignment and Acceptance; (iv) such assignee confirms that it has received a 
copy of this Agreement, together with copies of the most recent financial 
statements referred to in Section 3.05 or delivered pursuant to Section 5.04 
and such other documents and information as it has deemed appropriate to make 
its own credit analysis and decision to enter into such Assignment and 
Acceptance; (v) such assignee will independently and without reliance 
upon the Administrative Agent, such assigning Lender or any other Lender and 
based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the 
time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking action 
under this Agreement; (vi) such assignee appoints and authorizes the 
Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise 
such powers under this Agreement as are delegated to the Administrative Agent 
by the terms hereof, together with such powers as are reasonably incidental 
thereto; and (vii) such assignee agrees that it will perform in accordance 
with their terms all the obligations which by the terms of this Agreement are 
required to be performed by it as a Lender. 
 
(d)  The Administrative Agent, acting for this purpose as an agent of the 
Borrower, shall maintain at one of its offices in The City of New York a copy 
of each Assignment and Acceptance delivered to it and a register for the 
recordation of the names and addresses of the Lenders, and the Commitment of, 
and principal amount of the Loans owing to, each Lender pursuant to the terms 
hereof from time to time (the "Register").  The entries in the Register shall 
be conclusive and the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders may 
treat each person whose name is recorded in the Register pursuant to the terms 
hereof as a Lender hereunder for all purposes of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding notice to the contrary.  The Register shall be available for 
inspection by the Borrower and any Lender, at any reasonable time and from time 
to time upon reasonable prior notice. 
 
(e)  Upon its receipt of a duly completed Assignment and Acceptance executed by 
an assigning Lender and an assignee, an Administrative Questionnaire completed 
in respect of the 
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assignee (unless the assignee shall already be a Lender hereunder), the 
processing and recordation fee referred to in paragraph (b) above and, if 
required, the written consent of the Borrower and the Administrative Agent to 
such assignment, the Administrative Agent shall (i) accept such Assignment and 
Acceptance and (ii) record the information contained therein in the Register. 
No assignment shall be effective unless it has been recorded in the Register 
as provided in this paragraph (e). 
 
(f)  Each Lender may without the consent of the Borrower or the Administrative 
Agent sell participations to one or more banks or other entities in all or a 
portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including all or a 
portion of its Commitment and the Loans owing to it); provided, however, that 
(i) such Lender's obligations under this Agreement shall remain unchanged, 
(ii) such Lender shall remain solely responsible to the other parties hereto 
for the performance of such obligations, (iii) the participating banks or 
other entities shall be entitled to the benefit of the cost protection 
 provisions contained in Sections 2.13, 2.15 and 2.19 to the same extent as if 
they were Lenders (but, with respect to any particular participant, to no 
greater extent than the Lender that sold the participation to such 
participant) and (iv) the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders 
shall continue to deal solely and directly with such Lender in connection with 
such Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement, and such Lender 
shall retain the sole right to enforce the obligations of the Borrower 
relating to the Loans and to approve any amendment, modification or waiver of 
any provision of this Agreement (other than amendments, modifications or 
waivers decreasing any fees payable hereunder or the amount of principal of or 
the rate at which interest is payable on the Loans, extending any scheduled 
principal payment date or date fixed for the payment of interest on the Loans 
or increasing or extending the Commitments). 
 
(g)  Any Lender or participant may, in connection with any assignment or 
participation or proposed assignment or participation pursuant to this Section 
9.04, disclose to the assignee or participant or proposed assignee or 
participant any information relating to the Borrower furnished to such Lender 
by or on behalf of the Borrower; provided that, prior to any such disclosure of 
information designated by the Borrower as confidential, each such assignee or 
participant or proposed assignee or participant shall execute an agreement 
whereby such assignee or participant shall agree (subject to customary 
exceptions) to preserve the confidentiality of such confidential 
information on terms no less restrictive than those applicable to the Lenders 
pursuant to Section 9.16. 
 
(h)  Any Lender may at any time assign all or any portion of its rights under 
this Agreement to secure extensions of credit to such Lender or in support of 
obligations owed by such Lender; provided that no such assignment shall release 
a Lender from any of its obligations hereunder or substitute any such assignee 
for such Lender as a party hereto. 
 
(i)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, any Lender (a 
"Granting Lender") may grant to a special purpose funding vehicle (an "SPC"), 
identified as such in writing from time to time by the Granting Lender to the 
Administrative Agent and the Borrower, the option to provide to the Borrower 
all or any part of any Loan that such Granting Lender would otherwise be 
obligated to make to the Borrower pursuant to this Agreement; provided 
that (i) nothing herein shall constitute a commitment by any SPC to make any 
Loan and (ii) if an SPC elects not to exercise such option or otherwise fails 
to provide all or any part of such Loan, the Granting Lender shall be obligated 
to make such Loan pursuant to the terms hereof.  The 
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making of a Loan by an SPC hereunder shall utilize the Commitment of the 
Granting Lender to the same extent, and as if, such Loan were made by such 
Granting Lender.  Each party hereto hereby agrees that no SPC shall be liable 
for any indemnity or similar payment obligation under this Agreement (all 
liability for which shall remain with the Granting Lender).  In furtherance of 
the foregoing, each party hereto hereby agrees (which agreement shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement) that, prior to the date that is one year and 
one day after the payment in full of all outstanding commercial paper or other 
senior indebtedness of any SPC, it will not institute against, or join any 
other person in instituting against, such SPC any bankruptcy, reorganization, 
arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings under the laws of the United 
States or any State thereof.  In addition, notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained in this Section 9.04, any SPC may (i) with notice to, but 
without the prior written consent of, the Borrower and the Administrative Agent 
and without paying any processing fee therefor, assign all or a portion 
of its interests in any Loans to the Granting Lender or to any financial 
institutions (consented to by the Borrower and Administrative Agent) providing 
liquidity and/or credit support to or for the account of such SPC to support 
the funding or maintenance of Loans and (ii) disclose on a confidential basis 
any non-public information relating to its Loans to any rating agency, 
commercial paper dealer or provider of any surety, guarantee or credit or 
liquidity enhancement to such SPC. 
 
(j)  The Borrower shall not assign or delegate any of its rights or duties 
hereunder without the prior written consent of the Administrative Agent and 
each Lender, and any attempted assignment without such consent shall be null 
and void. 
 
SECTION 9.05.  Expenses; Indemnity.  The Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable 
out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Administrative Agent in connection with 
the syndication of the credit facilities provided for herein and the 
preparation and administration of this Agreement or in connection with any 
amendments, modifications or waivers of the provisions hereof (whether or not 
the transactions hereby or thereby contemplated shall be consummated) or 
incurred by the Administrative Agent or any Lender in connection with the 
enforcement or protection of its rights in connection with this Agreement or 
in connection with the Loans made hereunder, including the reasonable fees, 
charges and disbursements of Cravath, Swaine & Moore, counsel for the 
Administrative Agent, and, in connection with any such enforcement or 
protection, the reasonable fees, charges and disbursements of any other counsel 
for the Administrative Agent or any Lender. 
 
(b)  The Borrower agrees to indemnify the Administrative Agent, each Lender and 
each Related Party of any of the foregoing persons (each such person being 
called an "Indemnitee") against, and to hold each Indemnitee harmless from, any 
and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities and related expenses, including 
reasonable counsel fees, charges and disbursements, incurred by or asserted 
against any Indemnitee (other than Taxes, Other Taxes or amounts that would be 
Other Taxes if imposed by the United States of America or any political 
subdivision thereof) arising out of, in any way connected with, or as a result 
of (i) the execution or delivery of this Agreement or any agreement or 
instrument contemplated thereby, the performance by the parties thereto of 
their respective obligations thereunder or the consummation of the Transactions 
and the other transactions contemplated thereby, (ii) the use of the proceeds 
of the Loans, or (iii) any claim, litigation, investigation or proceeding 
relating to any of the foregoing, whether or not any Indemnitee is a party 
thereto; provided that such indemnity shall not, as to any Indemnitee, be 
 available to the extent that such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or 
related 
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expenses (x) are determined by a court of competent jurisdiction by final and 
nonappealable judgment (a "Final Judgment") to have resulted from the gross 
negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee or (y) arise from any legal 
proceedings commenced against any Lender by any other Lender (other than legal 
proceedings against the Administrative Agent in its capacity as such) or in 
which a Final Judgment is rendered in the Borrower's favor against such 
Indemnitee. 
 
(c) To the extent that the Borrower fails to pay any amount required to be 
paid by it to the Administrative Agent under paragraph (a) or (b) of this 
Section, each Lender severally agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent such 
Lender's pro rata share (determined as of the time that the applicable 
unreimbursed expense or indemnity payment is sought) of such unpaid amount; 
provided that the unreimbursed expense or indemnified loss, claim, damage, 
liability or related expense, as the case may be, was incurred by or asserted 
against the Administrative Agent in its capacity as such.  For purposes 
hereof, a Lender's "pro rata share" shall be determined based upon its share 
of the sum of the Aggregate Revolving Credit Exposure and unused Commitments 
at the time. 
 
(d)  To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Borrower shall not assert, 
and hereby waives, any claim against any Indemnitee, on any theory of 
liability, for special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages (as 
opposed to direct or actual damages) arising out of, in connection with, or 
as a result of, this Agreement or any agreement or instrument contemplated 
hereby, the Transactions, any Loan or the use of the proceeds thereof. 
 
(e) All amounts due under this Section 9.05 shall be payable not later than 
15 days after written demand therefor. 
 
SECTION 9.06.  Right of Setoff. If an Event of Default shall have occurred and 
be continuing, each Lender is hereby authorized at any time and from time to 
time, except to the extent prohibited by law, to set off and apply any and all 
deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final) at any 
time held and other indebtedness at any time owing by such Lender to or for 
the credit or the account of the Borrower against any of and all the 
obligations of the Borrower now or hereafter existing under this Agreement 
held by such Lender, irrespective of whether or not such Lender shall have 
made any demand under this Agreement and although such obligations may be 
unmatured.  The rights of each Lender under this Section 9.06 are in addition 
to other rights and remedies (including other rights of setoff) which such 
Lender may have. 
 
SECTION 9.07.  Applicable Law. THIS AGREEMENT  SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW 
YORK. 
 
SECTION 9.08.  Waivers; Amendment.  No failure or delay of the Administrative 
Agent or any Lender in exercising any power or right hereunder shall operate as 
a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right or 
power, or any abandonment or discontinuance of steps to enforce such a right or 
power, preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any 
other right or power.  The rights and remedies of the Administrative 
Agent and the Lenders hereunder are cumulative and are not exclusive of any 
rights or remedies that they would otherwise have.  No waiver of any provision 
of this Agreement or consent to any departure by the Borrower therefrom shall 
in any event be effective unless the same shall be permitted by paragraph (b) 
below, and then such waiver or consent shall be effective only in the 
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specific instance and for the purpose for which given.  No notice or demand on 
the Borrower in any case shall entitle the Borrower to any other or further 
notice or demand in similar or other circumstances. 
 
(b)  Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof may be waived, amended or 
modified except pursuant to an agreement or agreements in writing entered into 
by the Borrower and the Required Lenders; provided, however, that no such 
agreement shall (i) decrease the principal amount of, or extend the maturity 
of or any scheduled principal payment date or date for the payment of any 
interest on any Loan, or waive or excuse any such payment or any part 
thereof, or decrease the rate of interest on any Loan, without the prior 
written consent of each Lender affected thereby, (ii) increase or extend the 
Commitment or decrease or extend the date for payment of any Fees of any 
Lender without the prior written consent of such Lender, (iii) amend or modify 
the pro rata requirements of Section 2.16, the provisions of Section 
9.04(j), the provisions of this Section or the definition of the term 
"Required Lenders", without the prior written consent of each Lender or (iv) 
modify the protections afforded to an SPC pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 9.04(i) without the written consent of such SPC; provided 
further that no such agreement shall amend, modify or otherwise affect the 
rights or duties of the Administrative Agent hereunder without the prior 
written consent of the Administrative Agent. 
 
SECTION 9.09.  Interest Rate Limitation. Notwithstanding anything herein to the 
contrary, if at any time the interest rate applicable to any Loan, together 
with all fees, charges and other amounts which are treated as interest on such 
Loan under applicable law (collectively the "Charges"), shall exceed the 
maximum lawful rate (the "Maximum Rate") which may be contracted for, charged, 
taken, received or reserved by the Lender holding such Loan or participation 
in accordance with applicable law, the rate of interest payable in respect of 
such Loan or participation hereunder, together with all Charges payable in 
respect thereof, shall be limited to the Maximum Rate and, to the extent 
lawful, the interest and Charges that would have been payable in respect of 
such Loan or participation but were not payable as a result of the operation 
of this Section 9.09 shall be cumulated and the interest and Charges payable 
to such Lender in respect of other Loans or participations or periods shall be 
increased (but not above the Maximum Rate therefor) until such cumulated 
amount, together with interest thereon at the Federal Funds Effective Rate 
to the date of repayment, shall have been received by such Lender. 
 
SECTION 9.10.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement, the Fee Letter dated November 
29, 2001, between the Borrower and Credit Suisse First Boston, and the Fee 
Letter dated December 3, 2002, between the Borrower and Credit Suisse First 
Boston, constitute the entire contract between the parties relative to the 
subject matter hereof.  Any other previous agreement among the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof is superseded by this Agreement. 
Nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, is intended to confer upon 
any person (other than the parties hereto, their respective successors and 
assigns permitted hereunder and, to the extent expressly contemplated hereby, 
the Related Parties of each of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders) any 
rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities under or by reason of this 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 9.11.  WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY 
WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT 
IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY 
OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
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AGREEMENT.  EACH PARTY HERETO (A) CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, 
AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR 
OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF 
LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER AND 
(B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE BEEN 
INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE 
MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 9.11. 
 
SECTION 9.12.  Severability. In the event any one or more of the provisions 
contained in this Agreement should be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions contained herein and therein shall not in any way be affected or 
impaired thereby (it being understood that the invalidity of a particular 
provision in a particular jurisdiction shall not in and of itself affect the 
validity of such provision in any other jurisdiction).  The parties shall 
endeavor in good-faith negotiations to replace the invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable provisions with valid provisions the economic effect of which 
comes as close as possible to that of the invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provisions.SECTION 
 
9.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts (and by 
different parties hereto on different counterparts), each of which shall 
constitute an original but all of which when taken together shall constitute a 
single contract, and shall become effective as provided in Section 9.03. 
Delivery of an executed signature page to this Agreement by facsimile 
transmission shall be as effective as delivery of a manually signed counterpart 
of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 9.14.  Headings. Article and Section headings and the Table of Contents 
used herein are for convenience of reference only, are not part of this 
Agreement and are not to affect the construction of, or to be taken into 
consideration in interpreting, this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 9.15.  Jurisdiction; Consent to Service of Process.  The Borrower 
hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits, for itself and its property, 
to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of any New York State court or Federal court 
of the United States of America sitting in New York City, and any appellate 
court from any thereof, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement, or for recognition or enforcement of any judgment, and each 
of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably and unconditionally agrees that all 
claims in respect of any such action or proceeding may be heard and determined 
in such New York State or, to the extent permitted by law, in such Federal 
court.  Each of the parties hereto agrees that a final judgment in any such 
action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be enforced in other 
jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by law. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall affect any right that the Administrative Agent 
or any Lender may otherwise have to bring any action or proceeding relating to 
this Agreement against the Borrower or its properties in the courts of any 
jurisdiction. 
 
(b)  The Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives, to the fullest 
extent it may legally and effectively do so, any objection which it may now or 
hereafter have to the laying of venue of any suit, action or proceeding arising 
out of or relating to this Agreement in any New York State or Federal court. 
Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the defense of an inconvenient forum to the maintenance of 
such action or proceeding in any such court. 
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(c)  Each party to this Agreement irrevocably consents to service of process in 
the manner provided for notices in Section 9.01.  Nothing in this Agreement 
will affect the right of any party to this Agreement to serve process in any 
other manner permitted by law. 
 
SECTION 9.16.  Confidentiality.  Each of the Administrative Agent and the 
Lenders agrees to maintain the confidentiality of the Information (as defined 
below), except that Information may be disclosed (a) to its and its 
Affiliates' officers, directors, employees and agents, including accountants, 
legal counsel and other advisors who need to know such Information in 
connection with its role as Administrative Agent or Lender (as the case may be) 
hereunder (it being understood that the persons to whom such disclosure is made 
will be informed of the confidential nature of such Information and instructed 
to keep such Information confidential), (b) to the extent requested by any 
regulatory authority or quasi-regulatory authority (such as the National 
Association of Insurance Commissioners) (provided that, to the extent 
permitted by applicable law and practicable under the circumstances, such 
person will first inform the Borrower of any such request), (c) to the extent 
required by applicable laws or regulations or by any subpoena or similar legal 
process (provided that, to the extent permitted by applicable law, such person 
will promptly notify the Borrower of such requirement as far in advance of its 
disclosure as is practicable to enable the Borrower to seek a protective order 
and, to the extent practicable, such person will cooperate with the Borrower 
in seeking any such order), (d) in connection with the exercise of any 
remedies hereunder or any suit, action or proceeding relating to the 
enforcement of its rights hereunder, (e) subject to an agreement containing 
provisions substantially the same as those of this Section 9.16, to (i) any 
actual or prospective assignee of or participant in any of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement or (ii) any actual or prospective counterparty 
(or its advisors) to any credit default swap or similar credit derivative 
transaction relating to the obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement, 
(f) with the consent of the Borrower or (g) to the extent such Information 
 becomes publicly available other than as a result of a breach of this Section 
9.16. For the purposes of this Section, "Information" shall mean all 
information received from the Borrower and related to the Borrower or its 
business, other than any such information that was available to the 
Administrative Agent or any Lender on a nonconfidential basis prior to its 
disclosure by the Borrower.  Each of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders 
agrees that, except as expressly provided in this Section 9.16, it will use 
Information only in connection with its role as Administrative Agent or Lender 
(as the case may be) hereunder. 
 
SECTION 9.17.  Termination of Existing Credit Agreement.  The Borrower and each 
of the Lenders that is also a Lender (as defined in the Existing Credit 
Agreement) party to the Existing Credit Agreement agree that the Commitments 
(as defined in the Existing Credit Agreement) shall be terminated in their 
entirety on the Closing Date in accordance with the terms thereof, subject 
only to this Section 9.17.  Each of such Lenders waives (a) any requirement of 
notice of such termination pursuant to Section 2.10(b) of the Existing Credit 
Agreement and (b) any claim to any facility fees under the Existing Credit 
Agreement for any day on or after the Closing Date.  The Borrower (i) 
represents and warrants that (x) after giving effect to the preceding 
sentences of this Section 9.17, the commitments under the Existing Credit 
Agreement will be terminated effective not later than the Closing Date 
and (y) no loans will be, as of the Closing Date, outstanding under the 
Existing Credit Agreement and (ii) covenants that all accrued and unpaid 
facility fees and other amounts due and payable under the Existing 
Credit Agreement shall have been paid on or prior to the Closing Date. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed by their respective authorized officers as of the day and year first 
above written. 
 
 
 
 
LABORATORY CORPORATION OF 
AMERICA HOLDINGS, 
 
By: 
  ---------------------------------- 
   Name: 
   Title: 
 
 
 
CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON, acting 
through its Cayman Islands Branch, individually 
and as Administrative Agent, 
 
By 
  --------------------------------- 
   Name: 
   Title: 
 
By 
  --------------------------------- 
   Name: 
   Title: 
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SIGNATURE PAGE TO LABORATORY 
CORPORATION OF AMERICA HOLDINGS 
364-DAY CREDIT AGREEMENT DATED AS 
OF THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE 
WRITTEN 
 
NAME OF LENDER: 
              ----------------------------- 
              by: 
                --------------------------- 
                Name: 
                Title 
 
1 
 
 



EXHIBIT 23.1 
 
Arthur Andersen LLP, independent auditors, audited DIANON's financial 
statements included in its annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2001, as set forth in their report. Due to Arthur Andersen LLP's 
forfeiture of its licenses to practice public accounting, we are not able to 
obtain the consent  of Arthur Andersen LLP to the inclusion of their report 
in this current report, and therefore we have not filed their consent. 
Because Arthur Andersen LLP has not consented to the inclusion of their 
report in this current report, it may be more difficult for you to seek 
remedies against Arthur Andersen LLP in connection with any material 
misstatement or omission that may be contained in the financial statements 
covered by their report. In particular, and without limitation, you will not 
be able to recover against Arthur Andersen LLP under certain federal 
securities laws for any untrue statement of a material fact contained in the 
financial statements audited by Arthur Andersen LLP or any omission of a 
material fact required to be stated in those financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT 99.1 
 
     This report of Arthur Andersen LLP set forth below is a copy of a 
previously issued Andersen accountant's report and that report has not been 
reissued by Andersen. 
 
 
                   REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
To DIANON Systems, Inc.: 
 
      We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of DIANON 
Systems, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 
and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' 
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 
31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 
 
      We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis,evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
      In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of DIANON Systems, 
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
In the United States. 
 
 
                                                         ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 
 
 
 
Stamford, Connecticut 
February 19, 2002 
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                              DIANON SYSTEMS, INC. 
                        CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF 
                           DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000 
 
 
                                                        2001         2000 
                                                   -------------------------- 
    ASSETS 
 
CURRENT ASSETS: 
   Cash and cash equivalents                        $41,229,353   $12,515,424 
   Short term investments                             1,071,778            -- 
   Accounts receivable, net of allowance for bad 
     debts of $7,002,096 and $1,302,096 at 
     December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively        29,863,129    21,413,404 
   Prepaid expenses and employee advances             3,767,086     1,035,953 
   Refundable income taxes                            5,753,944     2,245,894 
   Inventory                                          1,932,713     1,417,247 
   Deferred income taxes                              6,560,564       774,150 
                                                   -------------------------- 
        Total current assets                         90,178,567    39,402,072 
                                                   -------------------------- 
 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, at cost 
   Laboratory and office equipment                   19,539,228    14,930,672 
   Leasehold improvements                             8,967,113     5,327,052 
     Less - accumulated depreciation and 
     amortization                                   (17,650,512)  (14,644,420) 
                                                   -------------------------- 
                                                     10,855,829     5,613,304 
                                                   -------------------------- 
 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumulated amortization 
   of $7,027,749 and $4,648,029 at December 31,     183,167,116    14,228,274 
   2001 and 2000, respectively 
 
INVESTMENTS                                             508,191       500,000 
 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES                                 2,429,417     1,581,560 
 
OTHER ASSETS                                            279,039       225,720 
                                                   -------------------------- 
      TOTAL ASSETS                                 $287,418,159   $61,550,930 
                                                   ========================== 
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                              DIANON SYSTEMS, INC. 
                        CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF 
                     DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000 (CONTINUED) 
 
 
                                                        2001         2000 
                                                   -------------------------- 
      LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
   Accounts payable                                 $ 1,621,689   $   977,817 
   Accrued employee compensation                      6,961,747     2,422,029 
   Accrued employee stock purchase plan                  26,367        18,682 
   Accrued income taxes                                 674,734       342,500 
   Current portion of capitalized lease obligations     300,102        31,811 
   Other accrued expenses                            11,758,208     2,983,926 
                                                   -------------------------- 
        Total current liabilities                    21,342,847     6,776,765 
                                                   -------------------------- 
 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES: 
   Long-term note payable                                    --     2,500,000 
   Long-term portion of capitalized lease 
     obligations                                        439,029        15,427 
                                                   -------------------------- 
        Total liabilities                            21,781,876     9,292,192 
                                                   -------------------------- 
 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
   Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 
     20,000,000 shares authorized, 11,896,140 and 
     7,397,323 shares issued and outstanding at 
     December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively           118,961        73,974 
   Additional paid-in capital                       242,987,849    35,877,828 
   Retained earnings                                 22,620,561    16,427,788 
   Common stock held in treasury, at cost -- 9,511 
     and 12,620 shares at December 31, 2001 and 2000, 
     respectively                                       (91,088)     (120,852) 
                                                   -------------------------- 
      Total stockholders' equity                    265,636,283     52,258,738 
                                                   -------------------------- 
      TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY   $287,418,159    $61,550,930 
                                                   ========================== 
 
 
       The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an 
                     integral part of these balance sheets. 
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                              DIANON SYSTEMS, INC. 
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
             FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999 
 
                                             2001       2000        1999 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
 
Net revenues                           $125,677,654   $95,650,879   $76,097,031 
 
Cost of sales                            69,056,948    54,170,663    43,883,592 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
 
   GROSS PROFIT                          56,620,706    41,480,216    32,213,439 
 
Selling, general and administrative 
expenses                                 37,276,712    28,955,060    24,176,265 
 
Special provision for bad debts           5,500,000            --            -- 
 
Amortization of intangible assets         1,414,800       795,826       670,425 
 
Research and development expenses         1,216,159     1,015,583       571,797 
 
Impairments and other special charges     1,464,921            --            -- 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
 
   INCOME FROM OPERATIONS                 9,748,114    10,713,747     6,794,952 
 
Interest income, net                        659,908       377,042       266,688 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
   INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME 
   TAXES                                 10,408,022    11,090,789     7,061,640 
 
Provision for income taxes                4,215,249     4,491,770     2,930,581 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
 



   NET INCOME                          $  6,192,773   $ 6,599,019   $ 4,131,059 
                                       ======================================== 
 
   EARNINGS PER SHARE: 
      BASIC                            $        .77   $       .92   $       .61 
      DILUTED                          $        .71   $       .84   $       .59 
 
   WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING: 
      BASIC                               8,030,814     7,154,665     6,763,120 
      DILUTED                             8,756,217     7,839,638     7,053,161 
 
 
           The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
                    are an integral part of these statements. 
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                                                  DIANON SYSTEMS, INC. 
                                    CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
                                 FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2000, AND 1999 
 
                                                      Additional                     Common Stock 
                                   Common Stock         Paid-In     Retained     Acquired for Treasury 
                                Shares     Amount       Capital     Earnings     Shares         Amount        Total 
                           ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
                           ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
                                                                                      
BALANCE, December 31, 1998   6,808,729   $ 68,088   $27,398,120   $5,697,710   (222,019)   $(1,780,854)   $ 31,383,064 
  Stock options exercised      217,814      2,178     1,705,564           --         --             --       1,707,742 
  Issuance of common stock      79,981        800       700,516           --    222,019      1,780,854       2,482,170 
  Employee stock purchase 
    plan                            --         --       (22,136)          --      4,766         43,920          21,784 
  Stock grants                   4,225         42        39,833           --         --             --          39,875 
  Common stock acquired 
    for treasury                    --         --            --           --   (113,500)    (1,000,132) 
(1,000,132) 
  Retired shares               (50,000)      (500)     (393,250)          --     50,000        393,750              -- 
  Net income                        --         --            --    4,131,059         --             --       4,131,059 
                           ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BALANCE, December 31, 1999   7,060,749     70,608    29,428,647    9,828,769    (58,734)      (562,462)     38,765,562 
  Stock options exercised      334,714      3,347     2,271,936           --         --             --       2,275,283 
  Issuance of common stock          --         --     1,009,184           --     36,633        350,816       1,360,000 
  Tax effect for stock 
    options exercised               --         --     3,131,904           --         --            --        3,131,904 
  Employee stock purchase 
    plan                            --         --        (3,589)          --      9,481         90,794          87,205 
  Stock grants                   1,860         19        39,746           --         --             --          39,765 
  Net income                        --         --            --    6,599,019         --             --       6,599,019 
                           ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BALANCE, December 31, 2000   7,397,323     73,974    35,877,828   16,427,788    (12,620)      (120,852)     52,258,738 
  Stock options exercised      636,097      6,361     8,173,364           --         --             --       8,179,725 
  Issuance of common stock 
    and stock options for 
    the acquisition of 
    UroCor                   3,861,585     38,615   192,283,768           --         --             --     192,322,383 
  Tax effect for stock 
    options exercised               --         --     6,511,474           --         --             --       6,511,474 
   Employee stock purchase 
     plan / other                   --         --        95,887           --      3,109         29,764         125,651 
   Stock grants                  1,135         11        45,528           --         --             --          45,539 
   Net income                       --         --            --    6,192,773         --             --       6,192,773 
                           ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BALANCE, December 31, 2001  11,896,140   $118,961  $242,987,849  $22,620,561     (9,511)      ($91,088)   $265,636,283 
                           =========================================================================================== 
 
                              The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
                                       are an integral part of these statements. 
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                                  DIANON SYSTEMS, INC. 
                          CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                  FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999 
 
 
                                                       2001          2000          1999 
                                                   ---------------------------------------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
                                                                        
   Net income                                      $ 6,192,773   $ 6,599,019    $ 4,131,059 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
   provided by operations - 
   Non-cash charges 
     Depreciation and amortization                   4,606,134     4,006,706      3,489,544 
     Tax effect of stock options exercised           6,511,474     3,131,904             -- 
     Provision for bad debts                         5,700,000       380,500             -- 
     Impairments and special charges                 1,464,921            --             -- 
     Stock compensation expense                         45,539        39,765         39,875 



     Gain on disposal of fixed assets                  (26,506)           --             -- 
     Deferred tax provision                         (3,736,054)     (260,299)      (470,063) 
   Changes in other current assets and 
     liabilities 
     Accounts receivable                            (1,306,554)   (2,248,757)    (4,724,164) 
     Refundable income taxes                        (2,414,569)   (2,245,894)            -- 
     Prepaid expenses and employee advances         (1,617,706)      (22,043)      (264,986) 
     Inventory                                         150,922      (505,774)        79,924 
     Other assets and other                          2,353,124      (310,470)       296,603 
     Accounts payable and other accrued 
       liabilities                                   4,162,863      (407,989)     1,118,114 
                                                   ---------------------------------------- 
       Net cash provided by operating 
         activities                                 22,086,361      8,156,668      3,695,906 
                                                   ---------------------------------------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
 
   Capital expenditures                             (2,346,057)   (3,393,670)    (2,263,528) 
   Cash paid for acquisition of UroCor, Inc. 
     net of cash acquired                           (2,800,276)           --             -- 
   Proceeds from disposition of Mills 
     Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.                        4,550,000            --             -- 
   Acquisitions of assets, net of 
     liabilities assumed                                    --      (340,000)   (10,500,000) 
   Proceeds from sales of investment 
     securities                                      1,409,062            --             -- 
   Investments                                              --      (500,000)            -- 
   Proceeds from the sale of fixed 
     assets / other                                     56,701            --          1,316 
                                                   ---------------------------------------- 
     Net cash provided by (used in) 
       investing activities                            869,430    (4,233,670)   (12,762,212) 
                                                   ---------------------------------------- 
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                                  DIANON SYSTEMS, INC. 
                CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
                      DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999 (CONTINUED) 
 
 
                                                       2001          2000          1999 
                                                   ---------------------------------------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
                                                                        
   Net (repayments) borrowings of note 
     payable                                       ($2,500,000)  ($3,500,000)   $ 6,000,000 
   Issuance of common stock                                 --            --         16,545 
   Purchase of common stock acquired for 
     treasury                                               --            --     (1,000,132) 
   Exercise of stock options                         8,179,725     2,275,283      1,707,742 
   Employee stock purchase plan / other                125,651        87,205         21,784 
   Net repayments of capitalized lease 
     obligations                                       (47,238)      (31,109)       (44,662) 
                                                   ---------------------------------------- 
     Net cash provided by (used in) 
       financing activities                          5,758,138    (1,168,621)     6,701,277 
                                                   ---------------------------------------- 
     Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
       cash equivalents                             28,713,929     2,754,377     (2,365,029) 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 
   beginning of year                                12,515,424     9,761,047     12,126,076 
                                                   ---------------------------------------- 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 
   end of year                                     $41,229,353   $12,515,424    $ 9,761,047 
                                                   ======================================== 
 
   Cash paid during the year: 
    Interest                                       $    62,901    $  366,277    $   281,318 
    Income taxes                                     3,671,977     4,268,712      2,659,753 
 
 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
      Common Stock shares (3,861,585) and common stock options (644,438) 
      aggregating to $192,322,383 were issued in connection with the 
      acquisition of UroCor, Inc. in 2001. 
      Common Stock of $1,360,000 (36,633 shares) was issued in connection 
      with the acquisition of John H. Altshuler, M.D., P.C. in 2000. 
      Common Stock of $2,465,625 (222,019 shares) was issued in connection 
      with the acquisition of KMD in 1999. 
 
 
               The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
                        are an integral part of these statements. 
 
 



                               DIANON SYTEMS, INC. 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
(1)   THE COMPANY 
 
      DIANON Systems, Inc. (the "Company" or "Dianon") provides a full line of 
anatomic pathology testing services, as well as a number of genetic and clinical 
chemistry testing services to patients, physicians and managed care 
organizations throughout the United States. A significant portion of the 
services provided by the Company are paid for by either the patients' Medicare 
or private medical insurance carriers. The remaining services are generally paid 
for by patients, physicians or hospitals directly. 
 
      The Company operates in one reportable segment, the medical laboratory 
industry. Its testing services are separated based upon the nature of the test: 
anatomic pathology testing, genetic testing and clinical chemistry testing. 
Anatomic pathology is characterized by tissue or cell specimens that are 
interpreted by physicians. Genetic testing is characterized by the analysis of 
genes or chromosomes by physicians. Clinical chemistry testing is characterized 
by blood or urine specimens that are interpreted through highly automated 
processes. Net revenues by type of test for fiscal year 2001, 2000 and 1999 are 
presented below: 
 
                                              Year Ended December 31, 
                                     --------------------------------------- 
                                         2001         2000         1999 
                                     --------------------------------------- 
 
Anatomic pathology testing          $ 87,195,759  $68,713,467  $52,607,002 
Genetic testing                       19,803,869   13,679,427    9,929,826 
Clinical chemistry testing            18,678,026   13,257,985   13,560,203 
                                    -------------------------------------- 
     Consolidated net revenues      $125,677,654  $95,650,879  $76,097,031 
                                    ====================================== 
 
      The Company's operations are almost conducted entirely in the United 
States. No customer accounted for more than 10% of the Company's revenues; 
however, in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, approximately 40%, 37% and 31% of 
the Company's net revenues were derived from testing performed for beneficiaries 
under the Medicare and Medicaid programs. These figures include the 20% 
co-payment portion normally billed to patients. 
 
(2)   ACQUISITIONS 
 
      Effective May 1, 1999, the Company acquired substantially all the assets 
of an outpatient OB/GYN laboratory with locations in Woodbury and New City, New 
York ("Kyto Meridien Diagnostics, L.L.C." or "KMD"). The acquisition price was 
approximately $13.0 million and was financed through a combination of available 
cash and drawdowns of the Company's credit line, as well as through the issuance 
of Common Stock. The purchase price was primarily allocated to customer lists 
($7.5 million), goodwill ($5.6 million), laboratory and office equipment 
($400,000), and client receivables ($400,000), partially offset by accrued 
liabilities ($930,000). The acquisition has been accounted for pursuant to the 
purchase method of accounting. 
 
      Pro forma net revenues (unaudited) for the twelve months ended December 
31, 1999, adjusted as if the acquisitions of KMD had occurred January 1, 1999, 
was approximately $79.7 million. Pro forma consolidated net income and earnings 
per share would not differ materially from the reported amounts. 
 
      Effective October 1, 2000, the Company acquired substantially all of the 
assets of John H. Altshuler, M.D., P.C., a pathology physician practice located 
in Englewood, Colorado, which specializes in dermatopathology and GYN pathology. 
The acquisition price was approximately $1.7 million and was financed through a 
combination of available cash and the issuance of Common Stock. Approximately 
$300,000 of the purchase price is being held in trust pursuant to a contingent 
earn-out agreement. The purchase price was primarily allocated to customer lists 
($1.0 million), goodwill ($670,000), lab and office equipment ($73,000), and 
client receivables ($67,000), partially offset by accrued liabilities of 
($110,000). The acquisition has been accounted for pursuant to the purchase 
method of accounting. Pro forma consolidated net income and earnings per share, 
had the acquisition occurred January 1, 2000, would not differ materially from 
the reported amounts. In the first quarter of 2002, the Company closed this 
facility and in the fourth quarter of 2001, wrote off the remaining goodwill of 
approximately $524,000 and wrote down the customer list by approximately 
$441,000. See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. 
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                               DIANON SYTEMS, INC. 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
      In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company purchased preferred shares in 
and exclusive sales and distribution rights from Response Genetics, an applied 
genomic products and services company for an aggregate purchase price of $1.0 
million. The Company allocated the total investment to the distribution rights 
($500,000) and the preferred equity ($500,000) based on management's estimates 
of future benefits from Response Genetics. During 2001, the distribution rights 
were fully amortized. Additionally, during the fourth quarter of 2001, the 
Company wrote off the investment due to the uncertainty, in management's 
opinion, of the financial position of the investee as a result of the 
uncertainty regarding the amount of additional time required for that technology 



to gain widespread market acceptance in the oncology community and for 
acceptable reimbursement levels to be attained. See Note 3 to the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
      In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company acquired all outstanding shares 
of UroCor, Inc., an anatomic pathology laboratory located in Oklahoma City, 
Oklahoma, specializing in services related to urology. The primary reason for 
the acquisition was to increase our presence in uropathology. The acquisition 
price was approximately $202 million (including acquisition costs and assumed 
liabilities) and was financed primarily through the issuance of approximately 
3.9 million shares of Common Stock and approximately 644,000 options ($192 
million) and available cash. The purchase price was allocated to goodwill ($163 
million), customer list ($4 million), trade name ($4 million), and the fair 
value of net assets acquired ($31 million). Net assets consist primarily of 
cash, accounts receivable, inventory, investments and deferred income taxes. The 
acquisition has been accounted for pursuant to the purchase method of 
accounting. 
 
      Subsequent to the acquisition of UroCor, the Company recorded a special 
bad debt provision of $5.5 million related to the acquired UroCor accounts 
receivable balance. This provision was in recognition of changes in staffing and 
collection procedures made after the acquisition. Dianon has billed all new 
UroCor business on the centralized Dianon billing system in Connecticut. Any 
UroCor receivables related to sales prior to closing are being collected by the 
existing UroCor billing and collection staff in Oklahoma. The Company has made, 
and will continue to make, extensive reductions in the Oklahoma staff. 
Accordingly, Dianon believes that the special bad debt provision is required to 
properly state the value of these receivables. 
 
      The results of the acquisition of UroCor, Inc. have been included in the 
consolidated statements of operations of the Company from the November 9, 2001 
acquisition date. The pro forma historical results (unaudited), as if UroCor had 
been acquired on January 1, 2001 and 2000, respectively, are estimated as 
follows: 
                                        2001          2000 
                                        ----          ---- 
                                     (in millions, except per 
                                           share data) 
         Net revenue                   $177.0        $146.2 
         Net income                     $12.3          $0.7 
         Diluted  earnings per share-    $1.04         $0.06 
 
      The pro forma results stated above exclude the $5.5 million special 
provision for bad debts but do include the $1.5 million of investment 
impairments and special charges. The pro forma results are not necessarily 
indicative of what actually would have occurred if the acquisition had been 
completed as of the beginning of each period presented, nor are they necessarily 
indicative of future results. 
 
(3)   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Principles of Consolidation - 
 
      The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company 
and all of its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 
 
Use of Estimates - 
 
      The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting periods. Actual amounts could differ significantly from these 
estimates. 
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                               DIANON SYTEMS, INC. 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 
 
      The Company considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At December 
31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had approximately $41.2 million and $12.5 
million, respectively, invested in short-term U.S. treasury funds with 
maturities of less than three months. The carrying amount of the cash 
equivalents approximates its fair value due to the relatively short period to 
maturity of these instruments. Interest income reflected in the consolidated 
statements of operations is presented net of interest expense of $92,689, 
$366,277 and $281,318 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 
 
Investments - 
 
      Long-term and short-term investments are composed of bonds, maturing over 
a 14-month period. The Company intends to hold these investments to maturity 
and, accordingly, accounts for these investments at amortized cost, which 
approximates fair value. 
 
Inventory - 



 
      Inventory consists primarily of bulk reagents, specimen collection kits 
and devices. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is 
determined using the first-in, first-out method. 
 
Property and Equipment - 
 
      Property and equipment are stated at cost. Major improvements which add to 
productive capacity or extend the life of an asset are capitalized while repairs 
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. 
 
      The Company has capitalized approximately $37,000, $402,000 and $70,000 in 
internally developed software costs in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. These 
costs relate to the purchase of external materials and direct payroll costs 
associated with software development. The Company is amortizing these costs on a 
straight-line basis over three years. 
 
Intangible Assets - 
 
      Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
respective economic life as follows: 
                                      Years 
            Customer lists            7 - 15 
            Non-compete agreements    4 
            Tradename                 Indefinite 
 
      The Company periodically reviews the anticipated revenues related to 
 intangible assets to determine whether any adjustments to their carrying values 
 are necessary. Based on the guidelines of Statement of Financial Accounting 
 Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for 
 Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of (FAS 121), the Company believes that no 
 material impairment exists for any of the intangible assets as of December 31, 
 2001. Impairments are recognized in operating results when a permanent 
 diminution in carrying value occurs. 
 
      During the fourth quarter 2001, the Company wrote down intangible assets 
 and investments totaling $1.5 million under FAS 121. The intangible asset was 
 related to the fourth quarter decision to close the Colorado facility and 
 consolidate testing operations into the Company's other laboratories. The 
 Company wrote off the remaining $524,000 of unamortized goodwill and 
 approximately $441,000 of the customer list to arrive at current fair value 
 based on future expected discounted cash flows. 
 
      The investment charge was to write off the $500,000 investment in Response 
Genetics, Inc. due to the uncertainty, in management's opinion, of the financial 
position of the investee as a result of the uncertainty regarding the amount of 
additional time required for that technology to gain widespread market 
acceptance in the oncology community and for acceptable reimbursement levels to 
be attained. 
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                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 Recent Accounting Pronouncements - 
 
       In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement 
 of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, "Business Combinations" and 
 Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other 
 Intangible Assets". Statement No. 141 requires that all business combinations 
 initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for using the purchase method, thus 
 eliminating the use of the pooling-of-interests accounting for business 
 combinations. Statement No. 142 changes the accounting for goodwill from an 
 amortization method to an impairment-only approach, whereby goodwill 
 amortization will no longer be required after December 31, 2001. The Statement 
 requires an annual assessment of goodwill for impairment and more frequent 
 assessments if circumstances indicate a possible impairment. The initial test 
 for impairment must be completed by June 30, 2002, but any impairment would be 
 reflected as an accounting change recorded retroactively in the first quarter 
 2002. The Company does not believe the adoption of Statement No. 142 will have 
 a material impact on its financial position. 
 
      In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement 
 of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement 
 Obligations," which is effective in 2003. It requires the recording of an asset 
 equal to the present value of the estimated costs associated with the 
 retirement of long-lived assets where a legal or contractual obligation exists. 
 The asset is required to be depreciated over the life of the related equipment 
 or facility, and the liability accreted each year based on a present value 
 interest rate. The Company does not believe that the adoption of Statement No. 
 143 will have a material impact on its financial position. 
 
      In  October  2001,  the  Financial  Accounting  Standards  Board  issued 
 Statement of Financial  Accounting  Standards  No. 144,  "Accounting  for the 
 Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived  Assets".  Statement No. 144  supersedes 
 Accounting  Standards No. 121,  "Accounting  for the Impairment of Long-Lived 
 Assets  and for  Long-Lived  Assets to be  Disposed  of".  It  establishes  a 
 single  accounting  model for the impairment of long-lived  assets to be held 
 and  used or to be  disposed  of by  sale or  abandonment  and  broadens  the 
 definition of discontinued  operations.  The provisions of this Statement are 
 effective for financial  statements  issued for fiscal years  beginning after 



 December  15,  2001.  The  Company  does not  believe  that the  adoption  of 
 Statement No. 144 will have a material impact on its financial position. 
 
Revenue Recognition - 
 
      Revenues are recognized in the period in which services are provided. 
Revenues subject to Medicare and Medicaid, direct physician and hospital billing 
are based on fixed reimbursement fee schedules. All remaining revenues subject 
to third-party reimbursement are recorded at the expected net realizable value. 
Such estimates are revised periodically based upon the Company's actual 
reimbursement experience. 
 
Depreciation and Amortization - 
 
      Laboratory and office equipment is depreciated using the straight-line 
method over a useful life of two to seven years. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of their economic useful life or the remaining life 
of the lease. 
 
Research and Development - 
 
      Research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred. 
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                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Income Taxes - 
 
      The Company utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes 
as set forth in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting 
for Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes are determined based 
on the difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and 
liabilities using presently enacted tax rates and regulations. The Company 
records a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets when it is more likely 
than not that the assets will not be realized. 
 
Earnings Per Share - 
 
      Basic earnings per share have been computed based on the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during each year. Diluted earnings per share 
have been computed based on the weighted-average number of common shares and 
common equivalent shares outstanding during each year. Common equivalent shares 
outstanding include the common equivalent shares calculated for warrants and 
stock options under the treasury stock method. 
 
Below is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and 
diluted EPS computations: 
 
                                                  2001       2000       1999 
                                                  ----       ----       ---- 
 
     BASIC EARNING PER SHARE: 
     Weighted-average number of common 
       shares outstanding                      8,030,814   7,154,665   6,763,120 
 
 
     DILUTIVE EFFECT OF: 
     Stock options                               725,403     684,973     290,041 
                                              ----------   ---------  ---------- 
 
     DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE: 
     Weighted-average  number of common 
       shares outstanding                      8,756,217   7,839,638   7,053,161 
                                              ==========  ==========  ========== 
 
     NET INCOME                               $6,192,773  $6,599,019  $4,131,059 
                                              ==========  ==========  ========== 
 
     BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE                      $0.77       $0.92      $0.61 
                                              ==========  ==========  ========= 
 
     DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE                    $0.71       $0.84      $0.59 
                                              ==========  ==========  ========= 
 
      Options to purchase 112,137, 341,890 and 55,925 shares of common stock at 
prices ranging from $43.85 through $49.51, $30.00 through $39.063 and $9.75 
through $12.25, respectively, were outstanding as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 
1999, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings 
per share because the options' exercise price was greater than the average 
market price of common shares. 
 
Reclassifications - 
 
      Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform 
to the classifications used in the current year presentation. 
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                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
(4)   INCOME TAXES 
 
   The income tax provisions for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 
1999 consist of the following: 
 
                                          Year Ended December 31 
                                     ---------------------------------- 
                                        2001       2000       1999 
                                     ---------------------------------- 
Current 
   Federal                           $6,675,168  $3,848,554  $2,707,951 
   State                              1,276,135     903,515     692,693 
                                     ---------------------------------- 
      Total current                   7,951,303   4,752,069   3,400,644 
                                     ---------------------------------- 
Deferred 
   Federal                           (3,136,440)   (210,809)   (405,959) 
   State                               (599,614)    (49,490)    (64,104) 
                                     ---------------------------------- 
      Total deferred                 (3,736,054)   (260,299)   (470,063) 
                                     ---------------------------------- 
 
Total provision for income taxes     $4,215,249  $4,491,770  $2,930,581 
                                     ================================== 
 
The reasons for the differences between the statutory and effective rates are as 
follows: 
 
                                        Year Ended December 31 
                                    ------------------------------- 
                                        2001      2000      1999 
                                    ------------------------------- 
  Statutory federal income tax rate     34.0%     34.0%     34.0% 
  State taxes, net of federal tax 
    benefit                              4.9       4.9       5.4 
  Non-deductible expenses                1.6       1.6       1.6 
  Other                                   --        --       0.5 
                                    ------------------------------- 
                                        40.5%     40.5%     41.5% 
                                    =============================== 
 
      The net deferred tax asset is a result of the following temporary 
differences: 
 
                                            Year Ended December 31 
                                           ------------------------ 
                                               2001        2000 
                                           ------------------------ 
  Allowance for bad debts                  $5,168,556    $  547,065 
  Accrued expenses                          1,095,401       163,846 
  Depreciation of property and equipment    2,610,378     1,706,777 
  Compensation not currently recognized 
  for tax reporting                           358,431        14,142 
  Amortization of intangibles              (2,855,314)     (135,162) 
  Inventory obsolescence reserve              207,206        55,779 
  Net operating loss carryforwards          6,539,160            -- 
  Other                                        32,779         3,263 
  Valuation allowance                      (4,166,616)           -- 
                                           ------------------------ 
                                           $8,989,981    $2,355,710 
                                           ======================== 
 
      As of December 31, 2001, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards 
of approximately $18.2 million which were acquired as a result of the 
acquisition of UroCor, Inc.. The net operating loss carryforwards are subject to 
review by the Internal Revenue Service and expire from 2003 through 2021. 
Further, Dianon's ability to utilize the net operating losses to reduce future 
taxable income is subject to limitation under section 382 of the Internal 
Revenue Code. A valuation allowance has been established for net operating loss 
carryforwards that are expected to expire unutilized or otherwise not be used by 
the Company. 
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(5)   LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 
      Included in property and equipment at December 31, 2001 and 2000 is 
laboratory and office equipment held under capitalized leases as follows: 
 
                                                       Year Ended December 31 
                                                       ---------------------- 
                                                         2001         2000 
                                                       --------      -------- 
      Property and equipment                           $311,310      $303,325 



      Less -- accumulated depreciation                  (20,582)     (262,512) 
                                                       --------------------- 
                                                       $290,728      $ 40,813 
                                                       ====================== 
 
      The future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases 
and the present value of future minimum capital lease payments at December 31, 
2001 are: 
 
                                                       Capital   Operating 
                                                        Leases     Leases 
                                                       --------  --------- 
      2002                                             $442,661  $3,266,619 
      2003                                              355,144   2,473,845 
      2004                                                   --   2,006,943 
      2005                                                   --   1,947,068 
      2006                                                   --   1,838,209 
      Thereafter (laboratory, office and warehouse 
        space up to 2013)                                        11,952,484 
                                                       -------------------- 
      Minimum lease payments                            797,805  23,485,168 
      Less -- amount representing interest               58,674          -- 
                                                       -------------------- 
      Present value of total minimum lease payments    $739,131 $23,485,168 
                                                       ==================== 
 
      Total rental expense relating to operating leases for the years ended 
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 was $2,200,653, $1,841,312, and $1,560,754, 
respectively. 
 
      The Company leases office and laboratory facilities in Connecticut, Tampa, 
New York, Oklahoma and Texas. In addition, the Company leases offices in 
Connecticut, Illinois, North Carolina, Massachusetts and Texas. The Company also 
leases a record storage facility in Connecticut, a processing center in Ohio and 
a warehouse in Oklahoma. These leases have one to fifteen year terms, and 
various renewal options for up to ten years. 
 
(6)   LONG-TERM NOTE PAYABLE 
 
      As of December 31, 2000, the Company had borrowed $2.5 million under its 
 $15 million line of credit. No amounts were outstanding as of December 31, 
 2001. In December 2000, the loan was extended and certain covenants were 
 modified. The loan bore interest at a rate per annum equal to LIBOR plus 0.75% 
 - 1.50%. Due to the fluctuating interest rates, the loan was always stated at 
 fair market value. The interest rate as of December 31, 2000 was 7.45%. 
 Interest was payable monthly and the principal was due and payable in full by 
 August 31, 2003. Interest expense relating to the line of credit was 
 approximately $64,000 and $337,000 during 2001 and 2000, respectively. The loan 
 agreement contains various provisions including those related to financial 
 ratios and negative covenants relating to current ratio, EBITDA ratio, funded 
 debt, EBITDA, interest coverage ratio, debt service coverage ratio, fixed 
 assets, acquisitions, limitation on debt and limits on loans and advances. As 
 of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company is in compliance with all of its 
 covenants relating to this arrangement. 
 
(7)   STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS 
 
       In June 1991, the Company adopted the 1991 Stock Incentive Plan which 
provides for up to 400,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock, par value $.01 
per share ("Common Stock"), to be reserved for potential future issuance of 
stock options or awards. This plan is the successor to the Company's previous 
plan which expired. As of December 31, 2001, 347 shares of Common Stock are 
available under the 1991 Stock Incentive Plan for future issuance. The majority 
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of the options vest 40% in the second year after grant and 20% each year 
thereafter and expire ten years from the original grant date. 
 
       In October 1996, the Company's shareholders approved the Company's 
adoption of the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, which provides for up to 700,000 
shares of Common Stock to be reserved for potential future issuance of stock 
options or awards. This plan is the successor to the 1991 Stock Incentive Plan 
for which only a limited number of shares of Common Stock remain available for 
grants. As of December 31, 2001, 9,169 shares of Common Stock are available 
under the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan. The majority of options issued to officers 
and key employees of the Company vest at a rate of 40% in the second year after 
grant and 20% per year thereafter or 40% in the third year after grant and 20% 
per year thereafter and expire ten years from the original date of grant. The 
majority of options issued to directors vest at a rate of 10% per quarter and 
expire ten years from the original date of grant. 
 
       In October 1999, the Company's shareholders approved the Company's 
adoption of the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan, which provides for up to 300,000 
shares of Common Stock to be reserved for potential future issuance of stock 
options or awards. This plan is the successor to the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan 
for which only a limited number of shares of Common Stock remain available for 
grants. As of December 31, 2001, 27,988 shares of Common Stock are available 
under the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan. The majority of options issued to officers 



and key employees of the Company vest at a rate of 40% in the second year after 
grant and 20% per year thereafter and expire ten years from the original date of 
grant. The majority of options issued to directors vest at a rate of 10% per 
quarter and expire ten years from the original date of grant. 
 
       In October 2000, the Company's shareholders approved the Company's 
adoption of the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, which provides for up to 400,000 
shares of Common Stock to be reserved for potential future issuance of stock 
options or awards. This plan is the successor to the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan 
for which only a limited number of shares of Common Stock remain available for 
grants. As of December 31, 2001, 61,750 shares of Common Stock are available 
under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. The majority of options issued to officers 
and key employees of the Company vest at a rate of 20% per year and expire ten 
years from the original date of grant. The majority of options issued to 
directors vest at a rate of 10% per quarter and expire ten years from the 
original date of grant. 
 
       In November 2001, the Company's shareholders approved the Company's 
adoption of the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, which provides for up to 640,000 
shares of Common Stock to be reserved for potential future issuance of stock 
options or awards. This plan is the successor to the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan 
for which only a limited number of shares of Common Stock remain available for 
grants. As of December 31, 2001, 430,000 shares of Common Stock are available 
under the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. The majority of options issued to officers 
and key employees of the Company vest at a rate of 20% per year and expire ten 
years from the original date of grant. The options issued to directors vest at a 
rate of one-third per year and expire ten years from the original date of grant. 
 
      The Company accounts for these plans under Accounting Principles Board 
 Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, under which no 
 compensation cost has been recognized. Had compensation cost for these plans 
 been determined consistent with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
 No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, the Company's net income and 
 earnings per share would have been reduced to the following pro forma amounts: 
 
                                                 2001       2000        1999 
                                                 ----       ----        ---- 
Net Income:                   As Reported     $6,193,00  $6,599,000  $4,131,000 
                              Pro Forma       $5,406,00  $5,919,000  $3,467,000 
Basic earnings per share:     As Reported        $.77       $.92        $.61 
                              Pro Forma          $.67       $.83        $.51 
Diluted earnings per share:   As Reported        $.71       $.84        $.59 
                              Pro Forma          $.62       $.76        $.49 
 
      For purposes of the pro forma information above, the fair value of each 
option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option 
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively: risk-free interest rates of 4.90%, 6.02% and 
5.88%, respectively; expected volatility of 71.42%, 70.96% and 67.41%, 
respectively; and expected lives of 5.5 years for 2001, 5.3 years for 2000 and 
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4.3 years for 1999. A summary of the status of the Company's five fixed stock 
option plans as well as the options issued relating to the UroCor acquisition as 
of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, and changes during the years ending on 
those dates is presented below: 
 
 
 
                                                     2001                 2000               1999 
                                                   WEIGHTED             WEIGHTED             WEIGHTED 
                                                   AVERAGE              AVERAGE              AVERAGE 
                                           2001    EXERCISE     2000    EXERCISE    1999     EXERCISE 
FIXED OPTIONS                             SHARES    PRICE      SHARES    PRICE     SHARES     PRICE 
- --------------                            ------   --------    ------   --------   ------   -------- 
                                                                             
Outstanding at beginning of year        1,087,622   $20.17    781,525     $7.37   884,454     $7.28 
Granted                                   313,352    40.44    657,915     28.41    90,085      8.98 
Issued in exchange for 
  UroCor options                          644,438    15.09         --        --        --        -- 
Exercised                                (636,095)   12.86   (320,814)     6.89   (93,014)     7.63 
Forfeited / canceled                      (82,860)   23.74    (31,004)     9.82  (100,000)     7.46 
                                         ---------          ---------           --------- 
Outstanding at end of year              1,326,457    25.76  1,087,622     20.17   781,525      7.37 
                                         ---------          ---------           --------- 
Options exercisable at 
  year-end                                364,307    18.06    147,202      7.59   284,718      6.94 
Weighted-average fair value 
  of options granted                       $26.09              $22.27               $5.17 
 
 
 
 
      The table below contains information with respect to the 1,326,457 options 
outstanding for the Company's 1991, 1996, 1999, 2000 and 2001 and Stock 
Incentive Plan as well as the options issued in connection with the UroCor 
acquisition as of December 31, 2001: 



 
 
 
 
                    EXERCISE PRICE                           EXERCISABLE OPTIONS 
                 ------------------------                  ------------------------- 
                                                                        WEIGHTED 
   OPTIONS                    WEIGHTED     REMAINING                    AVERAGE 
 OUTSTANDING      RANGE       AVERAGE   CONTRACTUAL LIFE    OPTIONS  EXERCISE PRICE 
 -----------      -----       -------   ----------------   --------  -------------- 
                                                         
   296,195    $1.95 - $9.00     $7.06         5.8           158,295       $6.62 
   377,375    $9.01 - $25.00   $16.22         7.6           101,005      $14.55 
   396,073   $25.01 - $40.00   $37.80         8.7            91,433      $38.32 
   256,814   $40.01 - $50.00   $42.80         9.8            13,574      $41.12 
 
 
 
In August 1999, the Company adopted a new Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
(the "ESPP" or "Plan") as described in Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
The Company has reserved a maximum of 300,000 shares of Common Stock to be sold 
to employees under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. No more than 100,000 shares 
of Common Stock will be available for purchase under the Plan in any calendar 
year and no participating employee may purchase more than 500 shares of Common 
Stock in any calendar quarter, which is referred to in the Plan as an "Offering 
Period". The first Offering Period began on January 1, 2000. The purchase price 
for these shares will be 85% of the fair market value of a share of Common Stock 
on the last day of each Offering Period, which is referred to in the Plan as the 
"Exercise Date". During 2001 and 2000, employees purchased 3,109 and 2,063 
shares at average prices per share of $33.14 and $25.81, respectively. 
 
8)    RELATED PARTIES 
 
      The Company pays a stockholder, who is also Chairman Emeritus, and who was 
a director until January 1995, a royalty of 6% of revenue on sales of certain 
technology covered by a license agreement. In addition, the Company provides 
this stockholder with certain insurance benefits, the use of an automobile and 
the reimbursement of expenses incident to his performance as a consultant to the 
Company. The Company paid licensing and royalty fees to this stockholder of 
approximately $10,000, $12,000 and $30,000 during the years ended December 31, 
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 
 
      Pursuant to his employment agreement, the President of the Company 
received a loan in 1996 totaling $150,000 which bears interest at 5.9%, payable 
annually, and is repayable upon termination of his employment with the Company. 
In addition, pursuant to the terms of such agreement the loan principal is being 
forgiven at a rate of $2,500 per month over the period January 1998 through 
December 2002 if the President continues to be employed by the Company. Pursuant 
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to the terms of such agreement, the current outstanding balance on the loan was 
$30,000 on December 31, 2001. 
 
      The President of the Company was a shareholder and board member of Medical 
Logistics Inc., a company that provides logistics for a variety of healthcare 
providers, during portions of 2001 and throughout 2000 and 1999. The Company 
began using Medical Logistics Inc. in the fourth quarter of 1999 for a limited 
number of logistic routes. The Company paid approximately $183,000, $194,000 and 
$11,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, to Medical Logistics Inc. 
 
      In December 1999, the Company modified an existing loan agreement with an 
officer of the Company, for approximately $55,000, bearing interest at 8.25% per 
annum through December 31, 1999. The loan is payable at a rate of $1,000 per 
month, commencing January 1, 2000, with the remaining outstanding balance due in 
full no later than December 31, 2002 or upon termination of employment with the 
Company. As of December 31, 2001, the outstanding balance was approximately 
$11,000. 
 
      In connection  with the  acquisition of John H.  Altshuler,  M.D.,  P.C. 
(see Note 2), the Company  entered  into a lease for an office and  laboratory 
facility  located  in  Englewood,  Colorado  for a  one-year  term  commencing 
October  1,  2000.  There is an option  to renew the lease for one year.  John 
H.  Altshuler,  M.D.,  and Barbara A. Altshuler are owners in joint tenancy of 
this  laboratory  facility.  As discussed  in Note 2, the Company  closed this 
facility in the first quarter of 2002. 
 
 (9)  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
      The Company is involved in certain legal matters that periodically arise 
in the normal course of business. Management believes that the outcome of these 
legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position 
and results of operations of the Company. Furthermore, management believes the 
Company maintains adequate insurance coverage for most contingencies. 
 
      The Company operates in the medical laboratory industry, which is subject 
to numerous federal and state laws and regulations. In addition, a significant 
portion of the Company's net revenue is from payments by the 
government-sponsored Medicare and Medicaid programs. These programs have 



extensive compliance requirements, and the payments made thereunder are subject 
to audit and adjustment by applicable regulatory agencies. Failure to comply 
with these laws and regulations, or the results of regulatory audits and payment 
adjustments, could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial 
position and results of operations. 
 
      Prior to 1998, the medical director of the Connecticut Medicare carrier to 
which the Company submits its Medicare claims orally expressed the view that 
some amount of money which the carrier had paid to the Company for certain 
pathology services involving DNA measurements in prostate tumor cells 
(morphometric analysis of tumor) potentially is recoverable by the carrier. The 
carrier medical director has never reduced his view to writing or otherwise 
asserted a claim. Accordingly, at this time, the Company cannot evaluate any 
such possible claim, or the probability of assertion of any such claim. 
 
      During 1997, the Company was made aware that an agent based in the 
Hartford, Connecticut branch of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of the Inspector General ("OIG") was investigating the Company's practice 
of supplying pathology specimen collection devices without charge to physician 
customers as well as unspecified billing issues that had been raised by the 
local Medicare carrier. The Company believes that its practices with respect to 
specimen collection devices were proper, and a letter describing the Company's 
actions and its views regarding applicable regulations was sent by the Company 
to the OIG. That letter also requested information about any billing issues of 
concern to the OIG so that the Company could address them. The Company had not 
received a response from or otherwise been contacted by the OIG regarding these 
matters, and has not received any formal notification regarding the matter. 
 
      The Company received a subpoena dated November 16, 2000, issued by the 
United States Attorney's Office for Connecticut, requesting the production of a 
variety of documents, with a particular focus on documents relating to billing 
for tumor biomarkers, DNA testing and screening tests. The Company is 
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cooperating with the Department of Justice representatives handling this matter 
and has substantially completed its production of documents under the subpoena. 
 
      As part of the purchase of UroCor, the Company assumed responsibility and 
liability for certain pre-acquisition contingencies which include expenses 
relating to the previously announced UroCor Department of Justice ("DOJ") 
investigation, including without limitation, compliance with the UroCor 
corporate integrity agreement and any potential indemnification of legal and 
other fees and costs for current and past directors, officers and employees of 
UroCor in connection with the criminal investigation related to the UroCor 
settlement. The Company currently estimates the probable indemnification 
expenses to be $1.0 million, but there is no assurance that this amount will not 
increase significantly. Accordingly, the Company has accrued $1.0 million as a 
liability in the opening UroCor balance sheet. 
 
(10)  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN 
 
      The Company has established a 401(k) employee benefit plan in which 
participants receive certain benefits upon retirement, death or termination of 
employment. The Company approved a new 401(k) plan, effective February 1, 2000, 
which increases the Company match from 20% of the contributions made by 
employees up to 1% of their total annual salary (subject to tax code limits) to 
50% of the contributions made by employees up to 3% of their total annual salary 
(subject to tax code limits). The Company contributed approximately $755,000, 
$607,000 and $200,000 to the plan during 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The 
Company offers no other post-retirement benefits or post-employment benefits to 
its employees. 
 
(11)  RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
 
      On April 29, 1994, the Company's Board of Directors declared a dividend 
distribution of one right for each outstanding share of Common Stock, par value 
$.01 per share, of the Company to stockholders of record on May 10, 1994. Each 
right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company a unit 
("Unit") consisting of one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior 
Participating Preferred Stock, par value $.01 per share, of the Company, at a 
price of $20 per Unit, subject to adjustment, upon change of control in the 
Company, as defined in the rights agreement. 
 
(12)  OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES 
 
      The following summarizes the Company's other accrued expenses: 
 
                                      December 31, 2001  December  31, 2000 
                                      -----------------  ------------------ 
                                                   (in $000s) 
      Acquisition related accruals         $ 4,870            $     -- 
      Legal and insurance                    3,426                 647 
      Accrued taxes other than income          771                 595 
      Other                                  2,691               1,742 
                                      ------------------------------------- 
                                           $11,758            $  2,984 
                                      ===================================== 
 



                                      F-19 
 
 
 
                               DIANON SYTEMS, INC. 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
(13)  SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 
 
Selected quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 
is summarized as follows: 
 
 
 
 
                            INTERIM FINANCIAL RESULTS 
- - ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
In millions, except per           1st        2nd        3rd         4th 
share amounts                   Quarter    Quarter    Quarter   Quarter(1)(2)   Total 
- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
                                                                
2001 
Net sales                       $26,803    $28,762    $28,941      $41,172    $125,678 
Gross profit                     11,808     12,921     12,846       19,046      56,621 
Net income (loss)                 2,050      2,367      2,307        (531)       6,193 
Diluted earnings (loss) per 
  share                           $0.26      $0.29      $0.28      ($0.05)       $0.71 
Diluted weighted average 
  common shares outstanding       8,007      8,042      8,150       10,814       8,756 
 
2000 
Net sales                       $22,079    $24,426    $23,594      $25,552     $95,651 
Gross profit                      9,332     10,594     10,250       11,304      41,480 
Net income                        1,260      1,576      1,783        1,980       6,599 
Diluted earnings per share        $0.17      $0.20      $0.22        $0.25       $0.84 
Diluted weighted average 
  common shares outstanding       7,597      7,701      7,952        7,980       7,840 
 
 
 
(1) In the fourth quarter 2001, the Company acquired all outstanding shares of 
UroCor, Inc., an anatomic pathology laboratory located in Oklahoma City, 
Oklahoma, specializing in services related to Urology. This acquisition was 
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the 
results of UroCor have been included in the Company's Consolidated Statements of 
Operations since the date of acquisition. See Note 2 to the Company's 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
(2) Non-recurring charges of approximately $7.0 million were recorded in the 
fourth quarter 2001 including a $5.5 million special bad debt provision related 
to the remaining UroCor accounts receivable and a $1.5 million charge relating 
to impairments on certain investments and intangible assets. 
 
                                      F-20 
 
 
     This report of Arthur Andersen LLP set forth below is a copy of a 
previously issued Andersen accountant's report and that report has not been 
reissued by Andersen. 
 
   REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE 
 
To DIANON Systems, Inc.: 
 
      We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States, the consolidated financial statements of DIANON Systems, 
Inc. and subsidiary companies included in this Form 10-K and have issued our 
report thereon dated February 19, 2002. Our audits were made for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a 
whole. The schedule listed in the index to consolidated financial statements is 
the responsibility of the Company's management and is presented for purposes of 
complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and is not part of 
the basic consolidated financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic consolidated 
financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all material respects 
the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
 
                                                         ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 
 
 
Stamford, Connecticut 
February 19, 2002 
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                                Balance at   Provision                 Charged to 
                                Beginning    Charged to   Charges to    Other        Balance at 
                                 of Year      Expense     Allowance    Accounts(a)  End of Year 
                                --------------------------------------------------------------- 
                                                                       
For the year ended December 
31, 1999: 
   Allowance for bad debts      $1,033,059     $      -   $  (72,793)     $50,000    $1,010,266 
 
For the year ended December 
  31, 2000: 
   Allowance for bad debts      $1,010,266     $380,500   $ (103,670)     $15,000    $1,302,096 
 
For the year ended December 
  31, 2001: 
   Allowance for bad debts      $1,302,096   $5,700,000   $       --      $    --    $7,002,096 
 
 
 
(a)   Amounts charged to other accounts represent purchase accounting 
      adjustments related to the acquisitions of KMD and John H. Altshuler, 
      M.D., P.C. in 1999 and 2000, respectively. 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT 99.2 
 
 
                              DIANON SYSTEMS, INC. 
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
 
 
 
                                                                                SEPTEMBER 30,       DECEMBER 31, 
                                                                                    2002                2001 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
                   ASSETS                                                        (UNAUDITED) 
                                                                                              
CURRENT ASSETS: 
      Cash and cash equivalents                                                 $   8,884,226      $  41,229,353 
      Available-for-sale securities                                                51,167,259          1,071,778 
      Accounts receivable, net of allowances                                       38,088,090         29,863,129 
      Prepaid expenses and other current assets                                     3,105,272          3,767,086 
      Prepaid / refundable income taxes                                             2,829,469          5,753,944 
      Inventory                                                                     2,189,042          1,932,713 
      Deferred income taxes                                                         5,896,064          6,560,564 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
        Total current assets                                                      112,159,422         90,178,567 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, at cost 
      Laboratory and office equipment                                              21,655,622         19,539,228 
      Leasehold improvements                                                        9,394,342          8,967,113 
         Less - accumulated depreciation and amortization                         (20,494,175) 
(17,650,512) 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
                                                                                   10,555,789         10,855,829 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumulated amortization of 
        $5,194,879 and $3,662,150, respectively                                   182,581,174        183,167,116 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES                                                                      --          2,429,417 
OTHER ASSETS                                                                          790,694            787,230 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
        TOTAL ASSETS                                                            $ 306,087,079      $ 287,418,159 
                                                                                =============      ============= 
 
                   LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
      Accounts payable                                                          $   1,926,461      $   1,621,689 
      Accrued employee compensation                                                 4,934,657          6,961,747 
      Current portion of capitalized lease obligations                                217,562            300,102 
      Other accrued expenses                                                       15,447,292         12,459,309 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
        Total current liabilities                                                  22,525,972         21,342,847 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES: 
      Deferred income taxes                                                         1,168,729                 -- 
      Long-term portion of capitalized lease obligations                               36,903            439,029 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
        Total Liabilities                                                          23,731,604         21,781,876 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
      Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 55,000,000 shares authorized, 
         12,352,012 and 11,896,140 shares issued and outstanding 
         at September 30, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively                    123,520            118,961 
      Additional paid-in capital                                                  256,539,509        242,987,849 
      Retained earnings                                                            35,064,597         22,620,561 
      Common stock held in treasury, at cost - 294,289 and 9,511 
         shares at September 30, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively         (10,164,191)          (91,088) 
      Accumulated other comprehensive income                                          792,040                 -- 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
         Total stockholders' equity                                               282,355,475        265,636,283 
                                                                                -------------      ------------- 
           TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY                           $ 306,087,079      $ 287,418,159 
                                                                                =============      ============= 
 
 
                The accompanying notes to consolidated financial 
            statements are an integral part of these balance sheets. 
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                FOR THE THREE MONTH AND NINE MONTH PERIODS ENDED 
                           SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 and 2001 
 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
 
                                                       THREE MONTHS ENDED                   NINE MONTHS ENDED 
                                                          SEPTEMBER 30,                       SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                     2002              2001              2002               2001 
                                                 -------------     -------------     -------------      ------------- 
                                                                                             
 
Net revenues                                     $  47,084,753     $  28,940,906     $ 140,965,249      $  84,505,918 



 
Cost of sales                                       23,374,450        16,095,217        70,247,328         46,931,286 
                                                 -------------     -------------     -------------      ------------- 
 
     GROSS PROFIT                                   23,710,303        12,845,689        70,717,921         37,574,632 
 
Selling, general and administrative expenses        13,472,065         8,526,412        40,384,893         24,759,535 
 
Special charge                                       5,450,000                --         5,450,000                 -- 
 
Special credit for bad debts                                --                --          (710,957)                -- 
 
Amortization of intangible assets                      640,378           338,701         1,532,729          1,016,100 
 
Research and development expenses                      270,523           286,899         1,037,739            954,431 
                                                 -------------     -------------     -------------      ------------- 
 
     INCOME FROM OPERATIONS                          3,877,337         3,693,677        23,023,517         10,844,566 
 
Interest income, net                                   521,515           184,352         1,158,056            457,152 
                                                 -------------     -------------     -------------      ------------- 
 
    INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR 
        INCOME TAXES                                 4,398,852         3,878,029        24,181,573         11,301,718 
 
Provision for income taxes                           3,725,535         1,570,602        11,737,537          4,577,196 
                                                 -------------     -------------     -------------      ------------- 
 
     NET INCOME                                  $     673,317     $   2,307,427     $  12,444,036      $   6,724,522 
                                                 =============     =============     =============      ============= 
 
     EARNINGS PER SHARE 
           BASIC                                 $         .06     $         .31     $        1.03      $         .91 
           DILUTED                               $         .05     $         .28     $         .98      $         .83 
 
     WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING 
           BASIC                                    12,120,732         7,437,078        12,117,361          7,414,584 
           DILUTED                                  12,488,387         8,150,277        12,747,779          8,059,785 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes to consolidated financial 
              statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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              FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                 Accumulated 
                                                                        Common Stock              Additional          Other 
                                                               ------------------------------       Paid-In       Comprehensive
                                                  Total           Shares            Amount          Capital           Income 
                                              -------------    -------------    -------------    -------------    -------------
                                                                                                    
BALANCE, December 31, 2000                    $  52,258,738        7,397,323    $      73,974    $  35,877,828    $          --
     Net income                                   6,724,522               --               --               --               --
     Unrealized gain on securities                       --               --               --               --               --
 
     Comprehensive income                                --               --               --               --               --
 
     Stock options exercised                        439,565           58,235              582          438,983               --
     Tax effect for stock options exercised         670,921               --               --          670,921               --
     Employee stock purchase plan /  other           99,746               --               --           75,795               --
     Stock grants                                    31,662              850                8           31,654               --
                                              -------------    -------------    -------------    -------------    -------------
BALANCE, September 30, 2001                   $  60,225,154        7,456,408    $      74,564    $  37,095,181    $          --
                                              =============    =============    =============    =============    =============
 
BALANCE, December 31, 2001                    $ 265,636,283       11,896,140    $     118,961    $ 242,987,849    $          --
     Net income                                  12,444,036               --               --               --               --
     Unrealized gain on securities                  792,040               --               --               --          792,040
 
     Comprehensive income                                --               --               --               --               --
 
     Stock options exercised                      5,845,522          458,938            4,590        5,840,932               --
     Tax effect for stock options                 7,693,147               --               --        7,693,147               --
     exercised 
     Return of common stock held in escrow         (113,825)          (3,066)             (31)        (113,794)              --
     Employee stock purchase plan / other           164,561               --               --          131,375               --
     Common stock acquired for treasury         (10,106,289)              --               --               --               --
                                              -------------    -------------    -------------    -------------    -------------
BALANCE, September 30, 2002                   $ 282,355,475       12,352,012    $     123,520    $ 256,539,509    $     792,040
                                              =============    =============    =============    =============    =============
 
 
                                                                     Common Stock 



                                                                 Acquired for Treasury 
                                                 Retained     ------------------------------    Comprehensive 
                                                 Earnings         Shares           Amount           Income 
                                              -------------   -------------    -------------    ------------- 
                                                                                     
BALANCE, December 31, 2000                    $  16,427,788         (12,620)   $    (120,852) 
     Net income                                   6,724,522              --               --    $   6,724,522 
     Unrealized gain on securities                       --              --               --               -- 
                                                                                                ------------- 
     Comprehensive income                                --              --               --    $   6,724,522 
                                                                                                ============= 
     Stock options exercised                             --              --               -- 
     Tax effect for stock options exercised              --              --               -- 
     Employee stock purchase plan /  other               --           2,501           23,951 
     Stock grants                                        --              --               -- 
                                              -------------   -------------    ------------- 
BALANCE, September 30, 2001                   $  23,152,310         (10,119)   $     (96,901) 
                                              =============   =============    ============= 
 
BALANCE, December 31, 2001                    $  22,620,561          (9,511)   $     (91,088) 
     Net income                                  12,444,036              --               --    $  12,444,036 
     Unrealized gain on securities                       --              --               --          792,040 
                                                                                                ------------- 
     Comprehensive income                                --              --               --    $  13,236,076 
                                                                                                ============= 
     Stock options exercised                             --              --               -- 
     Tax effect for stock options                        --              --               -- 
     exercised 
     Return of common stock held in escrow               --              --               -- 
     Employee stock purchase plan / other                --           3,465           33,186 
     Common stock acquired for treasury                  --        (288,243)     (10,106,289) 
                                              -------------   -------------    ------------- 
BALANCE, September 30, 2002                   $  35,064,597        (294,289)   $ (10,164,191) 
                                              =============   =============    ============= 
 
 
The accompanying notes to consolidated financial 
              statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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                              DIANON SYSTEMS, INC. 
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 
              FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 AND 2001 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                   SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                                              2002              2001 
                                                                          ------------      ------------ 
                                                                                       
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
    Net income                                                            $ 12,444,036      $  6,724,522 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
    cash provided by operations - 
     Non-cash charges 
 
         Depreciation and amortization                                       4,396,871         3,354,747 
         Provision for bad debts                                                89,043                -- 
         Tax effect of stock options exercised                               7,693,147           670,921 
         Deferred tax provision                                              3,723,527                -- 
         Stock compensation expense                                                 --            31,662 
         Bond premium amortization                                             155,249                -- 
         Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed assets                                28,688           (24,077) 
Changes in other current assets and liabilities 
     Accounts receivable                                                    (8,314,004)          434,668 
     Prepaid / refundable income taxes                                       2,924,475         2,245,894 
     Prepaid expenses and other current assets                                 661,814          (470,697) 
     Inventory                                                                (256,329)          (18,298) 
     Other assets and other                                                    (76,655)         (159,704) 
     Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities                          1,265,665         1,405,195 
                                                                          ------------      ------------ 
                   Net cash provided by operating activities                24,735,527        14,194,833 
                                                                          ------------      ------------ 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
     Capital expenditures                                                   (2,645,640)       (1,575,284) 
     Purchases of available-for-sale securities                            (50,192,527)               -- 
     Redemption of available-for-sale securities                             1,781,147                -- 
     Investment and acquisition of marketing rights                         (1,500,000)               -- 
     Acquisition of UroCor, Inc., net                                            4,389                -- 
     Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets                                     52,849            53,758 
                                                                          ------------      ------------ 
                   Net cash used in investing activities                   (52,499,782)       (1,521,526) 
                                                                          ------------      ------------ 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
     Repayments of note payable                                                     --        (2,500,000) 
     Purchase of common stock acquired for treasury                        (10,106,289)               -- 



     Employee stock purchase plan / other                                      164,561            99,746 
     Exercise of stock options                                               5,845,522           439,565 
     Repayments of capitalized lease obligations                              (484,666)          (47,238) 
                                                                          ------------      ------------ 
                 Net cash used in financing activities                      (4,580,872)       (2,007,927) 
                                                                          ------------      ------------ 
 
 
                 Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents      (32,345,127)       10,665,380 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period                              41,229,353        12,515,424 
                                                                          ------------      ------------ 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period                                  $  8,884,226      $ 23,180,804 
                                                                          ============      ============ 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 
     Cash paid during the period: 
         Interest                                                         $     17,132      $     62,758 
         Income taxes paid, net of refunds                                     170,192         2,160,696 
 
 
 
                The accompanying notes to consolidated financial 
              statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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                              DIANON SYSTEMS, INC. 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
1.       The Company - The consolidated financial statements as of and for the 
         three months and nine months ended September 30, 2002 and 2001 have 
         been prepared by DIANON Systems, Inc. ("Dianon" or the "Company") 
         without audit. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary 
         to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and 
         cash flows for such periods have been made, and the interim accounting 
         policies followed are in conformity with accounting principles 
         generally accepted in the United States and are consistent with those 
         applied for annual periods as described in Dianon's annual report for 
         the year ended December 31, 2001, previously filed on Form 10-K and 
         10-K/A with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Annual 
         Report"). 
 
         Certain information and note disclosures normally included in financial 
         statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
         accepted in the United States have been omitted. It is suggested that 
         these consolidated financial statements be read in conjunction with the 
         financial statements included in Dianon's Annual Report for the year 
         ended December 31, 2001. The results of operations for the three months 
         and nine months ended September 30, 2002 and 2001 are not necessarily 
         indicative of the operating results for the full years. 
 
         Acquisitions - In the second quarter of 2002, 3,066 shares of the 
         Company's common stock were distributed to the Company from the escrow 
         account established in connection with the Company's acquisition in 
         October 2000 of John H. Altshuler, M.D., P.C., a pathology practice 
         located in Englewood, Colorado. In the second quarter of 2002 the 
         Company also accelerated the amortization of the customer list related 
         to the Altshuler acquisition by approximately $205,000 to reflect the 
         remaining useful life. 
 
         In the second quarter of 2002, the Company reversed approximately 
         $711,000 of allowance for bad debts. This was the portion of the $5.5 
         million special bad debt provision that the Company recorded in the 
         fourth quarter of 2001 relating to the acquisition in November 2001 of 
         UroCor, Inc. ("UroCor") that was determined to be no longer required. 
 
         Pro forma historical results (unaudited) for the three month and nine 
         month periods ended September 30, 2001, adjusted as if UroCor had been 
         acquired on January 1, 2001, approximates $43.1 million and $129.9 
         million in revenue, respectively, $2.9 million and $11.9 million in net 
         income, respectively, and $0.24 and $0.98 in diluted earnings per 
         share, respectively. The $11.9 million pro forma net income for the 
         nine months ended September 30, 2001, stated above, includes a 
         one-time, special credit for bad debts of $4.6 million (or $0.38 
         diluted earnings per share) recorded by UroCor. The pro forma results 
         are not necessarily indicative of what actually would have occurred if 
         the acquisition had been completed as of January 1, 2001, nor are they 
         necessarily indicative of future results. 
 
         In the first quarter of 2002, the Company paid MDdatacor, Inc. 
         ("MDdatacor") $1.0 million for the exclusive marketing rights for a 
         medical records search tool for urology and gastroenterology physician 
         practice group customers. The Company also acquired a 13.7% interest in 
         MDdatacor. The Company allocated the total investment in MDdatacor to 
         the marketing rights ($750,000) and equity ($250,000) based on 
         management's estimates of fair value. In the third quarter of 2002, the 
         Company contributed an additional $500,000 to MDdatacor, increasing the 
         Company's investment in MDdatacor to 16.6% as of September 30, 2002. 
         The Company allocated the additional investment to the marketing rights 
         ($375,000) and equity ($125,000) based on management's estimates of 
         fair value. 
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2.       Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In June 2001, the Financial 
         Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
         Standards ("SFAS") No. 141, "Business Combinations," and SFAS No. 142, 
         "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." SFAS No. 141 requires that all 
         business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for 
         using the purchase method, thus eliminating the use of the 
         pooling-of-interests accounting for business combinations. SFAS No. 142 
         revises the accounting for goodwill to eliminate amortization of 
         goodwill after December 31, 2001. The statement requires an annual 
         assessment of goodwill for impairment and more frequent assessments if 
         circumstances indicate a possible impairment. In the second quarter of 
         2002, the Company completed the initial test for impairment and 
         determined that no goodwill impairment had occurred. The following 
         table provides a reconciliation for the prior year's reported net 
         income to adjusted net income had SFAS No. 142 been applied as of the 
         beginning of fiscal 2001 for the three month and nine month periods 
         ended September 30, 2001. 
 
 
 
                                               For the three months ended                For the nine months ended 
                                                   September 30, 2001                       September 30, 2001 
                                         --------------------------------------     ----------------------------------- 
                                            Income        Basic       Diluted          Income        Basic     Diluted 
                                         available to    Earnings    Earnings       available to   Earnings   Earnings 
                                            common         per          per            common         per        per 
                                         stockholders      share       share        stockholders     share      share 
                                         -------------  ----------  -----------     -------------  ---------  --------- 
                                                                                             
         Reported net income 
         attributed to DIANON common 
         stock                           $   2,307,427  $     0.31  $      0.28     $   6,724,522  $    0.91  $    0.83 
 
         Add back amortization of 
         goodwill, net of income tax            27,702        0.00         0.00            83,106       0.01       0.01 
                                         -------------  ----------  -----------     -------------  ---------  --------- 
 
         Adjusted net income 
         attributed to DIANON common 
         stock                           $   2,335,129  $     0.31  $      0.28     $   6,807,628  $    0.92  $    0.84 
                                         =============  ==========  ===========     =============  =========  ========= 
 
 
 
         In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 
         No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations," which is 
         effective in 2003. It requires the recording of an asset equal to the 
         present value of the estimated costs associated with the retirement of 
         long-lived assets where a legal or contractual obligation exists. The 
         asset is required to be depreciated over the life of the related 
         equipment or facility, and the liability accreted each year based on a 
         present value interest rate. The Company does not believe that the 
         adoption of SFAS No. 143 will have a material impact on its financial 
         position or results of operations. 
 
         In October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 
         No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived 
         Assets." SFAS No. 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the 
         Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be 
         Disposed of." It establishes a single accounting model for the 
         impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used or to be disposed 
         of by sale or abandonment and broadens the definition of discontinued 
         operations. The provisions of this statement are effective for 
         financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 
         15, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have a material impact 
         on the Company's financial position or results of operations. 
 
         In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 
         146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal 
         Activities." SFAS No. 146 nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 
         Issue No. 94-3, "Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination 
         Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs 
         Incurred in a Restructuring)." This statement requires that a liability 
         for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized 
         when the liability is incurred. Under EITF Issue No. 94-3, a liability 
         for an exit cost was recognized at the date of the entity committed to 
         an exit plan. The provisions of this statement are effective for exit 
         or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, with 
         early application encouraged. The Company does not believe that the 
         adoption of SFAS No. 146 will have a material impact on its financial 
         position or results of operations. 
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3.       Earnings per share - Basic earnings per share have been computed based 
         on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each 
         period. Diluted earnings per share have been computed based on the 
         weighted average number of common shares and common equivalent shares 
         outstanding during each period. Common equivalent shares outstanding 
         include the common equivalent shares calculated for warrants and stock 



         options under the treasury stock method. Below is a reconciliation of 
         the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per 
         share computations for the three month and nine month periods ended 
         September 30, 2002 and 2001. 
 
 
 
                                             Three months ended                Nine months ended 
                                               September 30,                     September 30, 
                                            2002          2001                2002           2001 
                                        -----------------------------    ------------------------------- 
                                                                                   
       BASIC EARNING PER SHARE: 
       Weighted-average number of 
       common shares outstanding          12,120,732       7,437,078         12,117,361       7,414,584 
 
       DILUTIVE EFFECT OF: 
 
       Stock options                         367,655         713,199            630,418         645,201 
                                        -----------------------------    ------------------------------- 
 
       DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE: 
       Weighted-average number of 
       common shares outstanding          12,488,387       8,150,277         12,747,779       8,059,785 
                                        =============================    =============================== 
 
       NET INCOME                           $673,317      $2,307,427        $12,444,036      $6,724,522 
                                        =============================    =============================== 
 
       BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE                $0.06           $0.31              $1.03           $0.91 
                                        =============================    =============================== 
 
       DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE              $0.05           $0.28              $0.98           $0.83 
                                        =============================    =============================== 
 
 
 
    For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2002, outstanding options 
    to purchase 563,447 and 18,250, respectively, shares of common stock, at 
    prices ranging from $39.80 to $63.59 and $56.70 to $63.59, respectively, per 
    share, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share 
    because the exercise price of the options was greater than the average 
    market price of common shares. 
 
    For the nine months ended September 30, 2001, outstanding options to 
    purchase 18,912 shares of common stock, at prices ranging from $40.06 to 
    $45.50 per share, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings 
    per share because the exercise price of the options was greater than the 
    average market price of common shares. There were no options outstanding 
    that were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for 
    the three months ended September 30, 2001. 
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4.       Investment Securities - As of September 30, 2002, the Company had 
         investment securities of $51.2 million. The portfolio consisted 
         primarily of U.S. Government agency securities with maturities of less 
         than three years. The Company has evaluated its investment policies 
         consistent with SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in 
         Debt and Equity Securities," and determined that all of its investment 
         securities are to be classified as available-for-sale. 
         Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value, with the 
         unrealized gains and losses reported in Stockholders' Equity under the 
         caption "Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income." The Company views its 
         available-for-sales securities as available to support its current 
         operations and to fund the Company's stock repurchase program and, 
         accordingly, classifies them as current assets on the balance sheet. 
         The amortized cost of debt securities is adjusted for amortization of 
         premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amortization is 
         included in interest income, net. The cost of securities sold is based 
         on the specific identification method. Interest on available-for-sale 
         securities is included in interest income. 
 
         The following is a summary of investment securities classified as 
         "available-for-sale" securities as required by SFAS 115 as of September 
         30, 2002 and December 31, 2001: 
 
                                               September 30,    December 31, 
                                                   2002            2001 
                                                -----------     ----------- 
                 Debt investments: 
 
                     Cost                       $49,991,349     $ 1,071,778 
                     Gross unrealized gains       1,175,910              -- 
                                                -----------     ----------- 
                 Estimated fair value           $51,167,259     $ 1,071,778 
                                                ===========     =========== 
 
 
5.       Legal Proceedings - The Company received a subpoena dated November 16, 
         2000, issued by the United States Attorney's Office for Connecticut, 
         requesting the production of a variety of documents, with a particular 
         focus on documents relating to billing for tumor biomarkers, DNA 



         testing and screening tests. In the third quarter of 2002, the Company 
         recorded a special charge of $5.5 million to cover the anticipated 
         payment to be made to the government relating to the Department of 
         Justice ("D.O.J.") investigation discussed above. This amount includes 
         related legal costs. Although a final settlement has not yet been 
         reached, the Company, believes, based on recent discussions with 
         outside legal counsel and the government, the payment is probable and 
         reasonably estimable. 
 
         As part of the acquisitionof UroCor in November 2001, the Company 
         assumed responsibility and liability for certain pre-acquisition 
         contingencies including expenses relating to the previously announced 
         UroCor D.O.J. investigation, compliance with the UroCor corporate 
         integrity agreement and potential indemnification of legal and other 
         fees and costs for former directors, officers and employees of UroCor 
         in connection with any criminal investigation related to the UroCor 
         D.O.J. settlement. In connection with the preliminary Urocor purchase 
         price allocation in 2001, the Company estimated the probable 
         indemnification expenses to be $1.0 million, but there is no assurance 
         that this amount will not increase significantly. 
 
         The Company is involved in certain other legal matters, including 
         professional liability claims, which periodically arise in the normal 
         course of business. Management believes that the outcome of these legal 
         matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial 
         position and results of operations of the Company. Furthermore, 
         management believes the Company maintains adequate insurance coverage 
         or has established adequate reserves for known contingencies. 
 
6.       Income Taxes - During the third quarter of 2002, the Company's 
         effective tax rate increased from 40.5% to 85%. The increase is because 
         the Company did not record an income tax benefit related to a portion 
         of the $5.5 million special charge discussed in Note 5, as the Company 
         cannot presently determine whether the amounts to be paid to the 
         government will be deductible for income tax purposes. 
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EXHIBIT 99.3 
 
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
     On July 25, 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the 
outstanding stock of Dynacare Inc. ("Dynacare") in a combination cash and stock 
transaction, with a combined value of approximately $495.3 million, including 
transaction costs.  The Company also converted approximately 553,958 unvested 
Dynacare stock options into 297,049 unvested Company options to acquire shares 
of the Company at terms comparable to those under the predecessor Dynacare 
plan.  This conversion of outstanding unvested options increased the non-cash 
consideration of the transaction by approximately $5.0 million and resulted in 
the recording of initial deferred compensation of approximately $2.5 million. 
In conjunction with this acquisition, the Company repaid Dynacare's existing 
$204.4 million of senior subordinated unsecured notes, including a call premium 
of approximately $7.0 million.  The transaction was financed by issuing 
approximately 4.9 million shares of the Company's common stock, valued at 
approximately $245.6 million, $260.0 million in available cash, a 
$150.0 million bridge loan and borrowings of $50.0 million under the Company's 
senior credit facilities. 
 
     The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements of 
Laboratory Corporation of America Holdings have been prepared to illustrate the 
effects of the following transactions (the "Acquisitions"): 
 
1)  The Company's purchase of all of Dynacare's outstanding stock, the 
    financing of the purchase and the related transactions costs associated 
    with the Dynacare acquisition, and the repayment of Dynacare's senior 
    subordinated unsecured notes and related accrued interest with cash on- 
    hand and borrowings under a bridge loan and the Company's senior credit 
    facilities. 
 
2)  The Company's purchase of all of DIANON's outstanding common stock, the 
    financing of the all cash purchase price and related transaction costs 
    associated with the DIANON acquisition, with cash on-hand and borrowings 
    under the DIANON Bridge Loan facility and the Company's Senior Credit 
    Facilities.  The Company expects to refinance the Bridge Loan facility 
    with the proceeds of an offering of its senior notes.  These unaudited 
    pro forma combined financial statements assume that the higher-rate public 
    debt (from the proposed refinancing) is outstanding for all periods 
    presented. 
 
     The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 
2002 gives effect to the DIANON acquisition and the related borrowings as if 
they had occurred on September 30, 2002.  The unaudited pro forma combined 
statements of operations assume the Acquisitions, the repayment of Dynacare's 
senior subordinated unsecured notes and that the Borrowings were effected on 
January 1, 2001.  The acquisition of DIANON will be accounted for under the 
purchase method.  As such, the cost to acquire DIANON will be allocated to the 
respective assets and liabilities acquired based on their fair values at the 
closing of that acquisition.  The initial allocation of the costs to acquire 
Dynacare is already reflected in the Company's historical balance sheet as of 
September 30, 2002.  Initial allocations of the costs to acquire DIANON 
have been made to the assets and liabilities of DIANON in the accompanying 
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements based on estimates.  The 
final allocations may be different from the amounts reflected in the 
accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements. 
 
     The estimated costs associated with severance and other integration- 
related activities for 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005, including the elimination of 
duplicative facilities and excess capacity, operational realignment and related 
workforce reductions are not included in the unaudited pro forma consolidated 
financial statements.  To the extent that the costs relate to actions that 
impact employee and other related activities of Dynacare or DIANON, such costs 
will be accounted for as a cost of the Acquisitions.  To the extent that the 
costs relate to actions that impact the Company's employee and related 
activities, such costs will be accounted for as a charge to earnings in the 
periods that the integration plans are approved and communicated.  During the 
quarter ended September 30, 2002, the Company recorded approximately $14.6 
million in accrued transaction costs relating to its acquisition of Dynacare. 
The Company expects to finalize and record the costs associated with the 
acquisition of DIANON in the first half of 2003. 
 
     The unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations do not include 
the estimated annual synergies that the Company expects to realize upon 
completion of the integration of the Acquisitions in 2005. 
 
     The pro forma adjustments, and the assumptions on which they are based, 
are described in the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
     The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are presented 
for illustrative purposes only to aid you in your analysis of the impact to the 
Company of the Acquisitions and the Borrowings.  The unaudited pro forma 
consolidated financial statements are not necessarily indicative of the 
combined financial position or results of operations that would have been 
realized had the Company, Dynacare and DIANON been a single entity during the 
periods presented.  In addition, the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial 
statements are not necessarily indicative of the future results that the 
Company will experience after the Acquisitions.  The unaudited pro forma 
consolidated financial statements and related notes should be read in 
conjunction with the historical financial statements of the Company, Dynacare 
and DIANON. 
 



 
Laboratory Corporation of America Holdings and Subsidiaries 
Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet 
As of September 30, 2002 
(Dollars in millions) 
 
 
                                Historical          Pro Forma      Pro Forma 
                             LabCorp     DIANON    Adjustments   Consolidated 
                           ---------    --------   -----------   ------------ 
      ASSETS 
 
Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents   $  98.4     $   8.9     $  (25.4)(2)   $   81.9 
Available for sale securities    --        51.2           --           51.2 
Accounts receivable, net      418.7        38.1           --          456.8 
Inventories                    44.0         2.2           --           46.2 
Prepaid expenses and other     23.1         5.9           --           29.0 
Deferred income taxes          53.5         5.9           --           59.4 
                            -------      ------      -------        ------- 
Total current assets          637.7       112.2        (25.4)         724.5 
                            -------      ------      -------        ------- 
Property, plant and 
   equipment, net             355.3        10.5           --          365.8 
Goodwill                      935.9          --        398.4(1)(3)  1,334.3 
Identifiable intangible 
  assets, net                 305.1       182.6         27.0(1)(3)    514.7 
Investments in equity 
  affiliates                  390.6          --           --          390.6 
Other assets, net              29.0         0.8           --           29.8 
                            -------      ------      -------        ------- 
                           $2,653.6     $ 306.1     $  400.0       $3,359.7 
                            =======      ======      =======        ======= 
 
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable           $   90.0     $   1.9     $     --       $   91.9 
Accrued expenses and other    194.9        20.6           --          215.5 
Current portion of 
   long-term debt             120.5          --           --          120.5 
                            -------      ------      -------        ------- 
Total current liabilities     405.4        22.5           --          427.9 
                            -------      ------      -------        ------- 
Revolving credit facility        --          --        248.6 (2)      248.6 
DIANON Bridge loan               --          --        350.0 (2)      350.0 
Zero coupon-subordinated 
   notes                      510.3          --           --          510.3 
Long-term debt, less 
   current portion              3.2          --           --            3.2 
Capital lease obligations       6.3          --           --            6.3 
Other liabilities             153.2         1.2         83.8 (1)      238.2 
Shareholders' equity: 
     Preferred stock             --          --           --             -- 
     Common stock              14.8         0.1         (0.1)(4)       14.8 
     Additional paid-in 
        capital             1,406.2       256.5       (256.5)(4)    1,406.2 
     Retained earnings        213.1        35.1        (35.1)(4)      213.1 
     Treasury stock            (4.4)      (10.1)        10.1 (4)       (4.4) 
     Unearned restricted 
       stock compensation     (46.1)         --           --          (46.1) 
     Accumulated other 
        comprehensive loss     (8.4)        0.8         (0.8)(4)       (8.4) 
                             -------     ------      -------        ------- 
       Total shareholders' 
          equity            1,575.2       282.4       (282.4)       1,575.2 
                            -------      ------      -------        ------- 
                           $2,653.6     $ 306.1     $  400.0       $3,359.7 
                            =======      ======      =======        ======= 
 
See the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma combined balance sheet. 
 
Laboratory Corporation of America Holdings and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated condensed Balance Sheet 
As of September 30, 2002 
 
(Dollars in millions, except where indicated and for per share data) 
 
 
(1) The estimated acquisition costs related to the purchase, and related 
    allocation to fair market value of the net assets acquired is as follows: 
 
   Total Acquisition Costs 
   ----------------------- 
   Net cash paid by the Company to DIANON security holders            $  598.6 
 
   Transaction costs, consisting primarily of investment banking 
       and legal fees                                                     25.4 
                                                                       ------- 
                                                                      $  624.0 
                                                                       ======= 
 
   Preliminary Allocation of Acquisition Costs 
   ------------------------------------------- 



   Net assets of DIANON per historical balance sheet as of 
       September 30, 2002                                             $  282.4 
   Adjustments to net assets of DIANON: 
       Eliminate historical DIANON intangibles                          (182.6) 
                                                                       ------- 
     Adjusted historical net assets of DIANON                             99.8 
   Adjustments to record net assets acquired, based on estimates 
       of fair values: 
     Goodwill                                                            398.4 
     Identifiable intangible assets                                      209.6 
     Other liabilities, primarily deferred tax liabilities               (83.8) 
                                                                       ------- 
   Total acquisition costs                                            $  624.0 
                                                                       ======= 
 
(2)To record financing of the acquisition by the Company as follows: 
     Reduction of the Company cash on hand                            $   25.4 
     Borrowings under the Company's senior credit facilities             248.6 
     Borrowings under the DIANON bridge loan                             350.0 
                                                                       ------- 
                                                                      $  624.0 
                                                                       ======= 
 
     Borrowings under the senior credit facilities and the DIANON bridge loan 
will bear interest rates calculated quarterly on LIBOR plus 100 basis points 
and LIBOR plus 137.5 basis points, respectively.  A 0.125% change in LIBOR 
would produce a $0.4 change in annual net earnings.  For the purpose of these 
unuadited pro forma consolidated financial statements, the LIBOR rate was 
assumed to be 2.0%.  The permanent financing that will replace the DIANON 
bridge loan is assumed to bear an interest rate of approximately 6.0%. 
Accordingly, the higher rate has been used to calculate pro forma interest 
expense related to the portion of the DIANON consideration financed with the 
DIANON bridge loan in the accompanying unaudited pro forma combined statement 
of operations. 
 
3)   To eliminate historical DIANON intangibles of $182.6 and setup estimated 
intangibles relating to the acquisition as follows: 
     Goodwill                                                         $  398.4 
     Identifiable intangibles (predominantly customer lists and 
       proprietary software)                                             209.6 
                                                                       ------- 
                                                                      $  608.0 
                                                                       ======= 
 
     The identifiable intangibles have an assumed life of 15 years in the 
accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed statements of 
operations.  It is the Company's intention to obtain detailed valuation studies 
of the net assets acquired during the first half of 2003.  Accordingly, the 
final allocation of cost and the related useful lives may be different from the 
estimated amounts presented above.  A portion of the estimated increase in 
intangible assets will be allocated to fixed assets upon completion of the 
valuations. 
 
4)   To eliminate historical DIANON shareholders' equity amounts as follows: 
      Common stock                                                    $    0.1 
      Additional paid-in capital                                         256.5 
      Retained earnings                                                   35.1 
      Treasury stock                                                     (10.1) 
      Accumulated other comprehensive income                               0.8 
                                                                       ------- 
                                                                      $  282.4 
                                                                       ======= 

 
 
Laboratory Corporation of America Holdings and Subsidiaries 
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations 
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002 
(In millions, except per share data) 
 
                           Historical   Pro Forma     Pro Forma    Pro Forma 
                             LabCorp     Dynacare(1)   DIANON(2)   Combined 
                           ----------   ---------    ----------   ---------- 
Net sales                  $ 1,857.6    $ 169.5       $ 141.0     $ 2,168.1 
Cost of sales                1,049.7      109.8          70.3       1,229.8 
                            --------     ------        ------      -------- 
   Gross profit                807.9       59.7          70.7         938.3 
Selling, general and 
  administrative expenses      427.3       63.1          41.4         531.8 
Restructuring and other 
  special charges               17.5         --           4.8          22.3 
Amortization                    16.4        2.1          10.5          29.0 
                            --------     ------        ------      -------- 
   Operating income (loss)     346.7       (5.5)         14.0         355.2 
 
Other income (expense): 
Income from equity 
  investments                    6.2       22.7            --          28.9 
Loss on sale of assets          (0.4)        --            --          (0.4) 
Net investment income            2.9         --           1.2           4.1 
Termination of interest 
  Rate swap agreement             --         --            --            -- 
Interest expense               (13.7)      (8.0)        (21.3)        (43.0) 
                            --------     ------        ------      -------- 



Earnings before income tax 
  and extraordinary loss       341.7        9.2          (6.1)        344.8 
Provision for income taxes     140.1        3.8          (2.5)        141.4 
                            --------     ------        ------      -------- 
Earnings before 
  extraordinary loss       $   201.6    $   5.4       $  (3.6)    $   203.4 
                            ========     ======        ======      ======== 
Diluted earnings per 
  common share after 
  extraordinary loss       $    1.40                              $    1.38 
                            ========                               ======== 
 
Diluted shares 
  outstanding             143,694,108   3,987,974           --   147,682,082 
                          ===========   =========      =======   =========== 
 
See the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma combined statement of 
operations. 
 
 
 
Laboratory Corporation of America Holdings and Subsidiaries 
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations 
Year Ended December 31, 2001 
(In millions, except per share data) 
 
                           Historical   Pro Forma     Pro Forma    Pro Forma 
                             LabCorp    Dynacare(1)   DIANON(2)    Combined 
                           ----------   ---------    ----------   ---------- 
Net sales                  $ 2,199.8    $ 254.8       $ 125.7     $ 2,580.3 
Cost of sales                1,274.2      162.7          69.1       1,506.0 
                            --------     ------        ------      -------- 
   Gross profit                925.6       92.1          56.6       1,074.3 
Selling, general and 
  administrative expenses      516.5       87.0          38.5         642.0 
Restructuring and other 
  special charges                 --         --           7.0           7.0 
Amortization                    41.5        3.6          14.0          59.1 
                            --------     ------        ------      -------- 
   Operating income (loss)     367.6        1.5          (2.9)        366.2 
 
Other income (expense): 
Income from equity 
  investments                     --       29.4            --          29.4 
Loss on sale of assets          (1.8)        --            --          (1.8) 
Net investment income            2.4         --           0.7           3.1 
Termination of interest 
  rate swap agreement           (8.9)        --            --          (8.9) 
Interest expense               (27.0)     (13.0)        (28.5)        (68.5) 
                            --------     ------        ------      -------- 
Earnings before income taxes 
  and extraordinary loss       332.3       17.9         (30.7)        319.5 
Provision for income taxes     149.6        7.5         (12.8)        144.3 
                            --------     ------        ------      -------- 
Earnings before 
  extraordinary loss       $   182.7    $  10.4       $ (17.9)    $   175.2 
                            ========     ======        ======      ======== 
Diluted earnings per 
  common share before 
  extraordinary loss       $    1.29                              $    1.20 
                            ========                               ======== 
 
Diluted shares 
  outstanding             141,077,443   5,090,662           --   146,168,105 
                          ===========   =========      =======   =========== 
 
See the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma combined statement of 
operations. 
 
 
     The following footnotes summarize the significant pro forma adjustments 
that have been recorded in the accompanying unaudited pro forma combined 
Statements of Operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and for 
the year ended December 31, 2001. 
 
1)    Relating to the Dynacare acquisition: 
 
      The unaudited pro forma combined Statement of Operations reflects the 
stand-alone operations of Dynacare for the year ended December 31, 2001 and 
for the period ended July 25, 2002 as adjusted to reflect the impact of the 
acquisition as set forth below.  Subsequent to July 25, 2002, the date of the 
Dynacare acquisition, the results of operations of Dynacare are included in 
the Company's historical results of operations. 
 
                                     Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002 
                                     Historical                   Pro Forma 
                                      Dynacare    Adjustments     Dynacare 
                                     ----------   -----------    ---------- 
Net sales                            $  158.9      $  10.6(a)     $  169.5 
Cost of sales                           102.2          7.6(a)        109.8 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
   Gross profit                          56.7          3.0            59.7 
Selling, general and 
  administrative expenses                58.9          4.2(a),(d)     63.1 



Restructuring and other 
  special charges                          --                           -- 
Amortization                              0.4          1.7(b)          2.1 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
   Operating income (loss)               (2.6)        (2.9)           (5.5) 
 
Other income (expense): 
Income from equity 
  investments                            15.2          7.5(a)         22.7 
Loss on sale of assets                     --                           -- 
Net investment income                      --                           -- 
Termination of interest 
  rate swap agreement                      --                           -- 
Interest expense                         (9.7)         1.7(c)         (8.0) 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
Earnings before income tax 
  and extraordinary loss                  2.9          6.3             9.2 
Provision for income taxes                1.4          2.4(e)          3.8 
                                      -------       ------          ------ 
Earnings before 
  extraordinary loss                 $    1.5      $   3.9         $   5.4 
                                      =======       ======          ====== 
 
 
                                         Year Ended December 31, 2001 
                                     Historical                   Pro Forma 
                                      Dynacare    Adjustments     Dynacare 
                                     ----------   -----------    ---------- 
Net sales                            $  237.9      $  16.9(a)     $  254.8 
Cost of sales                           151.1         11.6(a)        162.7 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
   Gross profit                          86.8          5.3            92.1 
Selling, general and 
  administrative expenses                80.7          6.3(a),(d)     87.0 
Restructuring and other 
  special charges                          --                           -- 
Amortization                              2.7          0.9(b)          3.6 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
   Operating income (loss)                3.4         (1.9)            1.5 
 
Other income (expense): 
Income from equity 
  investments                            30.7         (1.3)(a)        29.4 
Loss on sale of assets                     --                           -- 
Net investment income                      --                           -- 
Termination of interest 
  rate swap agreement                      --                           -- 
Interest expense                        (19.9)         6.9(c)        (13.0) 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
Earnings before income tax 
  and extraordinary loss                 14.2          3.7            17.9 
Provision for income taxes               (3.1)        10.6(e)          7.5 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
Earnings before 
  extraordinary loss                 $   17.3      $  (6.9)       $   10.4 
                                      =======       ======         ======= 
 
 
(a) As a condition to closing the Dynacare acquisition, Dynacare terminated 
    its joint ventures in New York and Pennsylvania.  In addition, Dynacare's 
    ownership percentage of its Tennessee partnership was increased due to 
    the contribution of LabCorp business in the Tennessee territory.  This 
    change in ownership triggered consolidation accounting for LabCorp for this 
    partnership.  Pro forma adjustments to show the effect of these changes as 
    if they had all occurred as of January 1, 2001 are as follows: 
 
                                      Nine Months 
                                         Ended                 Year Ended 
                                  September 30, 2002        December 31, 2001 
                                  ------------------        ----------------- 
 
Increase (decrease) 
- ------------------- 
 
Net sales                              $   10.6                 $   16.9 
Cost of Sales                               7.6                     11.6 
Selling, general and administrative 
   expenses                                 3.6                      4.9 
Income from equity investments              7.5                     (1.3) 
Interest expense                            0.1                      0.2 
                                        -------                  ------- 
Net increase (decrease) to 
  earnings before income taxes and 
  extraordinary loss                   $    6.8                 $   (1.1) 
                                        =======                  ======= 
 
b)  Adjustments to amortization expense 
are as follows: 
Eliminate historical intangible 
 amortization                          $    0.4                 $    2.7 
Add amortization of customer 
 relationship intangibles                  (2.1)                    (3.6) 
                                        -------                  ------- 
Net decrease to earnings before 



income taxes and extraordinary loss    $   (1.7)                $   (0.9) 
                                        =======                  ======= 
c)  Adjustments to interest expense 
are as follows: 
Eliminate historical interest 
 expense                               $    9.7                 $   19.9 
Record pro forma interest expense          (8.0)                   (13.0) 
                                        -------                  ------- 
Net increase to earnings before 
income taxes and extraordinary loss    $    1.7                 $    6.9 
                                        =======                  ======= 
 
d)  Adjustments to record deferred 
compensation expense on unvested 
stock options revalued at 
July 25, 2002 (net decrease to 
earnings before income taxes)          $   (0.6)                $   (1.4) 
                                        =======                  ======= 
e)  Adjustment to provision for income 
 taxes, to increase income tax 
 expense to the Company's statutory 
 rate of 41.5%, adjusted for the 
 impact of Canadian taxes (decrease 
 to earnings before extraordinary 
 loss)                                 $   (2.4)                $  (10.6) 
                                        =======                  ======= 
 
 
(2) Relating to the DIANON Acquisition 
 
    The unaudited pro forma combined Statement of Operations reflect the 
historical results of operations of DIANON for the year ended December 31, 2001 
and for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 as adjusted to reflect the 
impact of the acquisition as set forth below. 
 
                                      Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002 
                                     Historical                   Pro Forma 
                                      DIANON      Adjustments      DIANON 
                                     ----------   -----------    ---------- 
Net sales                            $  141.0      $              $  141.0 
Cost of sales                            70.3                         70.3 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
   Gross profit                          70.7                         70.7 
Selling, general and 
  administrative expenses                41.4                         41.4 
Restructuring and other 
  special charges                         4.8                          4.8 
Amortization                              1.5          9.0(a)         10.5 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
   Operating income (loss)               23.0         (9.0)           14.0 
 
Other income (expense): 
Income from equity 
  investments                              --                           -- 
Loss on sale of assets                     --                           -- 
Net investment income                     1.2                          1.2 
Termination of interest 
  rate swap agreement                      --                           -- 
Interest expense                           --        (21.3)(b)       (21.3) 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
Earnings before income taxes 
  and extraordinary loss                 24.2        (30.3)           (6.1) 
Provision for income taxes               11.7        (14.2)(c)        (2.5) 
                                      -------       ------         ------ 
Earnings before 
  extraordinary loss                 $   12.5      $ (16.1)       $   (3.6) 
                                      =======       ======         ======= 
 
 
                                         Year Ended December 31, 2001 
                                     Historical                   Pro Forma 
                                      DIANON      Adjustments      DIANON 
                                     ----------   -----------    ---------- 
Net sales                            $  125.7      $              $  125.7 
Cost of sales                            69.1                         69.1 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
   Gross profit                          56.6                         56.6 
Selling, general and 
  administrative expenses                38.5                         38.5 
Restructuring and other 
  special charges                         7.0                          7.0 
Amortization                              1.4         12.6(a)         14.0 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
   Operating income (loss)                9.7        (12.6)           (2.9) 
 
Other income (expense): 
Income from equity 
  investments                              --                           -- 
Loss on sale of assets                     --                           -- 
Net investment income                     0.7                          0.7 
Termination of interest 
  rate swap agreement                      --                           -- 
Interest expense                           --        (28.5)(b)       (28.5) 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 



Earnings before income taxes 
  and extraordinary loss                 10.4        (41.1)          (30.7) 
Provision for income taxes                4.2        (17.1)(c)       (12.8) 
                                      -------       ------         ------- 
Earnings before 
  extraordinary loss                 $    6.2      $ (24.0)       $  (17.9) 
                                      =======       ======         ======= 
 
 
                                                 Nine Months 
                                                   Ended        Year Ended 
                                                September 30,   December 31, 
                                                   2002            2001 
Increase (decrease):                            -------------   ------------ 
 
a) Adjustments to amortization expense 
are as follows: 
  Eliminate historical intangible 
   amortization                                   $    1.5         $    1.4 
   Add amortization of customer 
   relationship intangibles                          (10.5)           (14.0) 
                                                   -------          ------- 
   Net decrease to earnings before income 
     taxes and extraordinary loss                 $   (9.0)        $  (12.6) 
                                                   =======          ======= 
 
b) Adjustments to record interest 
 on the Borrowings (net decrease 
 to earnings before income taxes 
 and extraordinary loss)                          $  (21.3)        $  (28.5) 
                                                   =======          ======= 
 
c) To record income tax benefit on 
 the pro forma adjustments (increase 
 to earnings before extraordinary) 
 loss)                                            $   14.2         $   17.1 
                                                   =======          ======= 
 
 
 
 
 


